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  Agenda 
   

 
 

Finance Committee 
Electronic Meeting 

 
Council Chambers, City Hall 

6911 No. 3 Road 
Monday, June 6, 2022 

Immediately following the General Purposes Committee meeting 
 
 
Pg. # ITEM  
 
  MINUTES 
 
FIN-4  Motion to adopt the minutes of the meeting of the Finance Committee held 

on May 2, 2022. 

  

 
  NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 
 
  July 4, 2022, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in Council Chambers. 
 
  FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION 
 
 1. 2021 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2021 ANNUAL REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 

(File Ref. No. 01-0375-01) (REDMS No. 6898968) 

FIN-8  See Page FIN-8 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Ivy Wong and Clay Adams 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the reports titled “2021 Annual Report” and “2021 Annual Report – 

Highlights” be approved. 
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 2. FINANCIAL INFORMATION – 1ST QUARTER MARCH 31, 2022  
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 6886157) 

FIN-107  See Page FIN-107 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Cindy Gilfillan 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the staff report titled “Financial Information – 1st Quarter March 31, 

2022”, dated May 6, 2022, from the Acting Director, Finance, be received 
for information. 

  

 
 3. ACTIVE CAPITAL PROJECTS INFORMATION - 1ST QUARTER 

MARCH 31, 2022 
(File Ref. No. 03-0975-01) (REDMS No. 6849315) 

FIN-132  See Page FIN-132 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Jenny Ho 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the staff report titled “Active Capital Projects Information – 1st 

Quarter March 31, 2022”, dated May 10, 2022, from the Acting Director, 
Finance, be received for information. 

  

 
  LULU ISLAND ENERGY COMPANY 
 
 4. 2022 Q1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LULU ISLAND 

ENERGY COMPANY 
(File Ref. No. 01-0060-20-LIEC1) (REDMS No. 6900046) 

FIN-162  See Page FIN-162 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Alen Postolka and Helen Zhao 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the Lulu Island Energy Company report titled “2022 Q1 Financial 

Information for the Lulu Island Energy Company”, dated May 12, 2022, 
from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, be received 
for information. 
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  RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION  
 
 5. RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION - 1ST QUARTER 

2022 FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
(File Ref. No. 03-1200-09) (REDMS No. 6903177) 

FIN-170  See Page FIN-170 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Rick Dusanj 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the report on Financial Information for the Richmond Olympic Oval 

Corporation for the first quarter ending March 31, 2022, from the Director, 
Finance, Innovation & Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation, 
be received for information. 

  
 
  ADJOURNMENT 
  

 



Date: 

Place: 

Present: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

May, 2,2022 

Council Chambers 
Richmond City Hall 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair 
Councillor Chak Au 
Councillor Carol Day 
Councillor Andy Hobbs 
Councillor Alexa Loo (by teleconference) 
Councillor Bill McNulty 
Councillor Linda McPhail (by teleconference) 
Councillor Harold Steves (by teleconference) 
Councillor Michael Wolfe 

Minutes 

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:38 p.m. 

6890166 

MINUTES 

It was moved and seconded 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Special Finance Committee held on 
April 19, 2022, be adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED 

DELEGATIONS 

1. C.J. James, Partner, KPMG LLP, presented the audit findings on the City' s 
2021 Consolidated Financial Statements and thanked the staff for their 
cooperation in completing the audit. 

The Auditor noted that the audit was clean and includes an unqualified 
opm10n. 

1. 
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Finance Committee 
Monday, May 2, 2022 

It was moved and seconded 
That the Auditor's report on the findings of the audit on the City's 2021 
Consolidated Financial Statements be received for information. 

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION 

2. 2021 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(File Ref. No. 03-0905-01) (REDMS No. 6877541) 

It was moved and seconded 

CARRIED 

That the 2021 City of Richmond Consolidated Financial Statements as 
presented in Attachment 2 be approved. 

3. MUNICIPAL SECURITY ISSUING RESOLUTION 
(File Ref. No. 03-0900-01) (REDMS No. 6850735) 

CARRIED 

In response to queries, staff advised (i) the funding will be received in 
October 2022, (ii) the project is in progress and funding is available for 
current expenditures, and (iii) it is anticipated that construction will 
commence prior to loan repayments. 

It was moved and seconded 
(1) That a 20-year term $96 million borrowing with a 20-year 

amortization period from the Municipal Finance Authority of British 
Columbia's (MFA's) 2022 Fall Borrowing Session, as authorized 
through Steveston Community Centre and Branch Library Loan 
Authorization Bylaw No. 10334, be approved; 

(2) That the Metro Vancouver Regional District (MVRD) be requested to 
consent and to include the City of Richmond's 20-year term 
$96 million borrowing with a 20-year amortization period in MVRD's 
Security Issuing Bylaw; and 

(3) That the Consolidated 5-Year Financial Plan (2022-2026) be 
amended accordingly. 

CARRIED 

2. 
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Finance Committee 
Monda~May2,2022 

RICHMOND PUBLIC LIBRARY 

4. 2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE RICHMOND PUBLIC 
LIBRARY 
(File Ref. No. 03-0905-01) (REDMS No. 6879809) 

It was moved and seconded 
That the 2021 Richmond Public Library audited financial statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2021, as presented in the attached report from the 
Chief Librarian, be received for information. 

CARRIED 

LULU ISLAND ENERGY COMPANY 

5. 2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE LULU ISLAND ENERGY 
COMPANY 
(File Ref. No. 01-0060-20-LIECl) (REDMS No. 6880091) 

In response to queries, staff advised (i) salaries for City managers working on 
the project will be recovered through the Lulu Island Energy Company (LIC), 
(ii) the electrical systems are designed to operate at high efficiency, and 
(iii) the use of biogas procured through the LIC is being considered. 

It was moved and seconded 
That the Lulu Island Energy Company report titled "2021 Financial 
Statements for the Lulu Island Energy Company", dated April 13, 2022, 
from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, be received 
for information. 

CARRIED 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 

6. RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 2021 AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 6885036) 

In response to queries, staff advised (i) the Richmond Olympic Oval currently 
employs 65 full time staff and 150 to 200 auxiliary staff, and (ii) cash flow 
and investment rates are monitored continuously. 

3. 
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Finance Committee 
Monday, May 2, 2022 

It was moved and seconded 
That the report on the 2021 Audited Financial Statements for the Richmond 
Olympic Oval Corporation from the Director, Finance, Innovation & 
Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation be received for 
information. 

CARRIED 

ADJOURNMENT 

It was moved and seconded 
That the meeting adjourn (5:08 p.m.). 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the Finance 
Committee of the Council of the City of 
Richmond held on Monday, May 2, 2022. 

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie 
Chair 

Haely Lindau 
Recording Secretary 

4. 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: Finance Committee Date: May 12, 2022 

From: Jerry Chong File: 01 -0375-01/2022-Vol 
Acting General Manager, Finance and Corporate 01 
Services 

Re: 2021 Annual Report and 2021 Annual Report Highlights 

Staff Recommendation 

That the reports titled, "2021 Annual Repo11 and 2021 Annual Rep011 -Highlights" be approved. 

~ 
Jerry Chong 
Acting General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services 
(604-276-4064) 

Att. 2 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

2?Q Acting GM, F&CS 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM REVIEW 

APcrBYCAO 

7 ~ 

INITIALS: 

SL 
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May 12, 2022 - 2 -

Staff Report 

Origin 

Pursuant to Section 98 of the Community Chaiier, before June 30th
, in each year, a Council must: 

a) Prepare an annual report 

b) Make the report available for public inspection 

c) Have the rep01i available for public inspection at a Council or other public meeting 

This rep01i supports Council's Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #5 Sound Financial 
Management: 

Accountable, transparent, and responsible financial management that supports the needs 
of the community into the fitture. 

5.1 Maintain a strong and robust financial position. 

This rep01i supports Council's Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #8 An Engaged and Infonned 
Community: 

Ensure that the citizenry of Richmond is well-informed and engaged about City business 
and decision-making. 

8.2 Ensure citizens are well-informed with timely, accurate and easily accessible 
communication using a variety of methods and tools. 

Analysis 

The City of Richmond's annual rep01i formally presents the audited financial statements and 
other relevant financial, economic and demographic indicators to the public. The rep01i also 
highlights many of the City's significant achievements and milestones from 2021. 

Two versions of the Annual Report are produced each year in order to reach the different 
audiences interested in this information. The comprehensive 2021 Annual Report meets all 
legislative requirements for financial reporting as required under the Community Charter for 
British Columbia's local governments. This version will be publicly available through the City's 
website at www.richmond.ca and printed only on a demand basis. The comprehensive version 
includes the City's audited consolidated financial statements; the City's corporate objectives and 
success indicators, as identified through Council's Term Goals; and a listing of pennissive 
exemptions. In addition to the statutorily required information, the comprehensive version 
provides infonnation on the City's milestones from 2021 , including awards and achievements 
and a variety of key corporate financial and community demographic statistical data for the year. 

For a broader audience, the City also produces a condensed financial reporting document known 
as the 2021 Annual Report- Highlights. This shorter version, which is designed to be accessible 

6898968 
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May 12, 2022 - 3 -

and easily understandable for a general audience, provides information about the City of 
Richmond, its services, highlights from 2021 and the City's financial condition. In order to 
support sustainable practices the condensed version is available through the City's website and 
distribution will be done electronically. There will be limited printed copies for presentation 
purposes and to fulfill statutory obligations. 

Both copies will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association for consideration 
in their annual awards program. 

The reports are produced entirely in house through the joint effo1is of the Finance Depmiment 
and the Corporate Communications and Marketing Department. 

Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

The City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report and the 2021 Annual Report Highlights satisfy the 
Community Charter requirements for financial reporting and are important instruments in 
ensuring public transparency and accountability for the management of City finances. The 
reports also provide useful infonnation on the City's achievements and milestones during the 
2021 fiscal year. 

~ 
Ivy Wong 
Acting Director, Finance 

(4046) 

IW:nm 

Att. 1: 2021 Annual Report 
2: 2021 Annual Report-Highlights 
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Clay Adams 
Director, Corporate Communications and 
Marketing 
(4399) 
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City of 
Richmond 
British Columbia, Canada 

Attachment 1 

2021 Annual Report 
For the year ended December 31, 2021 
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City of 
Richmond 
British Columbia, Canada 

2021 Annual Report 
For the year ended December 31, 2021 

Our vision is to be the most appealing, livable 
and we/I-managed community in Canada 

Contents 
Introductory section 
Message from the Mayor .......... ..... ..... ................ ...... .. .... ......... ..... ....... ...... .... ..... .. ..... ....... .. .......... ....... 2 

Richmond City Cou nci l. ... ... ................. .. .. ........ ..... ..... .. ...................... .. ............. .... ..... ....... .......... ... ....... 3 

City of Richmond Sen ior Management Team .............. .. ........ .. ......... ...... ............. ... .......... .... .. ......... ...... 4 

Message from the Chief Admin ist1·ative Officer .. ......... ..... ........ ........ .... ....... .. ..... ... .. ...... .... .. ..... ... ....... .. 5 

Counci l Strategic Plan: 20 18 to 2022 ......................... ... ........ ........ .... .... ........... ... ..... .. .. ...... ... ......... ..... 6 

Long-serving CAO bids farewe ll .. ............... ..... ... ...... ... ........ .. ........... ....... ...... ..... .... ..... .. .. .... .... ..... ..... ... 9 

Richmond: ensuring a sustainable future .... .. ..... ..... .. .... .... .. ... .. .... .. .... ... .......... .. .... .. ...... ...... ...... .......... 10 

202 1 Awards ......................... ..... .... ........................ ............................ ...... .. ... .... ...... ...... ... ..... ..... .... ... 12 

Report from the Genera l Manager, Finance and Corporate Services ..... ........ .......... ..... ... .. ..... ....... .. ..... 14 

Financial section 
City of Richmond aud ited financial statements .................... .... .......... .... ............... .. .. .. .............. .......... 17 

Statistical section 
City of Richmond statistical data ................. ... ... .. .......... ..... ... ..... ..... ..... ............... ... ............ ..... .......... 49 

Tax exemption section 
2021 permissive property tax exemptions ........ ..... .. ....... .. ................. ... .... ... ... ... ... ........... .. .. ......... ...... . 65 

Major services provided by the City of Richmond .. .... ..... .... .. .. ............. ..... ..... ..... .. .. .... ..... .. .. ... .. .... ...... 69 

Ci ty of Richmond contacts .. ........ ...... .. ... ... .. ... ... ....... .. .. ..... ... .. .... .... ..... .. .... ............... ....... .... ... .. ..... .. ... 70 

For an on line copy of this report, please visit www.richmond.ca/cityha ll/f inance/reporting/reports 

~ The City of Richmond is proud of its diverse and committed workforce. Th is year, w e asked our 
\ii employees to take photos and send us images of "their Richmond" for this report. Photos w ith 

the camera icon are just some of the submiss ions, and we are de lighted to share them w ith you. 
None are professional photographers. 

COVER PHOTO: CITY HALL IN SPRING AFTER MORNING RAIN 
PHOTO BY LUC LUK, BUILDING SYSTEM MAINTENANCE LEAD HAND, FACILITY SERVICES 
CITY EMPLOYEE SINCE 2003 

City of Richmond 202 1 Annual Report 
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Message from the Mayor 
The City of Richmond is proud of our high quality of life. Through its actions, City 
Council has always sought to provide infrastructure t hat prese rves our rich and 

vibrant cu ltural identity. 

Events of the past two years have fu rther heightened the need to focus on 
how we provide a susta inable fu ture. Many t hink of sustainab ili ty only from an 
environmental perspect ive. Climate change is obviously a major concern as shown 
by extl'eme weather events in 2021. Through long-term investments in flood 
protection infrastructure as we ll as awa rd-w inning initiatives such as our Lulu 
Island District Energy program, Richmond is bu ilding a green and safe f uture fo r it s 
resident s. 

Howeve1·, t he term "sustainabil ity" has a much greater mea ning in Richmond . It 
encompasses the development of policies, services and supports to ensure that 
current and future generations maintai n a sense of community and belonging. It 
also includes having a strong economy that supports businesses, their employees 

and fami lies. It invo lves diffe rent concepts such as ensuring safety for residents and businesses, providing adequate 
infrastructure as well as protecting our diverse cult ure. 

Protecting our community is paramount as demonstrated by Richmond, stat isti ca lly in the region, having some of 
the lowest incidence of COVID-1 9 cases t hroughout the pa ndemic. Closely regulating access and activit ies to City 
facilit ies played a ro le, as did our Counci l-led mask mandate and a vaccination requi rement for City employees. All 
of Cou ncil-as well as almost all City staff-recognized the importance of protecting themselves, their colleagues 
and t he com munity through vaccination against COVID-1 9. 

The recent openin g of t he City Centl'e Community Police Offi ce fo r RCMP operat ions, along w ith add ing 51 off ice rs 
and 36 fi ref ighters this te rm are exa mples of Council 's com mitment to public safety. In 202 1, t he RCM P Fox 80 
Menta l Hea lth Car completed its second full yea r in partnership w ith Vancouver Coastal Hea lth by responding 
to approximately 800 ca lls. This program reduced high-risk situations through the interaction of a mental hea lth 
professional. 

City Council also supported the RCMP " No Place for Hate" campaign to encourage awareness of racism and hate 
cr imes and provide too ls to help victi ms, their fa milies and friends. It has been hea rtening to see the push against 
racism grow foll owing Council 's Statement Against Racism and Violence in 2020, offe ring furt her momentum to 
eradicate such unacceptab le behaviou r. 

Richmond is proud of its rich cultu ra l heritage and diversity. It honoured Ca nada's first National Day for Truth and 
Reconciliation w it h a f lag lowerin g, educational programs and inte ract ive displays. In partnership w ith Ri chmond 
Community Associat ions and other partners, Richmond again supported a range of activit ies to promote P1·ide 
Week and our LGBTQ2S+ community. W it h a w ide range of topics, the City's second Diversity Symposium was 
attended by over 200 individuals from across BC, Canada and inte rnationa lly. 

Wh ile many long-1·unning, popular events and festiva ls remained cancelled to mai ntain public safety, there was 
growing acceptance of the transition to on line programs and events. For instance, t he popular Doors Open 
Ri chmond event went online again, attract ing over 25,000 interact ions w ith 35 vi1·tual locat ions. Council recognizes 
the importance and va lue of engagement to build a strong community. Maintaining such events-even if virtual­
supports that commitment. 

To ensure a bright and susta inable fu tu re, it is important to take action and make w ise investments today. 
Richmond's success, despite the challenges of COVID-1 9, is a credit to those w ho contri bute to making our city a 
better place. This includes our staff , vo lunteers and businesses as we ll as our community and government partners. 
Our Ann ual Report contains examples of ouI· goa ls and achievements. As always, I invite your comments and 
questions throug h my office. 

Malcolm Bmdle ~ 
Mayor, City of Richmond 

City of Richmond 202 1 Annual Report 2 
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Richmond City Council 

Top row, left to right: 
Council lor Chak Au, Councillor Carol Day, Counci llor Andy Hobbs (elected May 2021 ), 
Councillor A lexa Loo 

Centre: 
Mayor Malcolm Brodie 

Bottom row, left to right 
Council lor Bill McNu lty, Councillor Linda McPhai l, Council lor Haro ld Steves, 
Councillor Michael Wolfe 

Connect with Richmond City Council 
To contact Council, email MayorAndCounci llors@richmond.ca or ca ll 604-276-4000. 
For Counci l Meetings agendas and minutes, visit www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/agendas. 

To live stream Counci l meetings or view videos of past meetings, visit 

www.richmond.ca/Watch0nline. 

City of Richmond 202 1 Annua l Report 3 
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City of Richmond Senior Management Team 
2021 

Chief Administrative Officer 
George Duncan 

Community Safety 

Ceci lia Achiam 

Engineering and Public Works 

John Irving 

Law and Legislative Services 

Tony Capuccinello lraci 

Deputy CAO/Community Services 

Serena Lusk 

Finance and Corporate Services 

A ndrew Nazareth 

Planning and Development 

Joe Erceg 

Chief Administrative Officer ................. ... .. ....... .................................................... ........ .. .... .. . George Duncan 

Deputy Chief Administrative Officer/Genera l Manager, Community Services .......... ......... ... ........... Serena Lusk 

Genera l Manager, Commun ity Safety ............... ..... ... ... .. ...... .......... .. .. .......... .. ............. ....... .. .. Cecili a Ach iam 

General Manager, Engineering and Public Works .... .. ............... .. ............... ..... .. .... .. ...... .. ............... John Irving 

Genera l Manager, Finance and Corporate Services .... .. ............... ... .......... .. .. .. .. .. .. ........ ... ..... Andrew Nazareth 

Genera l Manager, Finance and Corporate Services (Acting) ...... .. ............ ... .... ..... .. ................. .. ..... Jerry Chong 

General Manager, Planning and Development. .... ...................... .. ......... ..... .. .... ... .. ............. ... .. ... .... ... Joe Erceg 

General Manager, Law and Legislative Services ...... .. .. .... .... ..... ...... .. .. ... .. .. .. .... .. ....... .. ... Tony Capuccinello lraci 

Public safety agencies 
Chief, Richmond Fire-Rescue ...................................... ......... .. ..... .. ..... ..... .. ..... ................ .... ...... Tim Wilk inson 

Officer in Charge, Roya l Canad ian Mounted Police ... .... ... .................... .. .. .......... .. .... .... ........ .... ........... Wi ll Ng 

Banker 

Scotia bank 

Auditors 

KPMG 
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Message from the Chief Administrative Officer 
I am pleased to present the City of Richmond's An nua l Report fo1· 202 1. It deta ils our 
strong financia l position and outlines many of the initiatives we are undertaking to 
achieve our vision of making Richmond Canada's best-managed city. 

The past year continued to present cha llenges due to the ongoing pandemic and 
extreme weather situations. In both cases, the City was wel l prepared and ab le to 
mitigate t he impact due to strong leade1·shi p, forward planning and sound investment 
Many of t hose actions and achievements are highlighted throughout th is report . 

As the pandemic entered its second year, City administration and staff remained focused 
on the need to maintain public safety. That required difficult decisions. W ith the support 
of Council, strategies were implemented to ensure vita l City services remained in place 
and staff cou ld contribute to sustain ing the local economy. 

Services transit ioned smoothly to onl ine access as the City switched seamlessly to a 
hybrid or remote working model. Not on ly was this in keeping with provincia l hea lth 
orders, it demonstrated the dedication and resiliency of employees as they adjusted to 
new work envi ronments whi le maintaining high levels of productivity and reliab il ity. 

Their commitment to safety was further demonstrated when Counci l enacted a proof of vaccination requ irement for 
al l staff. Almost 99 per cent confirmed full vaccination status, w it h most vacci nated long before the mandate was in 
place. It was this conscious recognition of the need to protect themselves, colleagues, fam ily and residents that kept 
Richmond's COVID-19 case counts among the lowest in t he reg ion. 

2021 also saw terms such as "heat dome" and "atmospheric 1·iver" become part of our vocabulary. Record summer 
temperatu res saw Richmond develop an emergency cooling strategy. Shou ld extreme heat events become more 
common, t he City is ready to provide respite fo r our most vulnerable cit izens from potent ia lly life th reaten ing heat 
waves. 

Richmond was also subject to extreme rainfa ll events (atmospheric rivers) in November. In one instance, over 130 
millimetres (five inches) of ra in fe ll in just three days. Thanks to long term plann ing and investment in flood protection, 
the City emerged relat ively unscathed. Sad ly, not al l British Columbia commun it ies were as fortunate. 

Our capacity to handle t he situation was not on ly due to the $120 million investment in flood protection over the yea rs, 
but also the City employees who worked 24/7 in sometimes difficu lt and dangerous situat ions to keep our 39 pump 
stations clear and operational, and our 49 ki lometres of dikes secu re. 

Of course, one of the foundations for any successful organization is its abil ity to demonstrate strong f inancial 
stewardsh ip. The City's long-term financia l strategy remained a hal lmark of our administration and enabled us to 
continue to maintain effective and responsive service leve ls as th is report shows. 

The City of Richmond rema ins a strong, cu lt ura lly proud commun ity and is committed to continued growth and success 
within a framework of diversity, susta inability and va lue for our taxpayers. 

Final ly, this wi ll be my last Annua l Report message as CAO. I announced plans to retire in mid-2022 and expect to 
hand over responsibi lit ies to a new Ch ief Administrative Officer prior to that During my 34+ years with the City, I have 
seen dramatic change and progress. I am proud to have played a role in bringing the Ca nada Line rapid transit to our 
community and in enabling construction of t he internationa lly renowned Richmond Olympic Ova l. 

Whi le initially bui lt as a speed-skating competition arena for the 2010 Olympic Winter Games-for wh ich Richmond 
was an official Host Venue-the Oval was transformed into a community sport, recreation and elite ath letics fac ility 
that now welcomes thousands of residents of al l ages and abilities annua lly. It is a true legacy from one of my most 
memorable t imes as CAO. 

But w hat I am most proud of is the people. The staff, leadership team and Council who continued to give t hei r al l to 
ensure Richmond was always a better, safer and more welcoming place. As I leave, I know the City is in a sound position 
and more t han ready to maintain its journey as t he most appealing, livable and well-managed community in Canada. 

George Duncan 

Chief Administrative Officer 

City of Richmond 2021 Annua l Report 5 
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Council Strategic Plan: 2018 to 2022 
The Community Charter requires all BC 
municipa lities to include a statement in the 
Annual Report of their objectives for t he current 
and future years, along with measures to track 
success towards those objectives. 

The City of Richmond's objectives and success 
ind icators are expressed through the Counci l 
Strategic Plan . Soon after Counci l began its 
four-year term in October 20 18, it undertook 
a strateg ic planning process to he lp fu lfi ll its 
governance ro le and achieve a successful term of 
office. Through that process, Council adopted a 
revised set of eight Strategic Focus areas, wh ich 
provided the framework for the City's programs 
and services during 202 1. 

1. A Safe and Resilient Community 
Enhance and protect the safety and wel l-being of 
Richmond. 

2021 Achievement 
City Council made full COVID-19 vaccination 
mandatory for all City employees as an added 
safety measure to protect residents, visitors 
and staff. By year-end, almost 99 per cent of 
City staff and every Council member comp lied. 
Counci l also added fund ing for an additiona l 16 
RCMP officers and 12 firefighters to complete 
Richmond's Safe Commun ity Strategy, as we ll as 
unvei led the new City Centre Commun ity Police 
Office. These and other initiatives saw break and 
enter crimes drop 33 per cent for residences and 
1 5 per cent for businesses. 

City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report 

jQ KING TIDE AT BRITANNIA SHIPYARDS NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE & PHOTO BY CORRINE HAER, PROJECT MANAGER, ENGINEERING PLANNING 
CITY EMPLOYEE SINCE 2012 

2. A Sustainable and 
Environmentally Conscious City 
Environmentally conscious decision-making 
that demonstrates leadership in implementing 
innovative, susta inable pract ices and supports the 
City's unique biodiversity and is land ecology. 

2021 Achievement 
Ongoing investment in dike and flood protection 
infrastructure saw the island city w ithsta nd one 
of the province's most devastating floods on 
record. Richmond's 39 pump stat ions moved 
90 cubic metres of water per second (1.4 
mill ion US gallons per minute) - the equivalent 
of over two Olymp ic swimming poo ls every 
60 seconds. The City also became one of only 
15 loca l governments across Canada selected 
to participate in the Canadian Circu lar Cit ies 
and Reg ions Initiative, a peer-to-peer network 
bringing communities together to exchange best 
practices for implementing circular economy 
strategies and policies. 

6 
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ALMOST 200 NEW CHILD CARE SPACES WERE ADDED WITH THE 
OPENING DF EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT HUBS 

3. One Community Together 
Vibrant and diverse arts and cultural activities and 
opportun ities for community engagement and 
connection. 

2021 Achievement 
The City invested over $1 million in grants to 
local non-profit arts and culture organ izations, 
commun ity service groups, as well as grassroots 
providers in childcare, health and social services, 
and parks, recreation and commun ity events. 
Richmond's 14th annual Doors Open festiva l 
offered a rare glimpse inside places of worsh ip, 
civic centres, museums and local bus inesses 
throughout the community. Over 25,000 social 
media interactions and 13,000 views were logged 
for the week-long on li ne event. 

City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report 

4. An Active and 
Thriving Richmond 
An active and thriving commun ity characterized 
by diverse social and wellness programs, services 
and spaces that foster health and well -be ing for 
all. 

2021 Achievement 
Council amended the City's Affordable Housing 
Policy to increase the number of affordab le rental 
units in new City Centre residential projects 
containing at least 60 un its from 10 per cent 
to 1 5 per cent - among the highest level in t he 
region . Over 1,500 affordab le housing units in 
new developments across Richmond have been 
confirmed since the policy was introduced, 
w ith more underway. Counci l also continued 
to advocate for affordab le, accessible, quality 
child ca re, open ing two new innovative Early 
Chi ldhood Development Hubs w ith 199 spaces 
to add to the more than 7,000 ch ildcare spaces 
already in place to support the needs of ch ildren, 
families and employers in the city. 

5. Sound Financial Management 
Accountable,. transparent and responsible 
financia l management that supports the needs of 
the community into the future. 

2021 Achievement 
Counci l supported a budget that enabled several 
key infrastructure projects, in itia lly deferred due 
to the pandem ic, to proceed, as well as ensuring 
operating resources for key commun ity safety 
priorities. While utilizing reserves to mitigate cost 
increases, the budget ma int ained a one per cent 
comm itment to investment for future capita l 
needs. The City maintained a position of financial 
resiliency and se rvice whi le keeping the overal l 
impact to property owners to a tax change of 
around 27 cents per day. 
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6. Strategic and Well­
Planned Growth 
Leadership in effective and susta inab le growth 
that supports Richmond's physical and socia l 
needs. 

2021 Achievement 
Richmond issued development and construction 
permits for 587 res idential, 333 commercial and 
217 industrial buildings - a 23 per cent increase 
from the previous year. With $719 million in 
new construction value, this was higher than the 
City's 10-year average. The City also collected 
over $16.2 million in development cost charges 
in 202 1 to help finance future infrastructure and 
amenities such as parks and roads. 

7. A Supported Economic Sector 
Facilitate diversified economic growth through 
innovative and sustainab le policies, practices and 
partnerships. 

2021 Achievement 
Prior investment, along with initiatives such as 
Richmond's Business Resilience and Supply Chain 
program and the Expedited Temporary Patio 
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Program, helped local businesses deal with the 
challenges of the pandemic. The number of new 
business licences issued in 2021 rose 15 per 
cent from the previous year, signa ling continued 
economic recovery and renewal. 

8. An Engaged and 
Informed Community 
Ensure that the citizenry of Richmond is we ll ­
informed and engaged about City business and 
decision-making. 

2021 Achievement 
Connecting with one of the most culturally 
diverse and unique populations in Canada can 
be challenging. Over 35,000 users participated 
in almost 40 engagement initiatives on the City's 
LetsTalkRichmond.ca platform, a 44 per cent 
increase. The City's social media platforms also 
saw steady growth with a 23 per cent increase 
in Facebook followers, a 47 per cent rise on 
lnstagram and a 50 per cent jump in You Tube 
subscribers. The City's website logged over 3.4 
million visits, a 64 per cent increase from 2020. 

8 

FIN - 19



Long-serving CAO bids farewell 

Richmond's long-serving Chief Administrative 
Officer, George Duncan, wi ll retire from his 
position on June 30, 2022. 

The 202 1 City of Richmond Annual Report 
w ill be the last comp leted under his full year 
of leadership, wh ich has spanned over three 
decades. 

Announcing the retirement, Mayor Malcolm 
Brodie said George wil l be missed by both the 
organization and the community. "George 
has made a major impact on our city," he 
sa id . "Under his leadership, Richmond has 
become an award-winn ing leader in civic 
admin istration, sustainabi lity, community safety 
and operat ions. One on ly has to look around 
to see how our city has grown into a diverse, 
dynamic and well-managed community to see 
his contributions and legacy." 

City of Richmond 202 1 Annua l Report 

Examples of those contribut ions include the 
key role he played in bringing rap id transit to 
Richmond w ith the introduction of the Canada 
Line, as wel l as Richmond becoming a Host 
Venue for the 2010 Olympic Winter Games. 
He was instrumenta l in securing the design 
and construction of the woi-ld-renowned 
Richmond Olympic Oval and its successful 
transition from a compet ition speed skating 
ven ue for the Games to a state-of-the-art 
multi-purpose community fac ility and sports 
complex benefi ting local recreational and elite 
athletes ali ke . 

Mayor Brodie also commended George for 
his commitment to pub lic safety, in particu lar 
his vital leadership during the COVID-1 9 
pandemic. "Council has always seen the 
safety and well-being of ou r comm unity as 
paramount," he said. "When the pandem ic 
hit Richmond, George mobilized teams and 
resources to ensure City services and staff 
were well positioned to keep key services in 
place and to protect the safety of employees, 
res idents and businesses. That Richmond is on 
the road to econom ic and communi ty recovery 
so qu ick ly is due, in large part, to George's 
experienced leadersh ip and comm itment 
during those cha lleng ing times." 

Joi ning the City in 1987, George was 
appointed CAO a decade later after taking on 
a series of progressive management roles and 
responsibilit ies. Under his leadership, the City 
and its staff have received over 200 awards 
for va rious programs and initiatives. These 
include two prestigious Canadian Association 
of Municipal Administrators (CAMA) Willis 
Awards for Exce llence in Administration and 
Innovation, CAMA awards for Environmenta l 
Leadersh ip and Susta inabi lity and Professional 
Development, an Award of Excellence from 
the BC Human Resources Management 
Association, and awards from the International 
City/Cou nty Management Association. 
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Richmond: ensuring a sustainable future 

While 2021 brought new challenges to many 
parts of Brit ish Columbia, the City of Richmond 
was well positioned to meet them head on 
thanks to a lengthy history of infrastructure 
investment, planning and effective leadership. 

Due in large part to a multi-year investment of 
over $120 million in dikes and flood protection 
strategies, Richmond was successfu l in preventing 
large-scale damage when three devastating 
atmospheric rivers hit in November. The City's 
39 pump stations, combined with 49 kilometres 
of dikes, 165 kilometres of watercourses, 61 
kilometres of box culverts and 585 kilometres of 
drainage pipes, kept rising waters at bay. 

The existing dike network can withstand high 
water events such as spring freshet and king 
tides, and handle a 500-year return period 
(estimated average time between) flooding event. 
However, recognizing the rapid impact of climate 
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change, Council authorized an acceleration of the 
plan to raise the dikes well ahead of current sea 
level rise projections over the next 50 years. 

Earlier in the year, Richmond experienced another 
unexpected weather phenomenon-the heat 
dome. Severa l days of unrelenting record-setting 
temperatures arrived in July, prompting the 
development of a cooling centre strategy and 
mobilization of emergency services to protect the 
most vulnerable . 

With the pandemic continuing to keep a grip 
on the community and economy, the City 
worked to f ind sustainable, innovative ways 
to support residents and businesses. The City, 
along with Tourism Richmond and the Richmond 
Hotel Association, unveiled a tourism plan to 
reinvigorate and revitalize the ailing industry that 
brought over $2 billion to the city pre-pandemic. 
Richmond Sport Hosting still managed to support 
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20 events generating 2,700 room nights in 2021, 
and tourism numbers continued to rise as trave l 
and pandemic restrictions eased by year-end. 

Council took many decisive steps to assist in 
preserving Richmond's rich agricultura l heritage 
and promote a susta inable farming sector. 
Adoption of a new Soil Deposit and Remova l 
Bylaw expanded the City's regulatory framework 
w ith incentives for sourcing new soi l from 
within Richmond whi le increasing fines for 
non-compliance. The bylaw provides enhanced 
enforcement in environmenta lly sensitive areas 
and supports other Counci l-endorsed st rategies 
such as the Eco logica l Network Management 
Strategy, the Farming First Strategy and Invasive 
Species Action Plan. The move was timely as 
future soi l deposits increase as the City raises the 
level of the land for further protection . 

Development and construction offered visib le 
evidence of economic recovery and susta inability 
with $7 19 mi ll ion in new construct ion value 
approved. This was higher than Rich mond's 
10-year average. Council instil led furthe r 
confidence in economic recovery w ith several key 
projects including approval of the $95 mil lion 
rep lacement of the Steveston Commun ity Centre 
and Branch Library; the opening of the new River 
Parkway traffic and cycling corridor to alleviate 

THE PUBLIC PROVIDED INPUTTO UPDATE THE POPULAR CITY-WIDE CYCLING NETWORK 
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NUMEROUS NON-RESIDENTIAL PATHWAYS WERE PAVED WITH RECYCLED MATERIALS 

congest ion in the busy City Centre; and updates 
to the popu lar city-wide cycl ing network. 

The Provincial Government announced plans 
to build a new Steveston Highway Interchange 
and rep lace the aging George Massey Tunnel 
w ith an eight-lane immersed tunnel. The 
project recognizes Council 's long-standing 
recommendation for how to address the heavily 
congested road corridor, reducing travel time and 
improving trans it access. 

Fol lowing the success of an innovative road 
paving project using 40 per cent recycled 
mate1·ials, the City expanded the technology 
to pave 20 non-residential pathways across 
Richmond, w ith more planned . Such innovation, 
combined w ith the continued growth of 
Richmond's award-winn ing district energy 
infrastructure that reduces 7,800 tonnes of 
greenhouse gasses annual ly, reinforce Richmond's 

· comm itment to a sustainab le, environmenta lly 
friendly future. 

The City of Richmond has always been a leader 
with bold, innovative programs and strategies 
that reflect our character and reputation as a 
safe, sustainable and culturally diverse city that 
makes it one of the most appealing, livable and 
wel l-managed communities in Canada. 
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2021 Awards 

A measurement of the City's success in achieving 
its goals are the honours and recognition from 
our peers and others. In 2021, Richmond again 
received numerous international, national and 
provincial awards recognizing our commitment to 
excellence and innovation. 

District energy 
Recipient of over a dozen awards in the past 
decade, Richmond's District Energy Program 
cont inues to collect accolades for its innovation, 
efficiency and green sustainability. In 2021, it 
received the Community Energy Association's 
Climate and Energy Action Award . With 22 
buildings and over five mill ion square feet of floor 
space, the innovative District Energy Program is 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions by over 7,800 
tonnes-the equivalent of removing 2,000 cars 
from our roads-each year. 

City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report 

Accessibility by design 
The Minoru Centre for Active Living, the City of 
Richmond's state-of-the-art fitness and aquatic 
facil ity, received the 2021 Architecture Prize 
for Accessibi lity from the International Olympic 
Comm ittee, Internationa l Paralympic Comm ittee, 
and Internationa l Association for Sports and 
Leisure Facilities. The annual Distinction for 
Accessibi lity Award aims to increase the 
accessibi lity of all sports and leisure faci lities 
and architectural structures worldwide so that 
everyone has an opportun ity to practice and view 
sport freely and w ithout barriers. 

Financial reporting 
Once again, the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the US and Canada presented 
Richmond with the Canadian Award for Financia l 
Reporting (the 19th year in a row) and the 
Outstanding Achievement in Popular Financial 
Reporting Award (the 12th successive year) for its 
2020 Annual Reports. 
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Sustainability 
The Union of BC Municipalities, wh ich represents 
and advocates to government on behalf of 
municipalities across British Columbia, presented 
the City of Richmond with an Honourable 
Mention in the Community Excellence Award­
Service Delivery category for customer-friendly 
upgrades to its Works Yard Recycling Depot. The 
$1.58 mil lion upgrades to aging infrastructure 
improved operations by provid ing a larger site, 
expanding the number of hazardous waste 
materials collected, adding tent coverings and 
stee l awnings to shield recyclers and staff from 
the weather, as well as the purchase of new 
heavy equipment for moving recycled materials . 

Protecting our environment 
The Environmental Manager's Association 
of BC recognized Richmond's environmenta l 
stewardship with two prestigious awards. 
The City's Corporate Hazardous Materials 
Management Training initiative was honoured 
in the Regulatory Cha llenge category at the 
organization's 202 1 Environmental Awards Gala, 
wh ile its Mitchell Island Stewardship Initiative 
received the Discharge Control Award. Both 
programs demonstrate the City's commitment 
to protecting our environment and putting 
processes and systems in place to protect and 
maintain va luable ecosystems. 
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December 31, 2020 

Executive Director/CEO 

13 

FIN - 24



Report from the General Manager, 
Finance and Corporate Services 
Mayor Malcom Brodie and Members of Richmond City Council, 

I am pleased to submit the Consolidated Financia l Statements and Aud itors' Report for the fiscal 
yea r ended December 31, 202 1 for the City of Richmond, pursuant to Section 98 and 167 of the 
Commun ity Charter. The consolidated financ ial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
Canadian publ ic sector accounting standards as prescribed by the Pub lic Sector Accounting Board 
(PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Preparation of the financia l statements is 
management's responsibility. 

KPMG LLP was appointed by City Council to independently aud it the City's consolidated financial 
statements. They have expressed an opinion that the City's consolidated financia l statements present 
fair ly, in all materia l respects, the consolidated financial position of the City of Richmond as at 
December 31, 2021 and its consolidated results of operat ions, its changes in net consolidated financial 
assets and its conso lidated cash flows for the year ended in accordance with Canadian publ ic sector 
accounting standards. 

These financial statements combine the accounts of the City of Richmond, Richmond Olymp ic Ova l and 
Richmond Public Li brary (collective ly referred to as the "C ity"), as well as the City's investment in Lul u 
Island Energy Company, wh ich is accounted for as a Government Bus iness Enterprise. 

Consolidated statement of financial position (in $000s) 
2021 Actual 2020 Actual Change 

Financial Assets $ 1,468,241 $ 1,471,442 $(3,201) 
Liab ilities 528,238 582,457 (54,219) 
Net Financial Assets 940,003 888,985 51,018 
Non-Financial Assets 2,547,884 2,495,22 1 52,663 
Accumulated Surplus $3,487,887 $3,384,206 $103,681 

The City's overall financial position improved by $103. 7 million, w it h accumulated surplus (sim ilar to 
net worth of a corporation) totaling $3.5 billion. A significant part of this increase is due to additions 
to capita l assets and statutory reserves, as well as a reduction in liabilities, especia lly a reduction in 
accou nts payable re lating to postponed remittances to other governments re lating to COVID-19 paid in 
2021. 

The City's cash and investments are $1.4 billi on while long-term debt continues to decline w ith an 
outstanding ba lance at the end of 2021 of $17.4 mi llion. Meanwhi le, the City's tangib le capital assets 
increased by $51.1 million, wh ich incl udes $61 .0 mi ll ion of in-kind contribut ions from development as 
conditions of re-zoning. 
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Statutory reserves (in $000s) 

Total Reserves 
2017 

$484,883 
2018 

$540,153 
2019 

$557,576 
2020 

$609,533 
2021 

$647,209 

Statutory reserves are established by Bylaw for specific purposes, mainly cap ital expenditures. 

The increase in the balance to $647.2 mi lli on is mainly attributable to the timing of these capital 
expenditures and contributions . There are annual transfers through the City's utility and operating 
budget, as wel l as through other respective entities' annual budget. Council's Long Term Financial 
Management Strategy also states that increases in transfers through the City's operating budget be 
done annually. 

Consolidated statement of operations (in $000s) 

Revenue 
Expenses 
Annual Surplus 

2021 Budget 
$575,688 

507,765 

2021 Actual 
$576,698 

473,017 

2020 Actual 
$579,052 
434,188 

$67,923 $103,681 $144,864 

The City's consolidated revenue for the year totaled $576.7 mil lion, a decrease of $2.4 million from 
2020 main ly due to a decrease in the gain on sale of land offset by revenue increases related to faci li ty 
re-open ings from the COVID-19 closures. 

Expenses increased by $38.8 mi lli on from prior year mainly due to re lated fac ility re-openings from the 
COVID-19 closures. 

The annual surplus for 2021 was $103 . 7 mil lion and represents the change in investment in tangib le 
capita l assets, reserves and other accumu lated surplus . 

Budget variance 
Consolidated revenue of $576.7M was greater than budgeted revenue by $1 .0M main ly due to: 

• $6.7M in developer cash contribut ions and $0.7M in gain on sa le of land that are not budgeted. 

• $5.7M higher than budgeted gam ing revenue mainly due to the mid-year re-open ing of the River 
Rock Casino that was previously closed due to COVID-19. 

• $2 .6M higher than budgeted payments-in-lieu of taxes due to higher than expected payments from 
other agencies. 

• $4.4M lower than budgeted sa les of services main ly due to reduced community services programs 
due to COVID-19. 

• $8.4M lower than budgeted Development Cost Charges (DCC) revenue due to the timing of capital 
expenditures. Revenue is recognized when the amounts are spent whi le the budget represents the 
2021 allocation of DCCs towards capital projects that can be spent over multip le years . 

Conso lidated expenses of $473.0M were lower than budgeted by $34.7M. The main variances incl ude: 

• $13.7M lowe1· than budgeted community services costs mainly due to reduced community services 
programming due to COVID-19 . 

• $9 .7M lower than budgeted genera l government costs due to vacant positions, realized savings due 
to lower expend itures and staff redep loyment due to COVID-1 9. 

• $3 .9M lower than budgeted community safety costs mainly due to sa lary savings relating to filling 
new f ire fighter and officer positions approved in 202 1. 

The City's conso lidated annual surplus of $103 .7 mi llion exceeded the budgeted annual surplus of 
$67.9 million by $59.6 million, prior to transfers to reserves and other accumulated surp lus. 
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Year over year change 
Consolidated revenue of $576.7M decreased by $2.4M from 2020 mainly due to: 

• an increase of $15 .BM in property taxes due to the approved rate increase and growth 1·elated to 
new development. 

• a decrease of $7.3M in other revenue main ly due to reductions in developer cash contributions of 
$2.SM and gain on sa le of land of $5.BM. 

• an increase of $6.SM in sa les of service revenue mainly due to the re-opening of faci liti es closed due 
to COVID-19. 

• a decrease of $6.4M in other cap ital funding main ly due to externa l capita l grants. 

• a decrease of $5.4M in licences and permits mainly due to building permits revenue recogn ized on 
large sca le development construction completed in 2020. 

• a decrease of $5.2M in investment income due to the low interest rate environment. 

Consolidated expenses of $473.0M increased by $38 .BM over 2020 mainly due to: 

• $10.3M increase in commun ity safety costs mainly due to pol ice contract increases and additional 
f irefighter and officer positions. 

• $9.0M increase in community services costs mainly due to the re-opening of community facilities 
closed due to COVID-19. 

Financial sustainability 
2021 saw the easing of COVID-19 challenges through the continued re-opening of commun ity 
recreation facil ities and resumption of gaming revenues from the re-opening of the River Rock Casino 
resulting in the City maintaining its excellent financial position. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jerry Chong, CPA, CA 
Acting General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services 
May 9, 2022 
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City of Richmond audited financial statements 

City of Richmond audited financial statements 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
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City of Richmond aud ited financial statements 

KPMG LLP 
PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1 K3 
Canada 
Telephone (604) 691-3000 
Fax (604) 691-3031 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Mayor and Council of the City of Richmond 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the City of Richmond (the 
"City"), which comprise: 

• the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31 , 2021 

• the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended 

• the consolidated statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then 
ended 

• the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

• and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies 

(hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the City as at December 31, 2021, and its 
consolidated results of operations, its consolidated changes in net financial assets and 
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
"Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our 
auditors' report. 

We are independent of the City in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

!(PfAG LLP an Ontario l1m1ted hab11it11 partnership and member firm of the l~PMG glob3! c,rgan1za11on of independent 
'".;.." f,;::., r,..,,., :,ff,lo:,f,:.,-1 ,, .. th l(DtAr.: lnlorn,:,hr.r-,,,.11 ,n·,,tc,sl ,:. ,.,,,.,:,t.,. i::..,,.,,1u::h rn<TI,·,,:,n, 1.,,~,10,-l 1--,., n,,::.,~nt.:.o 
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City of Richmond 
Page 2 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
City's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the City or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the City's financial 

reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 
we exercise professiona l judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia l statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion , forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal contro l. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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City of Richmond 
Page 3 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the City's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the City to cease to continue as a going concern . 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fa ir presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the group entity to express an opinion on the 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, Canada 
May 9, 2022 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

2021 2020 

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 672,031 $ 530,034 
Investments (note 3) 696,886 834,010 
Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company ("LIEC") (note 4) 33,647 32,736 
Accrued interest receivable 8,932 9,697 
Accounts receivable (note 5) 29,655 21,521 
Taxes receivable 14,157 14,419 
Development fees receivable 12,425 28,517 
Debt reserve fund - deposits (note 6) 508 508 

1,468,241 1,471,442 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 86,575 156,975 
Post-employment benefits (note 14) 37,395 35,121 
Development cost charges (note 7) 224,655 221,151 
Deposits and holdbacks (note 8) 106,041 97,445 
Deferred revenue (note 9) 56,186 49,024 
Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits (note 10) 17,386 22,741 

528,238 582,457 

Net financial assets 940,003 888,985 

Non-Financial Assets 

Tangible capital assets (note 11) 2,539,267 2,488,139 
Inventory of materials and supplies 4,696 4,285 
Prepaid expenses 3,921 2,797 

2,547,884 2,495,221 

Accumulated surplus (note 12) $ 3,487,887 $ 3,384,206 

Contingent demand notes (note 6) 
Commitments and contingencies (note 17) 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

2021 
Budget 2021 2020 

(notes 2(p) 
and 23) 

Revenue: 
Taxation and levies (note 19) $ 255,366 $ 255,837 $ 239,991 
Utility fees 117,674 118,144 114,335 
Sales of services 40,000 35,601 29,090 
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 12,142 14,789 16,820 
Provincial and federal contributions 10,855 12,704 16,953 
Development cost charges (note 7) 24,669 16,223 16,737 
Other capital funding sources 75,943 64,695 71,051 
Other revenue: 

Investment income 13,290 14,968 20,175 
Gaming revenue 5,700 2,705 
Licenses and permits 11,403 13,995 19,407 
Other (note 20) 12,808 23,131 30,466 
Equity income in LIEC (note 4) 1,538 911 1,322 

575,688 576,698 579,052 

Expenses: 
Community safety 127,108 123,232 112,895 
Utilities: water, sewer and sanitation 109,787 106,519 102,824 
Engineering, public works and project 

development 82,833 80,083 75,314 
Community services 73,610 59,873 50,833 
General government 63,976 54,249 51,495 
Planning and development 24,409 25,166 19,201 
Richmond Olympic Oval 14,844 14,079 12,586 
Richmond Public Library 11,198 9,816 9,040 

507,765 473,017 434,188 

Annual surplus 67,923 103,681 144,864 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 3,384,206 3,384,206 3,239,342 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 3,452,129 $ 3,487,887 $ 3,384,206 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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City of Richmond audited financial statements 

CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

2021 
Budget 2021 2020 

(notes 2(p) 
and 23) 

Annual surplus for the year $ 67,923 $ 103,681 $ 144,864 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (106,483) (61,150) (70,726) 
Contributed tangible capital assets (61,479) (61,004) (58,240) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 67,458 68,519 66,254 
Net loss (gain) on disposal of tangible 

capital assets 1,714 (6,136) 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 793 8,507 

(32,581) 52,553 84,523 

Acquisition of inventory of materials and supplies (4,696) (4,285) 
Acquisition of prepaid expenses (3,921) (2,797) 
Consumption of inventory of materials and supplies 4,285 2,961 
Use of prepaid expenses 2,797 2,714 

Change in net financial assets (32,581) 51,018 83,116 

Net financial assets, beginning of year 888,985 888,985 805,869 

Net financial assets, end of year $ 856,404 $ 940,003 $ 888,985 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

2021 2020 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Annual surplus $ 103,681 $ 144,864 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 68,519 66,254 
Net loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,714 (6,136) 
Contributions of tangible capital assets (61,004) (58,240) 
Equity income in LIEC (911) (1,322) 

Changes in non-cash operating working capital: 
Accrued interest receivable 765 (1,916) 
Accounts receivable (8,134) 6,886 
Taxes receivable 262 (3,386) 
Development fees receivable 16,092 (7,373) 
Inventory of materials and supplies (411) (1,324) 
Prepaid expenses (1,124) (83) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (70,400) 83,572 
Post-employment benefits 2,274 934 
Development cost charges 3,504 23,480 
Deposits and holdbacks 8,596 (19,919) 
Deferred revenue 7,162 (15,338) 

Net change in cash from operating activities 70,585 210,953 

Capital activities: 
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (61,150) (70,726) 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 793 8,507 

Net change in cash from capital activities (60,357) (62,219) 

Financing activities: 
Repayments of debt (5,355) (5,150) 

Investing activities: 
Net sale (purchase) of investments 137,124 (3,114) 

Net change in cash 141,997 140,470 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 530,034 389,564 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 672,031 $ 530,034 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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City of Richmond audited financial statements 

CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

1. Operations: 

The City of Richmond (the "City") is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British 
Columbia. The City's principal activities include the provision of local government services to 
residents of the incorporated area. These include administrative, protective, transportation, 
infrastructure, environmental, recreational, water, sewer, and drainage. 

In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health 
Organization. This resulted in governments worldwide, including the Canadian federal and 
provincial governments enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. The 
economic conditions and the City's response to the pandemic had a material impact on the City's 
operating results and financial position in 2020 and continued in 2021 affecting both revenues 
and expenses. The City temporarily closed civic facilities, including recreation and community 
centres, managed workforce challenges, including the implementation of systems and processes 
to facilitate remote work, and workforce adjustments, such as delayed hiring, reallocation of staff 
resources and temporary layoffs. The primary impact was on parks, recreation and facilities. The 
situation is still dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact on the economy 
and the financial effect on the City is not known at this time. 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

The consolidated financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting 
Board ("PSAB") of the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada. 

(a) Basis of consolidation: 

The consolidated financial statements reflect a combination of the City's General Revenue, 
General Capital and Loan, Waterworks and Sewerworks, and Reserve Funds consolidated 
with the Richmond Public Library (the "Library") and the Richmond Olympic Oval (the "Oval"). 
The Library is consolidated as the Library Board is appointed by the City. The Oval is 
consolidated as they are a wholly owned municipal corporation of the City. lnterfund 
transactions, fund balances and activities have been eliminated on consolidation. The City's 
investment in Lulu Island Energy Company ("LIEC"), a wholly owned government business 
enterprise ("GBE"), is accounted for using the modified equity method. 

(i) General Revenue Fund: 

This fund is used to account for the current operations of the City as provided for in the 
Annual Budget, including collection of taxes, administering operations, policing, and 
servicing general debt. 
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City of Richmond audited financial statements 

CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued): 

(ii) General Capital and Loan Fund: 

This fund is used to record the City's tangible capital assets and work-in-progress, 
including engineering structures such as roads and bridges, and the related debt. 

(iii) Waterworks and Sewerworks Funds: 

These funds have been established to cover the costs of operating these utilities, with 
related capital and loan funds to record the related tangible capital assets and debt. 

(iv) Reserve Funds: 

Certain funds are established by bylaws for specific purposes. They are funded primarily 
by budgeted contributions from the General Revenue Fund and developer contributions 
plus interest earned on fund balances. 

(b) Basis of accounting: 

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenue and expenses. Revenue is 
recognized in the year in which it is earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as 
they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods and services and/or the 
creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(c) Government transfers: 

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue as the 
related expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met. 
Unrestricted transfers are recognized as revenue when received or if the amount to be 
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid money market investments and 
short-term investments with maturities of less than 90 days from date of acquisition. 

(e) Investments: 

Investments are recorded at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums or discounts. 
Provisions for losses are recorded when they are considered to be other than temporary. 

(f) Investment in government business enterprises: 

Government business enterprises are recorded using the modified equity method of 
accounting. The City's investment in the GBE is recorded as the value of the GBE's 
shareholder's equity. The investment's income or loss is recognized by the City when it is 
earned by the GBE. Inter-organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated, except 
for any gains or losses on assets remaining within the City. 

City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report 26 

FIN - 37
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(g) Accounts receivable: 

Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and therefore represent 

amounts expected to be collected. 

(h) Development cost charges: 

Development cost charges are restricted by legislation to expenditures on capital 

infrastructure. These amounts are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when 

the expenditures are incurred in accordance with the restrictions. 

(i) Post-employment benefits: 

The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. As this plan is 

a multi-employee plan, contributions are expensed as incurred. 

Post-employment benefits also accrue to the City's employees. The liabilities related to these 

benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages 

and expected future salary and wage increases. The liabilities under these benefits plans are 

accrued based on projected benefits prorated as employees render services necessary to 

earn the future benefits. 

U) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in 

the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are 

not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are 

directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development, or betterment of the assets. 

The cost, less estimated residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are 

amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Asset 

Buildings and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 
Library's collections, furniture and equipment 

Useful life - years 

10 - 75 
5 - 100 

3 -40 
4 - 20 

Amortization is charged over the asset's useful life commencing when the asset is 

acquired. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for 
productive use. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

U) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the 
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(iii) Natural resources, works of art, and cultural and historic assets: 

Natural resources, works of art, and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as 
assets in the consolidated financial statements. 

(iv) Interest capitalization: 

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible 
capital asset. 

(v) Labour capitalization: 

Internal labour directly attributable to the construction, development or implementation of 
a tangible capital asset is capitalized. 

(vi) Leased tangible capital assets: 

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of 

property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are 
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as 
incurred. 

(vii) Impairment of tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer 

contribute to the City's ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future 
economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their net 
book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the consolidated 
statement of operations. 

(viii) Inventory of materials and supplies: 

Inventory is recorded at cost, net of an allowance for obsolete stock. Cost is determined 
on a weighted average basis. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(k) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave 
rise to the revenue. All revenue is recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals 
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is 
impractical. 

The City is required to act as the agent for the collection of certain taxes and fees imposed by 
other authorities. Collections for other authorities are excluded from the City's taxation 
revenue. 

(I) Property taxes: 

The City establishes property tax rates based on assessed market values provided by the 
British Columbia Assessment Authority (BCA). Market values are determined as of July 1st of 
each year. The City records taxation revenue at the time the property tax bills are issued. The 
City is entitled to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes. 

(m) Deferred revenue: 

The City defers a portion of the revenue collected from permits, licenses and other fees and 
recognizes this revenue in the year in which related inspections are performed, other related 
expenses are incurred or services are provided. 

Deferred revenue also represents funds received from external parties for specified 
purposes. This revenue is recognized in the period in which the related expenses are 
incurred. 

(n) Deposits: 

Receipts restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external 
parties are deferred and reported as deposits and are refundable under certain 
circumstances. When qualifying expenses are incurred, deposits are recognized as revenue 
at amounts equal to the qualifying expenses. 

(o) Debt: 

Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balances. 

(p) Budget information: 

Budget information, presented on a basis consistent with that used for actual results, was 
included in the City's Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) ("Consolidated 
Financial Plan") and was adopted through Bylaw No. 10239 on March 22, 2021. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(q) Contaminated sites: 

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water, or 
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material of live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard. Liabilities are recorded net of any expected recoveries. 

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive 
use and the following criteria are met: 

(i) An environmental standard exists; 

(ii) Contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 

(iii) The City is directly responsible or accepts responsibility; 

(iv) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

(v) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

The liability is recognized as management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation including 
operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy 
for a contaminated site. 

(r) Use of accounting estimates: 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. 
Areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to performing the actuarial valuation 
of employee future benefits, the value of contributed tangible capital assets, value of 
developer contributions, useful lives for amortization, determination of provisions for accrued 
liabilities, performing the actuarial valuation of employee future benefits, allowance for 
doubtful accounts, and provision for contingencies. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the 
period that the change in estimate is made, as well as in the period of settlement if the 
amount is different. 

(s) Segment disclosures: 

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for 
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of 
the standard. The City has provided definitions of segments as well as presented financial 
information in segment format. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

3. 

4. 

Investments: 

2021 2020 
Market Market 

Cost value Cost value 

Short-term notes and deposits $ 257,701 $ 257,701 $ 339,607 $ 339,695 
Government and government 

guaranteed bonds 280,063 280,802 326,838 334,579 
Other bonds 159,122 159,283 167,565 171,729 

$ 696,886 $ 697,786 $ 834,010 $ 846,003 

Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd: 

The City owns 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of LIEC, which was incorporated 

under the British Columbia Business Corporations Act on August 19, 2013. LIEC develops, 
manages and operates district energy utilities in the City of Richmond, on the City's behalf, 
including but not limited to energy production, generation or exchange, transmission, distribution, 
maintenance, marketing and sales to customers, customer service, profit generation, financial 
management and advisory services for energy and infrastructure. 

Summarized financial information relating to LIEC is as follows: 

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 
Accounts receivable 
Tangible capital assets 

Total assets 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred contributions 
Concession liability 

Total liabilities 

Shareholder's equity $ 

Total revenue $ 
Total expenses 

Net income $ 

2021 

15,755 
1,676 

39,203 

56,634 

2,672 
8,051 

12,264 

22,987 

33,647 

6,431 
5,520 

911 

2020 

$ 12,619 
3,034 

37,360 

53,013 

1,792 
7,352 

11,133 

20,277 

$ 32,736 

$ 5,591 
4,269 

$ 1,322 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

4. Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd (continued): 

5. 

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the City's consolidated statement of 
financial position are payables to LIEC in the amount of $151,454 (2020 - $323,020). 

On October 30, 2014, LIEC and the Oval Village district energy utility developer ("the 
Concessionaire") entered into a 30-year Concession Agreement, which is a public-private 
partnership project ("P3"), where the Concessionaire will design, construct, finance, operate, and 
maintain the infrastructure for the district energy utility at the Oval Village community. As part of 
the Agreement, the infrastructure will be owned by LIEC. 

On October 30, 2014, the Concessionaire and the City entered into a Limited Guarantee 
Agreement. The City is the Guarantor and guarantees the performance of some of LIEC's 
obligations under the Concession Agreement to a maximum of $18.2 million (2020 - $18.2 
million). 

Accounts receivable: 

2021 2020 

Water and sewer utilities $ 13,243 $ 11,760 
Casino revenue 2,701 
Capital grants 6,873 4,278 
Other trade receivables 6,838 5,483 

$ 29,655 $ 21,521 

6. Debt reserve fund deposits and contingent demand notes: 

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (the "MFA"). As a 
condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA in a 
Debt Reserve Fund. The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture 
whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the MFA. These demand notes are 
contingent in nature and are not reflected in the City's accounts. The details of the cash deposits 
and contingent demand notes at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 

General Revenue Fund 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

7. Development cost charges: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Contributions 
Interest 
Revenue recognized 

Balance, end of year 

8. Deposits and holdbacks: 

Balance Deposit 
December 31, contributions/ 

2020 interest earned 

Security deposits $ 74,977 $ 136,664 
Developer contributions 7,797 130 
Damage deposits 5,589 6,513 
Contract holdbacks 5,267 4,916 
Other 3,815 1,183 

$ 97,445 $ 149,406 

9. Deferred revenue: 

Balance Externally 
December 31, restricted 

2020 inflows 

Taxes and utilities $ 23,221 $ 25,116 
Building permits/development 14,117 6,846 
Oval 1,216 325 
Capital grants 2,219 7,546 
Business licenses 2,603 2,262 
Parking easement/leased land 2,431 36 
Other 3,217 312 

$ 49,024 $ 42,443 
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2021 2020 

$ 221,151 $ 197,671 
16,873 36,800 
2,854 3,417 

(16,223) (16,737) 

$ 224,655 $ 221,151 

Balance 
Refund/ December 31, 

expenditures 2021 

$ (127,545) $ 84,096 
(15) 7,912 

(6,309) 5,793 
(6,323) 3,860 

(618) 4,380 

$ (140,810) $ 106,041 

Balance 
Revenue December 31, 

earned 2021 

$ (23,221) $ 25,116 
(6,698) 14,265 

10 1,551 
(3,691) 6,074 
(2,228) 2,637 

(49) 2,418 
596 4,125 

$ (35,281) $ 56,186 

33 

FIN - 44



CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

10. Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits: 

City of Richmond audited financial statements 

The interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2021 on the principal amount of the MFA 

debenture was 3.30% (2020 - 3.30%) per annum. Interest expense incurred for the year on the 
long-term debt was $1,676,895_(2020 - $1,676,895). The maturity date of the MFA debt is April 7, 

2024. 

The City obtains debt instruments through the MFA pursuant to security issuing bylaws under 

authority of the Community Charter to finance certain capital expenditures. 

Gross amount for the debt less principal payments and actuarial adjustments to date are as 

follows: 

General Fund 

Gross 
amount 

borrowed 

$ 50,815 

Repayments 
and actuarial 
adjustments 

$ 33,429 

Net debt 
2021 

$ 17,386 

Repayments on net outstanding debt over the next four years are as follows: 

2022 
2023 
2024 

Net debt 
2020 

$ 22,741 

$ 5,570 
5,792 
6,024 

$ 17,386 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

11. Tangible capital assets: 

Balance 
December 31, 

Cost 2020 

Land $ 1,060,180 $ 
Building and building 

improvements 552,624 
Infrastructure 1,834,488 
Vehicles, machinery and 

equipment 158,164 
Library's collections, 

furniture and equipment 9,945 
Assets under construction 83,592 

$ 3,698,993 $ 

Balance 
December 31, 

Accumulated amortization 2020 

Building and building 
improvements $ 217,342 $ 

Infrastructure 884,269 
Vehicles, machinery and 

equipment 102,159 
Library's collections, 

furniture and equipment 7,084 

$ 1,210,854 $ 

Net book value 

Land 
Buildings and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 
Library's collection, furniture and equipment 
Assets under construction 

Balance, end of year 
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17,074 

33,162 
83,814 

9,851 

1,155 
(22,902) 

122,154 

Disposals 

(7,225) 
(5,352) 

(1,758) 

(390) 

(14,725) 
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Balance 
December 31, 

Disposals 2021 

$ $ 1,077,254 

(9,034) 576,752 
(5,924) 1,912,378 

(1,884) 166,131 

(390) 10,710 
60,690 

$ (17,232) $ 3,803,915 

Balance 
Amortization December 31 , 

expense 2021 

$ 19,316 $ 229,433 
37,428 916,345 

10,815 111,216 

960 7,654 

$ 68,519 $ 1,264,648 

December 31, December 31, 
2021 2020 

$ 1,077,254 $ 1,060,180 
347,319 335,282 
996,033 950,219 

54,915 56,005 
3,056 2,861 

60,690 83,592 

$ 2,539,267 $ 2,488,139 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

11. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

(a) Assets under construction: 

Assets under construction having a value of $60,690,017 (2020 - $83,592,534) have not 
been amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put into 
service. 

(b) Contributed tangible capital assets: 

Contributed tangible capital assets have been recognized at fair market value at the date of 
contribution and recorded in other capital funding revenue on the statement of operations. 
The value of contributed assets received during the year is $61,004,232 (2020 - $58,239,544) 
comprised of land in the amount of $17,281,008 (2020 - $38,682,057), infrastructure in the 
amount of $20,810,489 (2020 - $16,979,272), buildings in the amount of $22,682,598 (2020 -
$2,578,215), and machinery in the amount of $230,137 (2020 - nil). 

(c) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values: 

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized 
at a nominal value. 

(d) Works of art and historical treasures: 

The City manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical cultural 
assets including building, artifacts, paintings, and sculptures located at City sites and public 
display areas. The assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are not amortized. 

(e) Write-down of tangible capital assets: 

There were no write-down of tangible capital assets in 2021 (2020 - nil). 

12. Accumulated surplus: 

General 
and Richmond 

Reserve Waterworks Sewerworks Olympic 
Funds Utilit}'. Fund Utilit}'. Fund Oval Libra~ 2021 Total 2020 Total 

Investment in 
tangible capital $2,510,069 $ $ $ 8,503 $ 3,057 $2,521,629 $2,465,108 
assets 

Reserves (note 13) 639,109 8,100 647,209 609,533 
Appropriated surplus 223,365 18,508 9,981 1,559 2,607 256,020 253,790 
Investment in LIEC 33,647 33,647 32,736 
Surplus 16,181 408 6,295 606 1,336 24,826 18,908 
Other equity 4,556 4,556 4,131 

Balance, end of lear $3,426,927 $ 18,916 $ 16,276 $ 18,768 $ 7,000 $3,487,887 $3,384,206 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

13. Reserves: 

Balance, 
December 31, 

2020 

Affordable housing $ 12,250 
Arts, culture and heritage 3,721 
Capital building and infrastructure 111,528 
Capital reserve 222,778 
Capstan station 11,477 
Child care development 10,055 
Community legacy and land replacement 1,387 
Drainage improvement 60,597 
Equipment replacement 22,577 
Hamilton area plan community amenity 2,762 
Leisure facilities 18,097 
Local improvements 7,459 
Neighborhood improvement 7,919 
Oval 7,810 
Public art program 4,582 
Sanitary sewer 48,903 
Steveston off-street parking 331 
Steveston road ends 153 
Waterfront improvement 195 
Watermain replacement 54,952 

$ 609,533 

14. Post-employment benefits: 

City of Richmond audited financial statements 

Balance, 
Change December 31, 

during year 2021 

$ 2,043 $ 14,293 
(195) 3,526 

11,192 122,720 
21,667 244,445 

(328) 11,149 
23 10,078 
71 1,458 

(3,438) 57,159 
2,629 25,206 

245 3,007 
873 18,970 
112 7,571 
118 8,037 
290 8,100 

(177) 4,405 
708 49,611 

5 336 
2 155 

(8) 187 
1,844 56,796 

$ 37,676 $ 647,209 

The City provides certain post-employment benefits, non-vested sick leave, compensated 

absences, and termination benefits to its employees. 

2021 2020 

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 35,414 $ 35,184 
Current service cost 2,644 2,446 
Interest cost 728 853 
Past service cost 992 
Benefits paid (2,035) (2,262) 
Actuarial gain (2,419) (807) 

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 35,324 $ 35,414 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

14. Post-employment benefits (continued): 

An actuarial valuation for these benefits was performed to determine the City's accrued benefit 
obligation as at December 31, 2020. This actuarial loss is being amortized over a period equal to 

the employees' expected average remaining service lifetime of 11 years. 

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 
Unamortized net actuarial gain (loss) 

Accrued benefit liability, end of year 

2021 

$ 35,324 
2,071 

$ 37,395 

2020 

$ 35,414 
(293) 

$ 35,121 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the City's accrued benefit obligation are as follows: 

Discount rate 
Expected future inflation rate 
Expected wage and salary range increases 

15. Pension plan: 

2021 

2.40% 
2.00% 

2.50% to 3.00% 

2020 

2.00% 
2.00% 

2.50% to 3.00% 

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension 
plan). The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for 
administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is 
a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As 

at December 31, 2020, the plan has about 220,000 active members and approximately 112,000 
retired members. Active members include approximately 42,000 contributors from local 
governments. 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan 
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and 

member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on 

the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer 
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may 
be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the 

amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability. 
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Year ended December 31, 2021 

15. Pension plan (continued): 

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2018, indicated a 
$2,866 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. 

The City paid $14,125,356 (2020 - $13,343,310) for employer contributions while employees 
contributed $11 , 777,413 (2020 - $11 , 199,779) to the plan in fiscal 2021 . 

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021, with results available in 2022. 

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, 
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to 
individual employers participating in the plan. 

16. Contingent assets and contractual rights: 

(a) Contingent assets: 

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving 
uncertainty. That uncertainty will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events not 
wholly within the City's control occurs or fails to occur. 

The City has legal claims, service agreements, and land dedications that may qualify as 
contingent assets. Amounts cannot be estimated as of December 31, 2021. Contingent 
assets are not recorded in the consolidated financial statements. 

(b) Contractual rights: 

The City has entered into contracts or agreements in the normal course of operations that it 
expects will result in revenue and assets in future fiscal years. The City's contractual rights 
are comprised of leases, licenses, grants and various other agreements, including the 
provision of police services with the Vancouver Airport Authority. The following table 
summarizes the expected revenue from the City's contractual rights: 

2022 $ 27,333 
2023 11,110 
2024 3,671 
2025 2,393 
2026 401 
Thereafter 7,988 

The City is entitled to receive revenue from certain other agreements. The revenue from 
these agreements cannot be quantified and has not been included in the amounts noted 
above. 
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Year ended December 31, 2021 

17. Commitments and contingencies: 

(a) Joint and several liabilities: 

The City has a contingent liability with respect to debentures of the Greater Vancouver Water 

District, Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District and Metro Vancouver Regional 
District, to the extent provided for in their respective Enabling Acts, Acts of Incorporation and 
Amending Acts. Management does not consider payment under this contingency to be likely 

and therefore no amounts have been accrued. 

(b) Lease payments: 

The City is committed to operating lease payments for premises and equipment in the 
following approximate amounts: 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 and thereafter 

(c) Litigation: 

$ 2,670 
2,657 
2,487 
2,487 
3,542 

As at December 31, 2021, there were a number of claims or risk exposures in various stages 

of resolution. The City has made no specific provision for those where the outcome is 

presently not determinable. 

(d) Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia ("Association"): 

The City is a participant in the Association. Should the Association pay out claims in excess 

of premiums received, it is possible that the City, along with other participants, would be 
required to contribute towards the deficit. Management does not consider external payment 
under this contingency to be likely and therefore, no amounts have been accrued. 

(e) Contractual obligation: 

The City has entered into various contracts for services and construction with periods ranging 
beyond one year. These commitments are in accordance with budgets passed by Council. 
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17. Commitments and contingencies (continued): 

(f) E-Comm Emergency Communications for Southwest British Columbia Incorporated 
("E- Comm"): 

The City is a shareholder of the E-Comm whose services provided include: regional 9-1-1 call 
centre for the Greater Vancouver Regional District; Wide Area Radio network; dispatch 
operations; and records management. The City has 2 Class A shares and 1 Class B share (of 
a total of 36 Class A and 19 Class B shares issued and outstanding as at December 31, 
2021 ). As a Class A shareholder, the City shares in both funding the future operations and 

capital obligations of E-Comm (in accordance with a cost sharing formula), including any 
lease obligations committed to by E-Comm up to the shareholder's withdrawal date. 

(g) Community associations: 

The City has agreements with the various community associations which operate the 
community centers throughout the City. The City generally provides the buildings and 

grounds, pays the operating costs of the facilities, and provides certain staff and other 
services such as information technology. Typically the community associations are 
responsible for providing programming and services to the community. The community 
associations retain all revenue which they receive. 

18. Trust funds: 

Certain assets have been conveyed or assigned to the City to be administered as directed by 
agreement or statute. The City holds the assets for the benefit of and stands in fiduciary 
relationship to the beneficiary. The following trust fund is excluded from the City's consolidated 
financial statements. 

2021 2020 

Richmond Community Associations $ 1,928 $ 1,909 
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19. Taxation and levies: 

Taxes collected: 
Property taxes 
Payment-in-lieu of taxes and grants 
Local improvement levies 

Less transfers to other authorities: 
Province of British Columbia - School taxes 
Translink 
Metro Vancouver 
BC Assessment Authority 
Other 

Less payment-in-lieu of taxes retained by the City 

20. Other revenue: 

Developer contributions 
Tangible capital assets gain on sale of land 
Penalties and fines 
Parking program 
Other 

City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report 
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2021 2020 

$ 496,172 $ 413,302 
24,326 22,375 

84 88 

520,582 435,765 

(192,631) (123,333) 
(42,926) (41,992) 

(8,029) (7,267) 
(6,297) (6,286) 

(30) (29) 

(249,913) (178,907) 

(14,832) (16,867) 

$ 255,837 $ 239,991 

2021 2020 

$ 6,580 $ 9,044 
722 6,513 

4,210 3,180 
1,343 1,204 

10,276 10,525 

$ 23,131 $ 30,466 
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Year ended December 31, 2021 

21. Government transfers: 

Government transfers are received for operating and capital activities. The operating transfers 
consist of gaming revenue and provincial and federal contributions. Capital transfers are included 
in other capital funding sources revenue. The source of the government transfers are as follows: 

2021 2020 

Operating 
Province of British Columbia $ 12,590 $ 17,534 
Translink 3,815 546 
Government of Canada 1,999 1,579 

Capital 
Province of British Columbia 6,069 9,965 
Translink 2,947 2,125 
Government of Canada 567 

$ 27,987 $ 31,749 

22. Segmented reporting: 

The City provides a wide variety of services to its residents. For segment disclosure, these 
services are grouped and reported under service areas/departments that are responsible for 
providing such services. They are as follows: 

(a) Community Safety brings together the City's public safety providers such as Police (RCMP), 
Fire-Rescue, Emergency Programs, and Community Bylaws. It is responsible for ensuring 
safe communities by providing protection services with a focus on law enforcement, crime 
prevention, emergency response, and protection of life and properties. 

(b) Utilities provide such services as planning, designing, constructing, operating, and 
maintaining the City's infrastructure of water, sewer, drainage and diking networks and 
sanitation and recycling. 

(c) Engineering, Public Works and Project Development comprises of General Public Works, 
Roads and Construction, Storm Drainage, Fleet Operations, Engineering, Project 
Development, and Facility Management. The services provided are construction and 
maintenance of the City's infrastructure and all City owned buildings, maintenance of the 
City's road networks, managing and operating a mixed fleet of vehicles, heavy equipment 
and an assortment of specialized work units for the City operations, development of current 
and long-range engineering planning and construction of major projects. 
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Year ended December 31, 2021 

22. Segmented reporting (continued): 

(d) Community Services comprises of Parks, Recreation, Arts, and Culture and Heritage 
Services. These departments ensure recreation opportunities in Richmond by maintaining a 
variety of facilities such as arenas, community centres, pools, etc. It designs, constructs and 
maintains parks and sports fields to ensure there is adequate open green space and sports 
fields available for Richmond residents. It also addresses the economic, arts, culture, and 
community issues that the City encounters. 

(e) General Government comprises of Mayor and Council, Corporate Administration, and 
Finance and Corporate Services. It is responsible for adopting bylaws, effectively 
administering city operations, levying taxes, legal services, providing sound management of 
human resources, information technology, City finance, and ensuring high quality services to 
Richmond residents. 

(f) Planning and Development is responsible for land use plans, developing bylaws and 
policies for sustainable development in the City including the City's transportation systems, 
and community social development. 

(g) Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation is formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of the City. 
The City uses the Richmond Olympic Oval facility as a venue for a wide range of sports, 
business and community activities. 

(h) Richmond Public Library provides public access to information by maintaining 5 branches 
throughout the City. 
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(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

22. Segmented reporting (continued): 

Engineering, 
public works 

Community and project 
safe~ Utilities develoement 

Revenue: 

Taxation and levies $ $ $ 
User fees 104,864 13,280 
Sales of services 6,294 2,577 2,169 
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 
Provincial and federal grants 103 15 4,103 
Development cost charges 795 4,801 

Other capital funding sources 5,754 12,816 
Other revenue: 

Investment income 272 
Gaming revenue 
Licenses and permits 4,429 32 588 
Other 2,239 3,774 953 
Equity income 

13,066 118,083 38,710 

Expenses: 

Wages and salaries 50,092 14,609 27,679 
Public works maintenance 31 6,707 4,906 
Contract services 66,373 9,840 4,547 

Supplies and materials 3,028 37,317 1,226 

Interest and finance 91 27,494 10 
Transfer from (to) capital for (54) 1,909 9,438 

tangible capital assets 
Amortization of tangible 3,025 8,626 31,645 
capital assets 
Loss (gain) on disposal of 646 17 632 

tangible caQital assets 
123,232 106,519 80,083 

Annual surelus jdeficit! $ p 10, 166l $ 11,564 $ (41,373l 
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Community General Planning and Total City 
services government develoement subtotal 

$ $ 255,837 $ $ 255,837 
118,144 

7,630 9,365 2,091 30,126 
14,789 14,789 

49 4,044 85 8,399 
3,319 2,202 5,106 16,223 
2,054 17,281 26,789 64,695 

14,682 14,954 
5,700 5,700 

47 8,899 13,995 
626 13,952 260 21,804 

911 
911 

13,678 338,810 43,230 565,577 

30,710 29,025 12,447 164,562 
2,038 (1,473) 788 12,997 
2,166 3,910 1,923 88,759 

10,194 9,821 1,008 62,594 
123 2,576 2 30,296 

3,383 758 6,206 21,640 

10,249 9,517 2,758 65,820 

1,010 115 34 2,454 

59,873 54,249 25,166 449,122 

$ (46,195l $ 284,561 $ 18,064 $ 116,455 
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22. Segmented reporting (continued): 

Total City 
subtotal 

Revenue: 

Taxation and levies $ 255,837 
User fees 118,144 
Sales of services 30,126 
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 14,789 
Provincial and federal grants 8,399 
Development cost charges 16,223 
Other capital funding sources 64,695 
Other revenue: 

Investment income 14,954 
Gaming revenue 5,700 
Licenses and permits 13,995 

Other 21,804 
E uit income 911 

565,577 

Expenses: 

Wages and salaries 164,562 
Public works maintenance 12,997 
Contract services 88,759 
Supplies and materials 62,594 
Interest and finance 30,296 
Transfer from (to) capital for 
tangible capital assets 21,640 

Amortization of tangible capital 
assets 65,820 

Loss (gain) on disposal of 
tangible ca~ital assets 2,454 

449,122 

Annual surelus jdeficitl $ 116,455 
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Richmond Richmond 
Public Olympic 2021 2020 

Libra~ Oval Consolidated Consolidated 

$ $ $ 255,837 $ 239,991 
118,144 114,335 

16 5,459 35,601 29,090 
14,789 16,820 

377 3,928 12,704 16,953 
16,223 16,737 
64,695 71,051 

14 14,968 20,175 
5,700 2,705 

13,995 19,407 
191 1,136 23,131 30,466 

911 1,322 
598 10,523 576,698 579,052 

7,156 8,789 180,507 164,788 
19 13,016 13,343 

327 89,086 81,642 
1,911 3,551 68,056 64,437 

5 30,301 29,779 

(544) 21,096 13,568 

960 1,739 68,519 66,254 

(18) 2,436 377 
9,816 14,079 473,017 434,188 

$ !9,218! $ !3,556! $ 103,681 $ 144,864 
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(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

23. Budget data: 

The budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements is based on the 
Consolidated Financial Plan adopted by Council on March 22, 2021. The table below reconciles 

the adopted Consolidated Financial Plan to the budget amounts reported in these consolidated 

financial statements. 

Consolidated financial plan: 
Revenue 
Expenses 

Annual surplus 

Less: 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Contributed tangible capital assets 
Transfer to reserves 
Debt principal 

Add: 
Capital funding 
Transfer from surplus 

Annual surplus 
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Financial 
plan 

Bylaw No. 10239 

$ 575,688 

$ 

507,765 

67,923 

(272,899) 
(61,479) 
(64,560) 

(5,355) 

316,724 
19,646 

Financial 
statement 

budget 

$ 575,688 
507,765 

67,923 

$ 67,923 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
Unaudited Statement of Safe Restart Grant 
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

The Safe Restart Grant was received November 2020 from the Province of British Columbia. A 
requirement of the Safe Restart Grant is to include a schedule to the financial statements presenting 
the amount of funding received, use of funds and year end balance of unused funds. This schedule 
has been included in order to comply with the conditions of the grant. 

2021 2020 

Safe Restart Grant received $ $ 9,331 

Total eligible costs incurred: 
Recreation facility revenue shortfall 3,372 
City grants program 2,613 
Gaming revenue shortfall 1,300 
Other revenue shortfall 1,034 
Equipment technology 1,012 

Balance, end of year $ $ 9,331 
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City of Richmond population 2012-2021 

201 2 

201 3 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

201 8 

201 9 

2020 

2021 

190,000 200,000 

Numbers were revised for 2019-restated based on BC Stats estimates. 
Source: BC Stats population figures 

Total population by age groups 

85 years and over 

65 to 84 years 

15 to 64 years 

0 to 14 yea rs 

210,000 

67% 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 

Source: Statistics Canada, 202 1 Census of Population 
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Immigrant status of Richmond residents by period of immigration 

Non-permanent 
residents 

3% 

Immigrated 
2011 -2016 

8% 

17% 

Source: Statistics Canada, 2016 Census of Population 

Immigrated 
before 1991 

16% 

20% 

Language spoken most often at home 

English , 46% 

Source: Statistics Canada, 2016 Census of Population 

City of Richmond 202 1 Annua l Report 

Other languages, 
16% 
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Highest level of education attained for the population aged 25 to 64 

University certificate, diploma or degree at bachelor's level or above 

High school certificate or equivalent 

College, CEGEP or other non-university certificate or diploma 

No certificate, diploma or degree 

University certificate or diploma below the bachelor level 

Apprenticeship or trades certificate or diploma 

0% 

Source: Statistics Canada, 2016 Census of Population 

Occupations of Richmond residents 
Sales and service 

Business, finance, administration 

Management 

Education, law and social, community and government 

Trades, transport, equipment operators and related 

Natural and applied sciences and related 

Health 5% 

Art, culture, recreation , sport 3% 

Manufacturing and utilities 3% 

Natural resources, agriculture and related production 

0% 5% 

Source: Statistics Canada, 20 7 6 Census of Population 
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41% 

25% 

17% 

10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 

30% 

19% 

13% 

9% 

9% 

8% 

10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 
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Top 10 largest employers in Richmond (in alphabetical order) 
• Air Canada 
• Allied Universa l 
• Amazon Canada 
• Change Hea lthca re 
• City of Richmond 

• London Drugs 
• MDA Systems 
• River Rock Casino Resort 
• School District No. 38 (Richmond) 
• Vancouver Coasta l Health 

Housing starts in Richmond 2012-2021 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 

Includes only projects for new residential construction receiving final building permit in given year. 
Source. City of Richmond building permit records. 
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Richmond housing starts by type of units 2021 

Apart ment 
91 % 

Single fam ily 
6% 

Townhouse 
3% 

Includes only projects for new residential construction receiving final building permit in given year. 
Source: City of Richmond building permit records 

New dwelling units constructed 2012-2021 

3,000 
2,833 

2,500 

2,000 
1,784 1,811 

1,701 1,712 
1,580 

1,500 
1,485 

972 
1,000 

500 

0 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

• Apartment 1108 2204 1158 1246 863 372 1321 1313 
• Single Family * 343 265 325 368 368 404 284 364 
• Townhouse 129 364 218 170 254 196 107 134 

* Includes one family and two family dwellings. 

Includes only projects for new residential construction receiving final building permit in given year. 
Source: City of Richmond building permit records 
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1,689 

1,358 

2020 2021 
1345 970 
194 201 
150 187 
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City of Ri chmond statist ica l data 

Construction value of building permits issued 2012-2021 (in $000s) 
$1,200,000 

$1 ,000,000 
983,389 981 ,132 

$800,000 

$600,000 

$400,000 

$200 ,000 

$O 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

• Industrial ($000) $26,21 0 $35,560 $20,789 $80,884 $29,115 $65,098 $62,171 $66,189 $76,282 $83,217 

• Commercial ($000) $64,134 $42,268 $63,231 $191,303 $181,952 $90,927 $116,709 $255,823 $86,398 $179,870 

• Residential ($000) $366,356 $601,407 $391,574 $711,202 $504,669 $553,079 $700,419 $659,121 $554,465 $456,015 

Source: City of Richmond building permit records 

Richmond business licences 2017-2021 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 

Number of valid business licences 

Source: 2021 City of Richmond business licences 
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City of Richmond budgeted capital costs 
2017-2021 (in $000s) 

$250,000 

$200,000 

172,797 

$150,000 

122,659 
119,863 

$100,000 

$50,000 

$0 
2017 2018 2019 

• New Capital $52,140 $102,327 $59,958 

• Replacement Capital $42,564 $54,292 $37,627 

• Other Capital $27,955 $16,178 $22,278 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Capital program by type 2021 

Building 
program 

51 % 

Land and 
parks prog ram 

21% 

Equipment 
prog1·am 

4% 

Infrastructure 
program 

24% 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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222,963 

173,379 

2020 2021 

$89,290 $67,297 

$69,587 $143,263 

$14,502 $12,403 
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Breakdown of residential tax bill 2021 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

BC Assessment 
1% 

/ Translink 

/ 9% 

Metro Vancouver 
2% 

Registration in Richmond Recreation and 
Cultural Services programs 2017-2021 

150,000 146,428 145,841 145,435 

125,000 

100,000 

75,000 

50,000 

25 ,000 

0 
2017 2018 2019 2020* 2021 

* 2020 figure has been restated 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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City of Richmond statistical data 

2021 tax rates 
School -

City of Province of Metro BC 
Richmond BC Vancouver Assessment 

Residential 1.85381 1.14900 0.05473 

Business 4.56788 3.86000 0.13409 

Light industrial 4.56788 3.86000 0.18609 

Seasonal/ Recreationa l 1.58020 2.33000 0.05473 

Major industrial 8.36729 1.54400 0.18609 

Farm 15.31813 3.45500 0.05473 

Utilities 39.95085 12.86000 0.19156 

Source. City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

2021 general revenue fund assessment and 
taxation by property class (in $000s) 

% of assessment 
Assessment by class 

Residential $78,838,953 76.84% 

Business 18,856,561 18.38% 

Light industrial 4,286,605 4.18% 

Seasonal/ Recreat ional 213,776 0.21% 

Major industrial 336,999 0.33% 

Farm 26,044 0.02% 

Utilities 41,633 0.04% 

0.04110 

0.11370 

0.11370 

0.04110 

0.47310 

0.04110 

0.47310 

Municipal 
Finance 

Authority 

0.00020 

0.00050 

0.00070 

0.00020 

0.00070 

0.00020 

0.00070 

Taxation 

$146,152 

86,135 

19,581 

338 

2,820 

399 

1,663 

Total $102,600,571 100.00% $257,088 

Amounts are based on billing. 
Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Taxes levied on behalf of taxing authorities (in $000s) 

2017 2018 2019 2020 

City of Richmond $207,802 $216,908 $231,100 $241,739 

School Board 162,120 169,005 181,863 121,559 

Metro Vancouver 5,216 5,915 6,922 9,145 

BC Assessment 5,517 5,737 5,894 6,008 

Translink 34,380 35,991 38,863 40,189 

Other 23 26 29 116 

Total Taxes $415,058 $433,582 $464,671 $418,756 

Amounts are less supplementary adjustments. 
Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report 

Translink 

0.25860 

0.86900 

0.93930 

0.18880 

1.52540 

0.35630 

2.36290 

% of taxation 
by class 

56.85% 

33.50% 

7.62% 

0.13% 

1.09% 

0.16% 

0.65% 

100.00% 

2021 

$257,088 

186,528 

11,146 

6,088 

41,576 

112 

$502,538 

58 

FIN - 69



City of Richmond stati st ica l data 

2017-2021 general assessment by property class (in $000s) 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Residential $73,414,252 $80,530,838 $84,391, 147 $75,895,923 $78,838,953 

Business 13,093,222 15,848,533 18,964,170 19,613,458 18,856,561 

Light industrial 2,624,855 2,998,757 3,528,011 3,850,127 4,286,605 

Seasonal/ recreational 183,360 200,893 221,291 211,659 213,776 

Major industrial 215,246 204,542 259,457 289,800 336,999 

Farm 26,566 26,297 26,166 26,103 26,044 

Ut ilities 26,541 29,250 35,869 55,674 41,633 

Total $89,584,042 $99,839,110 $107,426,111 $99,942,744 $102,600,571 

Source. City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Top 10 corporate taxpayers in Richmond 

Port Authority tenants 

YVR tenants 

7904185 Canada Inc 

Bontebok Holdings Ltd 

Vanprop Investments Ltd 

Lafarge Canada Inc 

Montrose Industries Ltd 

Farrell Estates Ltd 

Great Canadian Gaming Corp 

Goodwyn Enterprises (2015) Ltd 

$- $2,000,000 $4,000,000 $6,000,000 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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Debt servicing costs compared to general 
taxation revenue 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017 2018 

Debt servicing costs 5,909 5,909 

General taxation revenue $206,901 $216,908 

Debt servicing costs as a % of general 2.86% 2.72% 
taxation revenue 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Liability servicing limit 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017 2018 

Liability servicing limit $107,316 $114,285 

2019 

6,628 

$230,198 

2.88% 

2019 

$117,239 

The liability servicing limit is a calculated amount based on 25% of specific munic,pal revenues. 
Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

City of Richmond debt per capita 2017-2021 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

50.00 100.00 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Net debt 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

Net debt 

2017 

$37,603 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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150.00 

179.00 

2018 

$32,842 

200.00 

2019 

$27,89 1 

City of Richmond statistical data 

2020 

6,826 

$239,991 

2.84% 

2020 

$113,768 

2020 

$22, 741 

2021 

7,032 

$25 5,837 

2.75% 

2021 

$113,663 

2021 

$17,386 
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City of Richmond statisti ca l data 

Expenses by function 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Community Safety $89,933 $98,500 $106,209 $112,895 $123,232 

Engineering and Public Works 66,120 68, 793 80,940 75,314 80,083 

Community Services 77,387* 63,882 67,522 50,833 59,873 

Genera l government 51,720 52,549 55,689 51,495 54,249 

Ut ilities 87,757 89,959 98,653 102,824 106,519 

Plann ing and Development 15,417 15,368 48,104** 19,201 25,166 

Library serv ices 9,619 9,981 10,601 9,040 14,079 

Richmond Olympic Ova l 15,331 15,424 15,972 12,586 9,816 

Total expenses $41 3,284 $414,456 $483,690 $434, 188 $473,017 

* Includes one-time affordable housing contributions. 
** Includes one-time Translink contribution for Capstan Station. 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Expenses by object 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Wages, sa laries and benefits $159,576 $162,331 $177,363 $164,788 $180,507 

Public works maintenance 14,973 13,405 15,299 13,343 13,016 

Contract serv ices 64,912 73,479 79,098 81,642 89,086 

Suppl ies, mater ials 65,959 67,919 68,801 64,437 68,056 

Interest and f inance 23,216 23,149 26,089 29,779 30,301 

Transfer from (to) capita l for 
25,712 13,307 52,244 13,568 21,096 

tangib le capita l assets 

Amortizat ion of tangib le capita l 
58,012 60,542 64,228 66,254 68,519 

assets 

Loss/(gain) on disposa l of 
924 324 568 377 2,436 

tangib le cap ita l assets 

Total expenses $413,284 $414,456 $483,690 $434,188 $473,017 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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City of Richmond stat istica l data 

Revenue by source 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Taxation and levies $206,901 $216,908 $230,198 $239,991 $255,837 

User fees 99,493 102,915 111,472 114,335 118,144 

Sales of services 39,430 39,111 42,747 29,090 35,601 

Licences and permits 13,011 13,637 13,030 19,407 13,995 

Investment income 17,832 20,705 25,142 20,175 14,968 

Grants including casino revenue 40,676 42,681 42,104 16,953 18,404 

Development cost charges 15,710 17,432 13,802 16,737 15,223 

Capital funding 57,570 95,859 39,028 71,051 64,695 

Other 32,544 50,169 64,419 51,313 39,831 

Total revenue $523,167 $599,417 $581 ,942 $579,052 $576,698 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Accumulated surplus 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017* 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Accumulated su rplus, beginning of year $2,846,246 $2,956,129 $3, 141,090 $3,239,342 $3,384,206 

Annual surplus 109,883 184,961 98,252 144,864 103,681 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $2,956,129 $3,141 ,090 $3,239,342 $3,384,206 $3,487,887 

* Opening adjustment for change in accounting treatment for a government business enterprise. 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Changes in net financial assets 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Change in net financial assets $3 5,351 $65,031 $42,748 $83,116 $5 1,018 

Net financial assets, end of year $698,090 $763,121 $805,869 $888,985 $940,003 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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City of Richmond statistica l data 

Reserves 2017-2021 (in $000s) 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Affordable housing $10,168 $10,836 $11,705 $12,250 $14,293 

Arts, culture and heritage 4,183 4,003 3,726 3,721 3,526 

Capital bui lding and 
69,731 81,763 100,686 111,528 122,720 

infrastructure 

Capital reserve 163,599 176,142 171,976 222,778 244,445 

Capstan Station 19,725 32,332 32,318 11,477 11,149 

Child care development 3,006 6,806 8,922 10,055 10,078 

Community legacy and land 
8,623 8,852 1,310 1,387 1,458 

replacement 

Drainage improvement 56,956 56,132 55,645 60,597 57,159 

Equipment rep lacement 22, 168 19,600 20,203 22,577 25,206 

Hami lton area plan community 
735 752 1,720 2, 762 3,007 

amen ity 

Leisure facilities 6,765 18,765 17,676 18,097 18,970 

Local improvements 6,047 7,155 7,327 7,459 7,571 

Neighbourhood improvement 7,100 7,520 7,860 7,919 8,037 

Richmond Olympic Oval 4,749 6,324 8,856 7,810 8,100 

Pub lic art program 3,861 4,860 4,858 4,582 4,405 

Sanitary sewer 42,909 44,107 47,731 48,903 49,611 

Steveston off-street park ing 310 317 325 331 336 

Steveston road ends 21 1 155 150 153 155 

Wat erfront improvement 344 317 202 195 187 

Watermain rep lacement 53,693 53,415 54,380 54,952 56,796 

Tota l reserves $484,883 $540,1 53 $557,576 $609,533 $647,209 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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City of Richmond stati st ica l data 

Investment portfolio per type 2020-2021 (in $000s) 
$900,000 

$750,000 

$600,000 

$450,000 

$300,000 

$150,000 

$-

Short-term notes 
and deposits 

• 2020 $339,607 

• 2021 $257,701 

Government and 
Government 
Guaranteed 

Bonds 

$326,838 

$280,063 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

MFA pooled 
investments 

Other bonds 

$167,565 

$159,122 

Ratio analysis indicators of financial condition 

Sustainabi lity ratios 

Assets to liab ili ties (times) 

Financial assets to liabiliti es (times) 

Net debt to total revenues 

Net debt to the tota l assessment 

Expenses to the total assessment 

Flexibility ratios 

Public debt charges to revenues 

Net book va lue of capita l assets t o its cost 

Own source revenue to the assessment 

Vulnerability ratios 

Government transfers to total revenues 

Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 
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2021 

7.6 

2.8 

3.0% 

0.02% 

0.5% 

0.3% 

66.8% 

0.5% 

3.2% 

Total Investments 

$834,010 

$696,886 

2020 

6.8 

2. 5 

3.9% 

0.02% 

0.6% 

0.3% 

67 .3% 

0.5% 

3.4% 
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City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions 

2021 permissive property tax exemptions 
In accordance w ith Section 98 (2)(b) of the Commun ity Charter, we disclose that the following 
properties were provided permissive property tax exemptions by Richmond City Counci l in 2021. 
Permissive tax exemptions are those exemptions granted by bylaw in accordance w ith Section 224 
of the Community Charter. 

Property/ Organization 

Churches and religious properties 

Aga Khan Foundation Canada 

BC Muslim Associat ion 

Bakerview Gospel Chapel 

Beth Tikvah Congregation 

Bethany Baptist Church 

Brighouse United Church 

Broadmoor Baptist Church 

Canadian Martyrs Parish 

Christian and Missionary All iance 

Christian Reformed Church 

Church in Richmond 

Church of Latter Day Saints 

Cornerstone Evangelical Baptist Chu rch 

Dharma Drum Mountain Buddhist Temple 

Emmanuel Christian Community 

Faith Evangelical Church 

Fraserview Mennonite Brethren Church 

Fujian Evangelical Church 

Gi lmore Park United Church 

I Kuan Tao (Fayi Chungder) Association 

Immanuel Christian Reformed Chu rch 

India Cultural Centre 

International Buddhist Society 

Johrei Fellowship Inc. 

Lansdowne Congregation Jehova h's W itnesses 

Larch St. Gospel Meeting Room 

Ling Yen Mounta in Temple 

Nanaksar Gurdwara Gursikh Temple 

North Richmond A lliance Church 

Ou r Savior Lutheran Church 

Parish of St. Alban's 

City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report 

Address 

4000 May Drive 

12300 Blundell Road 

8991 Francis Road 

97 11 Geal Road 

22680 Westminster Highway 

81 51 Ben nett Road 

8140 Saunders Road 

577 1 Granville Avenue 

3360 Sexm ith Road 

9280 No. 2 Road 

4460 Brown Road 

8440 Williams Road 

12011 Blundell Road 

8240 No. 5 Road 

10351 No. 1 Road 

11 960 Montego Street 

11 295 Mellis Drive 

12200 Blundell Road 

8060 No. 1 Road 

8866 Od lin Crescent 

7600 No. 4 Road 

8600 No. 5 Road 

9160 Steveston Highway 

10380 Od lin Road 

11014 Westm inster Highway 

8020 No. 5 Road 

1 0060 No. 5 Road 

18691 Westminster Highway 

9140 Granville Avenue 

6340 No . 4 Road 

7260 St. Albans Road 

2021 Municipal 
tax exempted 

$ 16,843 

2,127 

2,840 

17,029 

6, 127 

14,981 

9,885 

22,955 

11,988 

20,360 

2,764 

19,386 

676 

1,143 

9,337 

3,868 

6,143 

2,942 

3,526 

3,752 

3,325 

2,901 

4,634 

6,644 

2,892 

2,439 

5,230 

2,375 

5,230 

3,203 

15,208 
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City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions 

Churches and religious properties conitnued ... 

Patterson Road Assembly 9291 Walford Street $ 1,150 

Peace Evangelical Church 8280 No. 5 Road 1, 155 

Peace Mennonite Church 11571 Daniels Road 13,625 

Richmond Alliance Church 11371 No. 3 Road 2,340 

Richmond Baptist Church 6560 Blundell Road 3,624 

Richmond Baptist Church 6640 Blundell Road 12,035 

Richmond Bethel Mennonite Church 10160 No. 5 Road 3,962 

Richmond Chinese Alliance Church 10100 No. 1 Road 15,028 

Richmond Chinese Evangelical Free Church 8040 No. 5 Road 2,371 

Richmond Emmanuel Church 7451 Elmbridge Way 6,514 

Richmond Pentecostal Church 9260 Westminster Highway 1,810 

Richmond Pentecostal Church 9300 Westminster Highway 3,090 

Richmond Presbyterian Church 7111 No. 2 Road 11,873 

Richmond Sea Island United Church 8711 Cambie Road 20,617 

Salvation Army Church 8280 Gilbert Road 3,764 

Science of Spirituality SKRM Inc. 11011 Shell Road 1,263 

Shia Muslim Community 8580 No. 5 Road 1,814 

South Arm United Church 11 051 No. 3 Road 1, 117 

St. Anne's Anglican Church 4071 Francis Road 6,295 

St. Gregory Armenian Apostolic Church 13780 Westminster Highway 1,064 

St. Joseph the Worker Roman Catholic Church 4451 Williams Road 43,165 

St. Monica's Roman Catholic Church 12011 Woodhead Road 8,290 

St. Paul's Roman Catholic Parish 8251 St. Albans Road 16,425 

Steveston Buddhist Temple 4360 Garry Street 17,775 

Steveston Congregation Jehovah's Witnesses 4260 Williams Road 10,587 

Steveston United Church 3720 Broadway Street 4,404 

Subramaniya Swamy Temple 8840 No. 5 Road 1,470 

Thrangu Monastery Association 8140 No. 5 Road 3,565 

Thrangu Monastery Association 8160 No. 5 Road 1,502 

Towers Baptist Church 10311 Albion Road 10,593 

Trinity Lutheran Church 7100 Granville Avenue 16,414 

Trinity Pacific Church 10011 No. 5 Road 7,422 

Ukrainian Catholic Church 8700 Railway Avenue 3,666 

Vancouver International Buddhist Progress Society 6690 - 8181 Cambie Road 10,719 

Vancouver International Buddhist Progress Society 8271 Cambie Road 11,597 

Vedic Cultural Society of BC 8200 No. 5 Road 3,447 

West Richmond Gospel Hall 5651 Francis Road 4,630 
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City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions 

Recreation, child care and community service properties 

Atira Women's Resource Society 650 - 5688 Hollybridge Way $ 6,599 

Cook Road Children's Centre 8300 Cook Road 1,892 

Cranberry Children's Centre 23591 Westminster Highway 5,792 

Gardens Children's Centre 1 0640 No. 5 Road 4,639 

Girl Guides of Canada 4780 Blundell Road 6,050 

Girl Guides of Canada 11551 Dyke Road 31,146 

Navy League of Canada 7 411 River Road 8,435 

Regional Animal Protection Society 12071 No. 5 Road 18,058 

Richmond Caring Place 7000 Minoru Boulevard 99,846 

Richmond Family Place 8660 Ash Street 6,691 

Richmond Lawn Bowling Club 6131 Bowling Green Road 35,634 

Richmond Gymnastics Association 140 - 7 400 River Road 13,999 

Richmond Public Library 11580 Cambie Road 3,748 

Richmond Public Library 11688 Steveston Highway 4,198 

Richmond Rod and Gun Club 7760 River Road 30,752 

Richmond Rod and Gun Club 140 - 7 400 River Road 6,999 

Richmond Tennis Club 6820 Gilbert Road 40,916 

Richmond Winter Club 5540 Hollybridge Way 180,804 

River Run Early Care and Learning Centre 10277 River Drive 8,348 

Riverside Children's Centre 5862 Dover Crescent 1,005 

Scotch Pond Heritage 2220 Chatham Street 2,636 

Seasong Child Care Centre 10380 No. 2 Road 14,847 

Sharing Farm 2900 River Road 17,130 

Terra Nova Children's Centre 6011 Blanchard Drive 2,121 

Treehouse Learning Centre 100 - 5500 Andrews Road 1,818 

Watermania 14300 Entertainment Boulevard 145,518 

West Cambie Childcare Centre 4033 Stolberg Street 3,483 

Senior citizen housing 

Richmond Legion Senior Citizen Society 7251 Langton Road $29,016 
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City of Richmond permissive property tax exemptions 

Community care facilities 

Developmental Disabilities Association 6531 Azure Road $ 2,645 

Developmental Disabilities Association 8400 Robinson Road 3,288 

Developmental Disabilities Association 7611 Langton Road 3,237 

Greater Vancouver Community Service 4811 Williams Road 2,994 

Pinegrove Place, Mennonite Care Home Society 11331 Mellis Drive 13,923 

Richmond Lions Manor 9020 Bridgeport Road 27,076 

Richmond Society for Community Living 5728 Woodwards Road 2,670 

Richmond Society for Community Living 303 - 7560 Moffatt Road 1,030 

Richmond Society for Community Living 4433 Francis Road 2,147 

Richmond Society for Community Living 9580 Pendleton Road 3, 171 

Rosewood Manor, Richmond 
6260 Blundell Road 34,784 

Intermediate Ca1·e Society 

Western Recovery Foundation 10411 Odlin Road 2,865 
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City of Richmond major services 

Major services provided by the City of Richmond 

Administration 
Includes the office of the Chief Admin istrative 
Officer who oversees the overa ll admin istration 
of the City's operations. A lso includes the Deputy 
Chief Adm inistrative Office r, Human Resources, 
Intergovernmenta l Relations and Protocol, 
Corporate Commun ications and Marketing, 
Corporate Planning and Organ izational 
Development and the Corporate Programs 
Management Group . 

Community Safety 
Brings together the City's pub lic safety providers 
includ ing RCMP, Fire-Rescue, Emergency 
Programs, Community Bylaws and Business 
Licences. 

Community Services 
Coordinates, supports and develops Richmond's 
commun ity services including Parks Services, 
Recreation and Sport Services and Arts, Cu lture 
and Heritage Services. 

Engineering and Public Works 
Th e Engineering and Public Works Departments 
deliver public works se rvices and utilities and 
engineering planning, design, construction 
and maintenance services for all uti lity and City 
building infrastructure. 

City of Richmond 2021 An nual Report 

Finance and Corporate Services 
Includes Customer Service, Information 
Technology, Finance, Economic Development, 
Real Estate Services and Corporate Bus iness 
Service Solutions. 

Planning and Development 
Includes the Policy Planning, Transportation, 
Development App li cat ions, Building Approva ls 
and Commun ity Social Development 
Departments. This division provides policy 
directions that guide growth and change in 
Richmond w ith emphasis on land use planning, 
development regulations, environmental 
protect ion, heritage and livabi li ty. 

Law and Legislative Services 
Includes the Law Department and the City Clerk's 
Office. 

Other City entities 
Gateway Theatre 
Operates the City's performing arts theatre. 

Lulu Island Energy Company 
Operates the City's district ene1·gy utilities. 

Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
Operates the Richmond Olympic Ova l and the 
Richmond Sport Hosting program. 

Richmond Public Library 
Operates Richmond's public lib ra ry, includ ing four 
branches. 

69 

FIN - 80



City of Richmond contacts 

The City of Richmond offers many civic services to 
the community. Additional services are provided 
through the Richmond Olympic Oval, Richmond 
Public Library, Gateway Theatre and Lulu Island 
Energy Company. For more information on City 
services contact: 

City of Richmond 
6911 No. 3 Road 
Richmond, BC V6Y 2C 1 
Phone: 604-276-4000 
Email: lnfoCent1·e@Richmond.ca 

www.richmond.ca 

11 @CityofRichmondBC 

W @Richmond_BC 

@@CityofRichmondBC 

a /CityofRichmondBC 

Gateway Theatre 
6500 Gilbert Road 
Richmond, BC V7C 3V4 
Phone: 604-270-6500 

Box Office: 604-270-1812 
www.GatewayTheatre.com 

11 @GatewayThtr 

W @GatewayThtr 

@@GatewayThtr 

City of Richmond contacts 

Lulu Island Energy Company 
6911 No. 3 Road 
Richmond, BC V6Y 2C 1 
Phone: 604-276-4011 

Email: lnfo@LululslandEnergy.ca 
www.LululslandEnergy.ca 

Richmond Public Library 
100-7700 Minoru Gate (Brighouse Branch) 
Richmond, BC V6Y 1 RB 
Library Hours Line: 604-231-6401 

www.YourLibrary.ca 

11 @YourLibraryRichmond 

W @RPLBC 

@)@RPLBC 

a /YourLibraryRichmond 

ca Account: RPLYourlibrary1 

Richmond Olympic Oval 
6111 River Road 

Richmond, BC V7C 0A2 
Phone: 778-296-1400 
Email: lnfo@RichmondOval.ca 

www.RichmondOval.ca 

11 @RichmondOval 

'fl @RichmondOval 

@ @RichmondOval 

This report was prepared by the City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Communicat ions and Marketing Departments. Design, layout and production by the City 
of Richmond Production Centre. 0 2022 City of Richmond 

-() Contents printed on Canad ian made, 100% recycled stock, using environmental ly friendly toners. 
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RICHMOND CITY COUNCIL 

Top row, left to r ight: Counci llor Chak Au, Councillor Carol Day, Councillor Andy Hobbs (elected May 202 1 ), 

Councillor Alexa Loo 

Centre: Mayor Malcolm Brod ie 

Bottom row, left to right: Councillor Bill McNulty, Councillor Linda McPhai l, Councillor Harold Steves, 

Councillor Michael Wolfe 

CONN ECT WITH RICHMOND CITY COUNCIL 
To contact Counci l, email MayorAndCouncillors@ri chmond.ca or ca ll 604-276-4000. 

For Council meeting agendas and minutes, visit www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/agendas. 

To live stream Council meetings or view videos of past meetings, visit 

www.richmond.ca/WatchOn line. 

The City of Richmond is proud of its diverse and committed workforce. This year, we 

asked our employees to take photos and send us images of "thei r Richmond" for 

this report. Photos w ith the camera icon are just some of the submissions, and we 

are delighted to share them w ith you. None are professional photographers. 

COVER PHOTO: CITY HALL IN SPRING AFTER MORNING RAIN 
PHOTO BY LUC LUK, BUILDING SYSTEM MAINTENANCE LEAD HAND, FACILITY SERVICES 
CITY EMPLOYEE SINCE 2003 
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CITY OF RICHMOND, BRITISH COLUMBIA 
2021 ANNUAL REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 
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legislated requirements, or for an on line copy 
of this highlights report, please visit 
www. rich mond .ca/cityha 11/fi na nce/reporti ng/ 
reports . 

This report -kas prepared by the City 
of Richmond Finance and Cdrporate 
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Design, layout and production by the City of 
Richmond Production Centre. © 2022 City of 
Richmond. 

Contents printed on 100% recycled stock, 
using environmentally friendly toners. 
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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR 

4 1 City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report Highlights 

The City of Richmond is proud of our 
high quality of life. Through its actions, 
City Council has always sought to provide 
infrastructure that preserves our rich and 
vibrant cultural identity. 

Events of the past two years have 
further heightened the need to focus 
on how we provide a sustainable future. 
Many think of sustainability on ly from an 
environmental perspective. Climate change 
is obviously a major concern as shown by 
extreme weather events in 2021. Through 
long-term investments in flood protection 
infrastructure as well as award-winning 
initiatives such as our Lulu Island District 
Energy program, Richmond is building a 
green and safe future for its residents. 

However, the term "sustainability" has 
a much greater meaning in Richmond. It 
encompasses the development of policies, 
services and supports to ensure that 
current and future generations maintain 

Royal 
Canadian 
Mounted 
Pollc8 

Gendarmerie 
royale 
du 
Canada 

a sense of community and belonging. It 
also includes having a strong economy 
that supports businesses, their employees 
and families. It involves different concepts 
such as ensuring safety for residents 
and businesses, providing adequate 
infrastructure as well as protecting our 
diverse cu lture. 

Protecting our community is paramount 
as demonstrated by Richmond, statistically 
in the region, having some of the lowest 
incidence of COVID-19 cases throughout 
the pandemic. Closely regulating access 
and activities to City facil ities played a 
role, as did our Council-led mask mandate 
and a vaccination requirement for City 
employees. All of Council - as well as 
almost all City staff - recognized the 
importance of protecting themselves, their 
colleagues and the community through 
vaccination against COVID-19. 

The recent opening of the City Centre 
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Community Police Office for RCMP 

operations, along w ith add ing 51 officers 

and 36 firefighters th is term are examples 

of Council 's comm itment to public safety. 

In 2021, t he RCMP Fox 80 Mental Health 

Car completed its second full year in 

partnership w ith Vancouver Coastal Hea lth 

by responding to approximately 800 ca lls. 

This program reduced high-risk situations 

through the interaction of a mental health 

professional. 

City Counci l also supported the 
RCMP "No Place for Hate" campaign 

to encourage awareness of racism and 

hat e crimes and provide tools to help 

victims, their fam il ies and friends. It has 

been heartening to see the push aga inst 
racism grow fo llowing Council 's Statement 

Aga inst Racism and Violence in 2020, 

offering further momentum to eradicate 

such unacceptable behaviour. 

Richmond is proud of its ri ch cultura l 

heritage and diversity. It honoured 
Canada's first National Day for Truth 

and Reconcil iation w ith a flag lowering, 

educationa l programs and interactive 

displays. In partnersh ip w ith Richmond 

Community Associations and other 

partners, Richmond aga in supported a 

range of activities to promote Pride Week 

and our LGBTQ2S+ commun ity. W ith a 
wide range of topics, the City's second 

Diversity Symposium was attended by over 

200 individuals from across BC, Canada 

and internationally. 

While many long-running, popular 

events and festivals remained cancelled to 

maintain publi c safety, there was growing 

acceptance of the transition to onl ine 

programs and events . For instance, the 

popu lar Doors Open Richmond event 

went onl ine aga in, attracting over 25,000 

interactions with 35 virtual locations. 

Counci l recognizes the importance and 

va lue of engagement to build a strong 

commun ity. Maintaining such events­

even if virtua l-supports that commitment. 

To ensure a bright and sustainable 

future, it is important to take action 

and make w ise investments today. 

Richmond's success, despite the cha llenges 

of COVID-19, is a cred it to those who 

contribute to making our city a better 

place. This includes our staff, volunteers 

and businesses as well as our commun ity 

and government partners. Our Annua l 

Report contains examples of our goals 

and achievements. As always, I invite you r 

comments and questions through my 

office. 

~~~ I ~:yor, City of Richmond 
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
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I am pleased to present the City of 

Richmond's Annual Report for 202 1. It 

details our strong financial position and 

outl ines many of the initiatives we are 

undertaking to achieve our vision of making 

Richmond Canada's best-managed city. 

The past year continued to present 

chal lenges due to the ongoing pandemic 

and extreme weather situations. In both 

cases, the City was well prepared and 

able to mitigate the impact due to strong 

leadersh ip, forward planning and sound 

investment. Many of those actions and 

achievements are highlighted throughout 

this report. 

As the pandemic entered its second 

year, City administration and staff 

remained focused on the need to maintain 

public safety. That requ ired difficu lt 

decisions. W ith the support of Council , 

strategies were implemented to ensure 

vital City services remained in place and 

staff cou ld contribute to susta in ing the 

local economy. 

Services transitioned smooth ly to on line 

access as the City switched seamlessly to a 

hybrid or remote working model. Not on ly 

was this in keeping with provincial health 

orders, it demonstrated the dedication and 

res ili ency of employees as they adjusted to 

new work environments whi le maintaining 

high levels of productivity and reliability. 

Their commitment to safety was further 

demonstrated w hen Counci l enacted a 

proof of vaccination requirement for all 

staff. Almost 99 per cent confirmed fu ll 

vaccination status, with most vaccinated 

long before the mandate was in place. 

It was this conscious recognition of the 

need to protect themselves, co lleagues, 

fami ly and res idents that kept Richmond's 

COVID-1 9 case counts among the lowest 

in the region. 

2021 also saw terms such as "heat 

dome" and "atmospheric river" become 

part of our vocabulary. Record summer 

temperatures saw Richmond develop an 

emergency cool ing strategy. Shou ld extreme 
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heat events become more common, the 

City is ready to provide respite for our most 

vulnerable citizens from potentially life 

threatening heat waves. 

Richmond was also subject to extreme 
rainfall events (atmospheric rivers) in 

November. In one instance, over 130 

millimetres (five inches) of rain fell in just 

three days. Thanks to long term planning 

and investment in flood protection, the 

City emerged relatively unscathed. Sad ly, 

not all Briti sh Columbia communit ies were 

as fortunate. 

Our capacity to handle the situation 

was not only due to the $120 million 

investment in flood protection over the 

years, but also the City employees who 

worked 24/7 in sometimes difficult and 

dangerous situations to keep our 39 pump 

stations clear and operational, and our 49 

ki lometres of dikes secure. 

Of course, one of the foundations for 

any successful organ ization is its abi lity to 

demonstrate strong financial stewardship. 

The City's long-term financial strategy 

remained a hallmark of our adm inistration 

and enab led us to continue to maintain 

effective and responsive service levels as 

this report shows. 

The City of Richmond remains a 

strong, culturally proud community and 

is committed to continued growth and 

success w ith in a framework of diversity, 

sustainability and va lue for our taxpayers. 

Finally, this w ill be my last Annual 

Report message as CAO . I announced 

plans to retire in mid-2022 and expect 

to hand over responsibili t ies to a new 

Chief Admin istrative Officer prior to that. 

During my 34+ years with the City, I have 

seen dramatic change and progress. I am 

proud to have played a role in bringing 

the Canada Line rapid transit to our 

community and in enabling construction 

of the internationally renowned Richmond 

Olympic Oval . 

While initia lly built as a speed-skating 

competition arena for the 2010 Olympic 

Winter Games-for wh ich Richmond 

was an official Host Venue-the Oval 

was transformed into a commun ity sport, 

recreation and elite athletics faci lity that 

now welcomes thousands of res idents of 

all ages and abil ities annual ly. It is a true 

legacy from one of my most memorable 

t imes as CAO. 

But what I am most proud of is the 

people. The staff, leadersh ip team and 

Council who continued to give t heir al l to 

ensure Richmond was always a better, safer 

and more welcoming place. As I leave, I 

know the City is in a sound position and 

more than ready to maintain its journey 

as the most appea ling, livable and well-&: commccity io Cacada 

George Duncan 

Chief Administrative Officer 
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The Community Charter requires all BC municipalities to include a statement in the Annual Report of their objectives for the current 
and future years, along with measures to track success towards those objectives. 

The City of Richmond's objectives and success indicators are expressed through the Council Strategic Plan. Soon after Council began 
its four-year term in October 2018, it undertook a strategic planning process to help fulfill its governance role and achieve a successful 
term of office. Through that process, Council adopted a revised set of eight Strategic Focus areas, which provided the framework for 
the City's programs and services during 2021. 

City Council made full COVID-19 
vaccination mandatory for all City 
employees as an added safety measure to 
protect residents, visitors and staff. By year­
end, almost 99 per cent of City staff and 
every Council member complied. Council 
also added funding for an additional 
16 RCMP officers and 12 firefighters to 
complete Richmond's Safe Community 
Strategy, as well as unveiled the new City 
Centre Community Police Office. These 
and other initiatives saw break and enter 
crimes drop 33 per cent for residences and 
15 per cent for businesses. 

Ongoing investment in dike and flood 
protection infrastructure saw the island 
city withstand one of the province's most 
devastating floods on record. Richmond's 
39 pump stations moved 90 cubic 
metres of water per second (1 .4 million 
US gallons per minute)-the equivalent 
of over two Olympic swimming pools 
every 60 seconds. The City also became 
one of only 1 5 local governments across 
Canada selected to participate in the 
Canadian Circular Cities and Regions 
Initiative, a peer-to-peer network bringing 
communities together to exchange 
best practices for implementing circular 
economy strategies and policies. 
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The City invested over $1 million 
in grants to local non-profit arts and 
culture organizations, community service 
groups, as well as grassroots providers 
in childcare, health and social services, 
and parks, recreation and community 
events. Richmond's 14th annual Doors 
Open festival offered a rare glimpse inside 
places of worship, civic centres, museums 
and local businesses throughout the 
community. Over 25,000 social media 
interactions and 13,000 views were logged 
for the week-long online event. 

Council amended the City's Affordable 
Housing Policy to increase the number of 
affordable rental units in new City Centre 
residential projects containing at least 60 
units from 10 per cent to 15 per cent­
among the highest level in the region. 
Over 1,500 affordable housing units in 
new developments across Richmond 
have been confirmed since the policy was 
introduced, with more underway. Council 
also continued to advocate for affordable, 
accessible, quality child care, opening 
two new innovative Early Childhood 
Development Hubs with 199 spaces to add 
to the more than 7,000 childcare spaces 
already in place to support the needs of 
children, families and employers in the city. 

Council supported a budget that 
enabled several key infrastructure 
projects, initially deferred due to the 
pandemic, to proceed, as well as ensuring 
operating resources for key community 
safety priorities. While utilizing reserves 
to mitigate cost increases, the budget 
maintained a one per cent commitment 
to investment for future capital needs. 

The City maintained a position of financial 
resiliency and service while keeping the 
overall impact to property owners to a tax 
change of around 27 cents per day. 

Richmond issued development and 
construction permits for 587 residential, 
333 commercial and 217 industrial 
buildings-a 23 per cent increase from 
the previous year. With $719 million in 
new construction value, this was higher 
than the City's 10-year average. The 
City also collected over $16.2 million in 
development cost charges in 2021 to help 
finance future infrastructure and amenities 
such as parks and roads. 

Prior investment, along with initiatives 
such as Richmond's Business Resilience and 
Supply Chain program and the Expedited 
Temporary Patio Program, helped local 
businesses deal with the challenges of the 
pandemic. The number of new business 
licences issued in 2021 rose 15 per cent 
from the previous year, signaling continued 
economic recovery and renewal. 

Connecting with one of the most 
culturally diverse and unique populations 
in Canada can be challenging. Over 
35,000 users participated in almost 40 
engagement initiatives on the City's 
LetsTalkRichmond.ca platform, a 44 per 
cent increase. The City's social media 
platforms also saw steady growth with a 
23 per cent increase in Facebook followers, 
a 47 per cent rise on lnstagram and a 50 
per cent jump in You Tube subscribers. The 
City's website logged over 3.4 million visits, 
a 64 per cent increase from 2020. 
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While 2021 brought new challenges to 

many parts of British Columbia, the City 

of Richmond was well positioned to meet 

them head on thanks to a lengthy history 

of infrastructure investment, planning and 

effective leadership. 

Due in large part to a multi-year 

investment of over $120 million in dikes 

and flood protection strategies, Richmond 

was successful in preventing large-

scale damage when three devastating 

atmospheric rivers hit in November. The 

City's 39 pump stations, combined with 

49 kilometres of dikes, 165 kilometres of 

watercourses, 61 kilometres of box culverts 

and 585 kilometres of drainage pipes, kept 

rising waters at bay. 
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The existing dike network can 

withstand high water events such as 

spring freshet and king tides, and handle a 
500-year return period (estimated average 

time between) flooding event. However, 

recognizing the rapid impact of climate 

change, Council authorized an acceleration 

of the plan to raise the dikes well ahead of 

current sea level rise projections over the 

next 50 years. 

Earlier in the year, Richmond 

experienced another unexpected weather 

phenomenon-the heat dome. Several 

days of unrelenting record-setting 

temperatures arrived in July, prompting the 

development of a cooling centre strategy 

and mobilization of emergency services to 

protect the most vu lnerable. 

With the pandemic continuing to keep 
a grip on the community and economy, the 
City worked to find sustainable, innovative 
ways to support residents and businesses. 
The City, along with Tourism Richmond 
and the Richmond Hotel Association, 
unveiled a tourism plan to reinvigorate and 
revitalize the ailing industry that brought 

over $2 billion to the city pre-pandemic. 

Richmond Sport Hosting still managed to 

support 20 events generating 2,700 room 

nights in 2021, and tourism numbers 

continued to rise as travel and pandemic 

restrictions eased by year-end. 

Council took many decisive steps 

to assist in preserving Richmond's rich 

agricultural heritage and promote a 

sustainable farming sector. Adoption of 
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a new Soil Deposit and Removal Bylaw 
expanded the City's regulatory framework 
with incentives for sourcing new soil from 
within Richmond while increasing fines 
for non-compliance. The bylaw provides 
enhanced enforcement in environmentally 
sensitive areas and supports other Council­
endorsed strategies such as the Ecological 
Network Management Strategy, the 
Farming First Strategy and Invasive Species 
Action Plan. The move was timely as future 
soil deposits increase as the City raises the 
level of the land for further protection. 

Development and construction offered 
visible evidence of economic recovery and 
sustainability with $719 million in new 
construction value approved . This was 
higher than Richmond's 10-year average. 

Council instilled further confidence in 
economic recovery with several key 
projects including approval of the $95 
million replacement of the Steveston 
Community Centre and Branch Library; the 
opening of the new River Parkway traffic 
and cycling corridor to alleviate congestion 
in the busy City Centre; and updates to the 
popular city-wide cycling network . 

The Provincial Government announced 
plans to build a new Steveston Highway 
Interchange and replace the aging 
George Massey Tunnel with an eight-lane 
immersed tunnel. The project recognizes 
Council's long-standing recommendation 
for how to address the heavily congested 
road corridor, reducing travel time and 
improving transit access. 

Following the success of an innovative 
road paving project using 40 per cent 
recycled materials, the City expanded 
the technology to pave 20 non­
residential pathways across Richmond, 
with more planned. Such innovation, 
combined with the continued growth of 
Richmond's award-winning district energy 
infrastructure that reduces 7,800 tonnes 
of greenhouse gasses annually, reinforce 
Richmond's commitment to a sustainable, 
environmentally friendly future. 

The City of Richmond has always been 
a leader with bold, innovative programs 
and strategies that reflect our character 
and reputation as a safe, sustainable and 
culturally diverse city that makes it one 
of the most appealing, livable and well­
managed communities in Canada. 

> 
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LONG-SERVING CAO 
BIDS FAREWELL 

Richmond's long-serving Chief 
Administrative Officer, George Duncan, will 
retire from his position on June 30, 2022 . 

The 2021 City of Richmond Annual 
Report will be the last completed under his 
full year of leadership, which has spanned 
over three decades. 

Announcing the retirement, Mayor 
Malcolm Brodie said George will be 
missed by both the organization and 
the community. "George has made 
a major impact on our city," he said. 
"Under his leadership, Richmond has 

rrj, become an award-winning leader in civic 
administration, sustainability, community 
safety and operations. One only has to 
look around to see how our city has grown 
into a diverse, dynamic and well-managed 
community to see his contributions and 
legacy." 

Examples of those contributions 
include the key role he played in bringing 

- rapid transit to Richmond with the 
introduction of the Canada Line, as well 
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as Richmond becoming a Host Venue 
for the 2010 Olympic Winter Games. He 
was instrumental in securing the design 
and construction of the world-renowned 
Richmond Olympic Oval and its successful 
transition from a competition speed 
skating venue for the Games to a state­
of-the-art multi-purpose community 
facility and sports complex benefiting local 
recreational and elite athletes alike. 

Mayor Brodie also commended George 
for his commitment to public safety, 
in particular his vital leadership during 
the COVID-19 pandemic. "Council has 
always seen the safety and well-being 
of our community as paramount," he 
said. "When the pandemic hit Richmond, 
George mobilized teams and resources to 
ensure City services and staff were well 
positioned to keep key services in place 
and to protect the safety of employees, 
residents and businesses. That Richmond is 
on the road to economic and community 
recovery so quickly is due, in large part, 
to George's experienced leadership and 
commitment during those challenging 
times." 

Joining the City in 1987, George 
was appointed CAO a decade later 
after taking on a series of progressive 
management roles and responsibilities. 
Under his leadership, the City and its 
staff have received over 200 awards 
for various programs and initiatives. 
These include two prestigious Canadian 
Association of Municipal Administrators 
(CAMA) Willis Awards for Excellence in 
Administration and Innovation, CAMA 
awards for Environmental Leadership 
and Sustainability and Professional 
Development, an Award of Excellence from 
the BC Human Resources Management 
Association, and awards from the 
International City/County Management 
Association. 
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A measurement of the City's success in achieving its goals are the honours and 
recognition from our peers and others. In 2021, Richmond again received numerous 
international, national and provincial awards recognizing our commitment to excellence 
and innovation. 

The Environmental Manager's Association of BC recognized Richmond's environmental 
stewardship with two prestigious awards. The City's Corporate Hazardous Materials 
Management Training initiative was honoured in the Regulatory Challenge category at 
the organization's 2021 Environmental Awards Gala, while its Mitchell Island Stewardship 
Initiative received the Discharge Control Award. Both programs demonstrate the City's 
commitment to protecting our environment and putting processes and systems in place 
to protect and maintain valuable ecosystems. 
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Recipient of over a dozen awards 
in the past decade, Richmond's District 
Energy Program continues to collect 
accolades for its innovation, efficiency and 
green sustainability. In 2021, it received 
the Community Energy Association's 
Climate and Energy Action Award. With 
22 buildings and over five million square 
feet of floor space, the innovative District 
Energy Program is reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions by over 7,800 tonnes-the 
equjvalent of removing 2,000 cars from 
ffllr roads-each year. 
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The Minoru Centre for Active Living, 
the City of Richmond's state-of-the-art 
fitness and aquatic facility, received the 
2021 Architecture Prize for Accessibility 
from the International Olympic 
Committee, International Paralympic 
Committee, and International Association 
for Sports and Leisure Facilities. The 
annual Distinction for Accessibility 
Award aims to increase the accessibility 
of all sports and leisure facilities and 
architectural structures worldwide so 
that everyone has an opportunity to 
practice and view s~ ly and without 
barriers. 

Once again, the Government Finance 
Officers Association of the US and Canada 
presented Richmond with the Canadian 
Award for Financial Reporting (the 19th 
year in a row) and the Outstanding 
Achievement in Popular Financial 
Reporting Award (the 12th successive year) 
for its 2020 Annual Reports. 
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The Union of BC Municipalities, which represents and advocates 
to government on behalf of municipalities across British Columbia, 
presented the City of Richmond with an Honourable Mention in the 
Community Excellence Award - Service Delivery category for customer­
friendly upgrades to its Works Yard Recycling Depot. The $1.58 million 
upgrades to aging infrastructure improved operations by providing a 
larger site, expanding the number of hazardous waste materials collected, 
adding tent coverings and steel awnings to shield recyclers and staff from 
the weather, as well as the purchase of new heavy equipment for moving 
recycled materi 

Government Finance Officers Association 

Award for 
Outstanding 

Achievement in 
Popular Annual 

Financial Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Richmond 

British Columbia 

For its Annual Financial Report 
for the Fiscal Year Ended 

December 31, 2020 
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REPORT FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER, 
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES 

Mayor Malcom Brodie and Members of 
Richmond City Council, 

I am pleased to submit the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Auditors' Report for the f iscal year 
ended December 31, 202 1 for the City 
of Richmond, pursuant to Section 98 
and 167 of the Community Charter. 
The consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting 
standards as prescribed by the Public Sector 
Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered 
Professional Accountants of Canada. 
Preparation of the financial statements is 
management's responsibility. 

KPMG LLP was appointed by City 
Council to independently audit the City's 
consol idated financia l statements. They 
have expressed an opinion that the 
City's consolidated f inancial statements 
present fai rly, in al l material respects, the 

G) PHOTO BY SHANNON UNRAU, 
DEPARTMENTAL ASSOCIATE 2, 
TRANSPORTATION 
CITY EMPLOYEE SINCE 2016 
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consolidated financial position of the City of Richmond as at December 31, 202 1 and its 
consolidated resu lts of operations, its changes in net consolidated financial assets and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

These financial statements combine the accounts of the City of Richmond, Richmond 
Olympic Oval and Richmond Public Library (collectively referred to as the "City"), as well 
as the City's investment in Lulu Island Energy Company, which is accounted for as a 
Government Business Enterpri se. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (IN $000s) 

Fi nancial Assets 
Liabilities 
Net Financial Assets 
Non-Financial Assets 
Accumulated Surplus 

2021 Actual 
$ 1,468,241 

528,238 
940,003 

2,547,884 
$3,487,887 

2020 Actual 
$ 1,471,442 

582,457 
888,985 

2,495,22 1 
$ 3,384,206 

Change 
$(3,201) 
(54,219) 

51,01 8 
52,663 

$103,681 

The City's overal l financial position improved by $103.7 million, with accum ulated 
surplus (sim ilar to net worth of a corporation) total ing $3.5 billion. A signif icant part 
of this increase is due to additions to capital assets and statutory reserves, as wel l as a 
reduction in liabilities, especially a reduction in accounts payable relating to postponed 
remittances to other governments relating to COVID-19 paid in 202 1. 

The City's cash and investments are $1.4 billion wh ile long-term debt continues to 
decline with an outstanding balance at the end of 202 1 of $17.4 million. Meanwhile, the 
City's tangible capital assets increased by $5 1.1 million, which includes $61.0 million of 
in-kind contributions from development as conditions of re-zoning. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (IN $000s) 

Revenue 
Expenses 
Annual Surplus 

2021 Budget 
$575,688 

507,765 
$67,923 

2021 Actual 
$576,698 
473,017 

$1 03,681 

2020 Actual 
$579,052 
434, 188 

$144,864 

The City's consolidated revenue for the year tota led $576.7 million, a decrease of 
$2.4 mi llion from 2020 mainly due to a decrease in the gain on sa le of land offset by 
revenue increases related to facility re-openings from the COVID-1 9 closures. 

Expenses increased by $38.8 million from prior year mainly due to related facility 
re-openings from the COVID-19 closures. 

The annual surplus for 202 1 was $103 . 7 million and represents the change in 
investment in tangible capita l assets, reserves and other accumulated surp lus. 

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY 
202 1 saw the easing of COVID-1 9 challenges through the continued re-opening of 

community recreation fac il ities and resumption of gaming revenues from the re-opening 
of the River Rock Casino resulting in the City maintaining its excellent financia l position. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jerry Chong, CPA, CA 
Acting General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services 
May 9, 2022 
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REVENUE BY SOURCE 2017-2021 
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Source: City of Richmond Finance and Corporate Services 

Investment 
income 

• 2017 • 2018 • 2019 • 2020 • 2021 

revenue 
Payments 
in lieu of 
taxes 

* Capita l funding includes: Development Cost Charges and other capital funding sources. 
* * Other includes: provincial and federal grants, licences and permits and other sources. 

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 2017-2021 
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$17.0M in 2017. 
** Expenses for Planning and Development for 2019 include a one-time $28.1 M contribution 
towards the Canada Li ne Capstan Station . 
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1216,280 
2021 POPULATION 

Richmond 
at a glance 

I November 10, 1879 
INCORPORATED AS MUNICIPALITY 

1
129.27 

1
17 
ISLANDS COMPRISING 
THE CITY 

SIZE OF CITY IN 
SQUARE KM 

I December 3, 1990 
DESIGNATED AS CITY OF RICHMOND 

Fast facts 
$719 million 
NEW CONSTRUCTION VALUE 
IN 2021-HIGHER THAN THE 
CITY'S 10-YEAR AVERAGE 

807 
HECTARES OF CRANBERRY 
FIELDS IN PRODUCTION 

60.2 
PERCENTAGE OF THE CITY'S 
POPULATION BORN OUTSIDE 
OF CANADA 

20 I City of Richmond 2021 Annual Report Highlights 

39 
PERCENTAGE OF THE CITY 
WITHIN THE AGRICULTURAL 
LAND RESERVE (ALR) 

49 
KILOMETRES OF DIKES FOR 
FLOOD PROTECTION 

1,966 
HECTARES THAT MAKE UP THE 
CITY'S 145 PARKS 

135 
KILOMETRES OF WALKING, 
ROLLING AND CYCLING TRAILS 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
POPULATION 2012-2021 
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TOP 10 LARGEST EMPLOYERS 
IN RICHMOND 
(IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER) 
• Air Canada 
• Allied Universal 
• Amazon Canada 
• Change Healthcare 
• City of Richmond 
• London Drugs 
• MDA Systems 
• River Rock Casino Resort 
• School District No. 38 (Richmond) 
• Vancouver Coastal Health 

I , • 

,,, 1:·. ~·;~:..-.: .. .-:r;.1:, 
' ·. -._-- .• ·. ·*, ~-·· "It# .. 

CHERRY BLOSSOMS AT MINORU LAKES IN MINORU PARK 
PHOTO BY NATALIE CHEAH, ENGINEERING ASSISTANT -
DEVELOPMENT & PROCESSING, DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 
CITY EMPLOYEE SINCE 2018 

Sources: Statistics Canada, City of Richmond, Vancouver International Airport Authority, 
Steveston Harbour Authority, Metro Vancouver, Richmond School District. 
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MAJOR SERVICES PROVIDED BY 
THE CITY OF RICHMOND 

ADMINISTRATION 
Includes the office of the Ch ief 
Admin istrative Officer who oversees 
the overa ll administration of the City's 
operations. Also includes the Deputy 
Chief Administrative Officer, Human 
Resources, Intergovernmental Relations 
and Protocol, Corporate Communications 
and Marketing, Corporate Planning and 
Organizational Development and the 
Corporate Programs Management Group. 

COMMUNITY SAFETY 
Brings together the City's public safety 
providers including RCMP, Fire-Rescue, 
Emergency Programs, Community Bylaws 
and Business Licences. 

@ SUNSET IN STEVESTON 

COMMUNITY SERVI CES 
Coord inates, supports and develops 
Richmond's community services includ ing 
Parks Services, Recreation and Sport 
Services and Arts, Culture and Heritage 
Services. 

ENGIN EERING AND 
PUBLIC WORKS 
The Engineering and Public Works 
Departments deliver public works services 
and utilities and eng ineering plann ing, 
design, construction and maintenance 
services for all utility and City building 
infrastructure. 

FINANCE AND 
CORPORATE SERVICES 
Includes Customer Service, Information 
Technology, Finance, Economic 
Development, Real Estate Services and 
Corporate Business Service Solutions. 

PHOTO BY KATHY LEE, DEPARTMENTAL ASSOCIATE 2, COMMUNITY SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 
• CITY EMPLOYEE SINCE 2003 ,.. __ 

~ ~ ; II ~j ,, 
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PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
Includes the Policy Planning, 
Transportation, Development App lications, 
Building Approva ls and Community 
Social Development Departments. This 
division provides pol icy directions that 
guide growth and change in Richmond 
with emphasis on land use planning, 
development regulations, environmenta l 
protection, heritage and livability. 

LAW AND LEGISLATIVE 
SERVICES 
Includes the Law Department and the City 
Clerk's Office. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND 
CONTACTS 

The City of Richmond offers many civic 
services to the community. Additional 
services are provided through the 
Richmond Olympic Oval, Richmond Public 
Library, Gateway Theatre and Lulu Island 
Energy Company. For more information on 
City services contact: 

CITY OF RICHMOND 
6911 No. 3 Road 
Richmond, BC V6Y 2C1 
Phone: 604-276-4000 
Email: lnfoCentre@Richmond.ca 
www.richmond.ca 
E @CityofRichmondBC 
"JI @Richmond BC 
@ @CityofRich~ondBC 
D tcityofRichmondBC 

GATEWAY THEATRE 
6500 Gilbert Road 
Richmond, BC V7C 3V4 
Phone: 604-270-6500 
Box Office: 604-270-1812 
www. Gateway Theatre .com 
E @GatewayThtr 
"JI @GatewayThtr 
@ @GatewayThtr 

LULU ISLAND ENERGY 
COMPANY 
6911 No. 3 Road 
Richmond, BC V6Y 2C1 
Phone: 604-276-40 11 
Email: lnfo@Lulu lslandEnergy.ca 
www. Lu lu lslandEnergy.ca 

RICHMOND PUBLIC LIBRARY 
100-7700 Minoru Gate (Brighouse Branch) 
Richmond, BC V6Y 1 R8 
Library Hours Line: 604-231-6401 
www.YourLibrary.ca 
E @YourlibraryRichmond 
"JI @RPLBC 
@ @RPLBC 
D /YourLibraryRichmond 
ta Account: RPLYourlibrary1 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL 
6111 River Road 
Richmond, BC V7C 0A2 
Phone: 778-296-1400 
Email : lnfo@RichmondOval.ca 
www.RichmondOval.ca 
E @RichmondOval 
"# @RichmondOval 
@ @RichmondOval 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Ivy Wong 

Report to Committee 

Date: May 6, 2022 

File: 
Acting Director, Finance 

Re: Financial Information -1 st Quarter March 31, 2022 

Staff Recommendation 

That the staff report titled, "Financial Information - 1st Qumier March 31, 2022", dated May 6, 
2022 from the Acting Director, Finance be received for information. 

~ 
Ivy Wong, CPA, CMA 
Acting Director, Finance 
( 604-2 7 6-4046) 

Att: 4 

ROUTED TO: 
Arts, Culture & Heritage Services 
Building Approvals 
Community Bylaws 
Community Social Development 
Development Applications 
Economic Development 
Engineering 
Facilities and Project Development 
Fire Rescue 
Information Technology 
Parks Services 
Public Works 
RCMP 
Real Estate Services 
Recreation & Sport Services 
Sustainability & District Energy 
Transportation 
Library Services 

SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW 

6886 157 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

CONCURRENCE 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

~ Acting GM, F&CS 

' 
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May 6, 2022 - 2 -

Origin 

Pre-audited financial information for the 1st quarter ended on March 31, 2022 is being provided 
to the Finance Committee for review. The report provides details on the economic environment, 
financial results and other key indicator information. The financial information provides Council 
with an overview of the City of Richmond's (the City) financial results throughout the year and 
before the annual audited financial statements are presented. 

This report supports Council's Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategic Focus Area #5 Sound 
Financial Management and #8 An Engaged and Informed Community: 

5.1 Maintain a strong and robust financial position. 

5.2 Clear accountability through transparent budgeting practices and effective public 
communication. 

8.2 Ensure citizens are well-informed with timely, accurate and easily accessible 
communication using a variety of methods and tools. 

Analysis 

Macroeconomic Indicators & Forecast 

As global economies continue to weather the varying impacts of COVID-19, the current war in 
Ukraine has created a costly humanitarian crisis and substantial economic damage that is, and 
will continue to be, felt globally. A significant slowdown in global growth is expected in 2022, 
along with increasing inflation. In Canada, as like globally, the central bank faces the 
challenging balance between containing price pressures and safeguarding growth, as the rapid 
increase in food and fuel prices affects vulnerable populations most severely. 

In the near tenn, Canada is expected to face weaker external demand from the United States, its 
top trading partner, and globally, employment and output are expected to remain below pre­
pandemic trends through 2026. That said, labour markets are tight in Canada, and businesses 
report challenges in meeting demand. Recent lockdowns in key manufacturing and trade centres 
in China will likely contribute to ongoing supply disruptions. 

Current projections for the global growth slowdown and increased inflation are subject to much 
unce1tainty. An escalation or further spread of the war, increased sanctions on Russia, and any 
potential new and/or more virulent virus strains could affect the expected trajectory. 

6886157 
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1) Global Growth-Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP)% Change' 
10

·
0 

• The International Monetary Fund (IMF) 
8

·
0 projects global Gross Domestic Product 

6
·
0 

(GDP) will decrease from an estimated 
4

·
0 

6.1% in 2021 to 3.6% in 2022 and 2023 . 
2

·
0 

Beyond 2023, global growth is expected 
0.0 --------"-->llr- -1-1---------

to decline further to 3.3% over the 
-2.0 

medium term. 
-4.0 

-6.0 

-8.0 
2017 2018 2019 

- c1nad1 - United SlatH 

2020 2021 

- China 

2022f 20231 

• In 2022, Canadian GDP is forecasted to 
grow by 3.9%, with U.S. and China GDP 
growth forecasts of 3.7% and 4.4%, 
respectively. 

• These growth forecasts have all been 
recently revised downward, with China's 
expected growth in 2022 now almost 
half of its 2021 GDP growth rate. 

2) Interest Rates - US and Canadian Overnight Central Bank Rate% at Year-End2 

3.00 

2.50 

2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

0.50 

• For the second time this year, the Bank 
of Canada (BoC) increased rates (April 
13, 2022), bringing its overnight lending 
rate to 1 % as part of a substantial upward 
revision to the Bank's outlook for 
inflation in Canada. 

0.00 L-------~=='!__----~• The U.S. Federal Reserve (U.S. FED) 
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 20221 

- USFED - Canada BOC 

1 International Moneta, y Fund, World Economic Outlook (April 2022) 

20231 rate also increased to 0.33%, and 
additional increases are expected as pait 
of the move toward quantitative 
tightening. 

• As both the BoC and U.S. FED respond 
to growing inflation, it is expected that 
the BoC rate will reach 2% by the end of 
2022, with the U.S. FED ending the year 
around 2.38%. 

2 US Federal Resen >e, Bank of Canada and Royal Bank Economic Research Forecast (March 2022) 
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May 6, 2022 -4-

3) Exchange Rates - CAD/USD at Year-End3 

1.45 • The Canadian dollar (CAD) is forecasted 
1
.4° to remain steady against the US Dollar in 

1.35 
the near term, with a Q 1 2022 exchange 1.30 

1.25 rate of $1.25 CAD / $1 USD projected to 
1.20 increase only slightly to $1 .27 CAD/ $1 
1
-
15 USD by year end. 

1.10 

1.05 • While rising commodity prices would 
1
·
00 

'--2-01-1--20-1a--20_1_9 --2-02-0--20-21--20_22_ 1--2-02_3_1 usually strengthen the Canadian dollar 

- CAD pe, $1 USO 

Regional & Local Economic Activity Indicators 

4) Unemployment4 

13.5 
12.5 
11 .5 
10.5 
9.5 

8.5 
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5,5 
4.5 
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- Canada - BC - Metro Vancouver 

3 Royal Bank Economic Research Forecast (April 2022) 
4 Statistics Canada 

6886 157 

(as Canada is a net commodity exporter), 
the CAD/ USD exchange rate has 
remained relatively unchanged over the 
past months. This could be due in part to 
the BoC and U.S. FED indicating similar 
intentions to control inflation. 

• According to Statistics Canada' s March 
2022 Labour Market Survey, Canadian 
unemployment has fallen to the lowest 
rate on record. Strong employment 
growth since September 2021, COVID-
19 labour market impacts, recruitment 
challenges, and ongoing demographic 
trends are contributing factors. 

• In B.C., unemployment was up slightly 
in March even though it was the third 
lowest in Canada. Full-time employment 
increased among those aged 55 and over, 
but decreased for those aged 15-24 and 
25-54. Private sector employment and 
self-employment continue to increase. 

• At the end of Q 1 2022, the Canadian, 
B.C., and Metro Vancouver 
unemployment rates were 5 .3 %, 5 .1 %, 
and 5.4%, respectively. 
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5) Consumer Price Index (CPI-2002=100)5 
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6) Building Permits - Richmond6 

Richmond Build Ing Permits Issued P•rmlt TrJ" • lusld~ lbl 
f--~ ~--+-----'=o'~' -----1~ "----i .eo.rm.,~ 

• lnduslrl.al 

300 

250 

50 

5 Statistics Canada 
6 City af Richmond Building Permits 
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• By the end of Q 1 2022, the Consumer 
Price Index had increased by 6. 7% in 
Canada, 6% in British Columbia and 
5. 7% in Metro Vancouver, the largest 
year-over-year increase in 30 years. 

• Significant increases within the last 
quarter are consistent with supply 
constraints and pricing pressures related 
to fuel, food (including wheat, among 
others), wages, and durable goods, 
impacted by the ongoing war in Ukraine 
and supply chain disruptions. 

• During the first quarter of 2022, there were 
15 6 residential, 107 commercial, and 51 
industrial building permits issued in 
Richmond. 

• This represents a 3.3% increase in the total 
number of building permits issued over the 
same period in 2021, even though there was 
a 20.3% decline in industrial building 
permits issued. 

• 132 new units are being added to the local 
housing supply in Q 1 2022, which 
represents an 80.2% decrease as compared 
to the same period in 2021. This is due to a 
predominance of single-family dwellings, as 
well as the longer development cycles for 
multi-family homes, which result in 
substantial quai1er-over-quai1er fluctuations 
in the number of new units. 
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Richmond Construction Value 
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7 Canada Mortgage and Housing Co,poration 

- 6 -

• $141 million in construction value was 
registered in Ql 2022, a decrease of 57.3% 
from the same period last year. That said, 
construction value has been steady quarter­
over-quarter for the past four qumiers . 
Construction values will often show large 
variations between quaiiers reflecting those 
times when multiple, high value projects are 
approved during the same period. 

• While there are anticipated supply 
constraints in construction, including higher 
cost materials and labour shortages, demand 
remains strong. 

• In Q 1 2022, there were 482 housing starts 
in Richmond and 4,308 in Meh·o 
Vancouver, as measured by the Canada 
Mortgage and Housing Corporation 
(CMHC) and based on verification that 
construction work has commenced 8. 

• Year to date housing starts decreased in 
Richmond by 38.4% and in Metro 
Vancouver by 41.2% over the same period 
in 2021. There has been a fair amount of 
fluctuation over the past year, quarter by 
quaiier. 

• CMHC predicts that supply constraints on 
construction will continue to impact major 
urban centres, including Vancouver. 
Housing staiis are expected to moderate but 
remain high in 2022. 

8 Housing Start is defined as the beginning of construction work on a building, generally when the concrete has been poured for the whole of the 
foo ting around the structure, or an equivalent stage where a basement will not be part of the structure. 

6886 157 
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8) Commercial Space9 

a) Industrial Space 

Industrial Space Inventory ('000 SF) • Melftl VllllCOU\'Of 
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b) Office Space 
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9 Cushman & Wakefield Office and Industrial Market Beat Reports 
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• Industrial sales and leasing activity in 
Metro Vancouver continued to be strong in 
Q 1 2022, with industrial vacancy rates at a 
historic low of 0.5%. The lack of available 
space and scarcity of developable land has 
also led to a 13% increase in rental rates. 

• In Richmond, the industrial vacancy rate is 
even lower than Metro Vancouver - at 
0.3% in Ql 2022. 

• 46,000 square feet of industrial space was 
added to Richmond's inventory during the 
first quarter of 2022. 

• Global e-commerce and third-party 
logistics companies continue to absorb 
industrial space at an accelerated rate, 
which makes it even more challenging for 
small to mid-size industrial tenants looking 
for space. 

• At the end of Q 1 2022, the office vacancy 
rate was 9.3% in Riclunond and 8.2% in 
Metro Vancouver. The vacancy rate for 
office space near transit is even more 
constrained and currently sits at 4.1 % for 
Riclunond. 

• In Richmond, office vacancy rates have 
declined (by 4.1 %) since the same time last 
year, though in Metro Vancouver, the trend 
has reflected an increase in availability (by 
12.3%). 

• Demand for office space from the 
technology sector is strong ( as it has been 
for the last eleven quarters) and is expected 
to continue. 

• There were increases in asking rents this 
qumier, especially for higher classes of 
space (Class A and AAA). In Riclunond, 
there was a 5 .2% increase, resulting from a 
lack of Class A space in the City Centre. 

FIN - 113



May 6, 2022 - 8 -

9) Business Growth - Richmond 

a) Total Valid Business Licences & New Business Licences Issued 

Richmond New Business Uct ncu - Number & Employees 
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b) New Business Licences - Commercial 
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• 335 new business licenses (representing 
1,223 jobs) were issued by the City of 
Richmond in Q 1 2022, a 5 .1 % decrease 
from the same period last year. 

• The number of total valid business licenses 
at the end of Q 1 2022 reflects an upward 
trend, at 13,662, or 2.4% higher than Ql 
2021. This demonstrates improved business 
health, as the pandemic trajectory and 
associated restrictions have changed. 

• 397,302 square feet of commercial space 
absorption was tied to the new business 
licenses issued during Q 1 2022. 

• While the amount of space absorbed is 
down by 49.6% from a year prior (and has 
seen substantial quarter-over-quai1er 
fluctuations), the type of space required is 
similar, with industrial space representing 
the largest share of absorption, at 220,571 
square feet, followed by office (135 ,437 
square feet), and retail (41,294 square feet). 
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10) Goods and People Movement 

a) Regional Cargo Movement 10 

Cargo Movom• nl Regional Cargo Movement 

2020 2021 
• YVR Cargo (Tonnes) • 

2022 • PMV Cont.a!oor Movtlmon .. 
In Q 1 2022, cargo volumes handled by the 
Port of Vancouver, as measured by Twenty 
Foot Equivalents (TEUs), decreased by 
10.4% from the same time period last year. 
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b) Airp011 Passengers 11 
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c) Richmond Hotel Room Revenue 12 
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10 Port of Vancouver Monthly Cargo Statistics 
11 YVR Monthly Statistics 

• During Ql 2022, 66,742 tonnes of air cargo 
passed through the Vancouver International 
Airport (YVR), which is an increase of 
9.4% from the same time period last year. 

• With a loosening of COVID-19 pandemic 
restrictions, YVR is seeing a substantial 
increase in travelers. In the first quaiier of 
2022, 2.8 million passengers moved 
through the airp011, which is a 344% 
increase over the same time period last 
year. 

• As a sign that tourism continues to recover 
from the most severe impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, room revenues in 
Richmond for January 2022 were $12.lM, 
which is double the revenues for January 
2021. 

• Travelers are arriving from both within the 
province and fmiher afield. Environics 
Analytics repo11s that, for the week ending 
March 27, 2022, B.C.'s weekly domestic 
overnight visitation increased by 21 % 
compared to the same week in 2019. 

12 City of Richmond Additional Hotel Room Tax Ledger; Destination BC - Richmond Hotel Revenue for QJ 2021 includes Janua!J' data only. 
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Residential Real Estate13 

In the first qumier of 2022, home sales activity remained elevated in Richmond's housing 
market, although down slightly compared to last years numbers. Sales activity in the first pmi of 
the second quarter is slowing down in response to increases in the interest rate. In the first 
quarter, Richmond is still seeing an upward pressure on prices across all housing categories due 
to low supply. 
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13 Real Estate Board a/ Greater Vancouver 
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• Single family detached (SFD) home sales 
decreased by 20% compared to Q 1 2021. 

• Townhouse and apartment sales have 
decreased 33% and increased 1.3%, 
respectively, compared to Ql 2021. 

• Townhouse sales comprise 19% of the 
residential home sales in Richmond. SFD 
and apartment sales account for 28% and 
53%, respectively, of home sales in 
Richmond. 

• There were 1,292 residential home sales in 
Richmond in Ql 2022, a 13% decrease 
compared to the same period last year. 

• Richmond residential prope1ties had a 
sales-to-active listings ratio of 54% as of 
March 31 , 2022 representing a sellers 
market. 

• At Q 1 2022, SFD properties in Richmond 
had an average of 42 days on the market, 
a 25% decrease compared to Q 1 2021 . 

• Townhouses and apartments had an 
average of 18 and 23 days on the market, 
respectively, representing a 46% and 38% 
decrease respectively over the same 
period last year. 
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Greater Vancouver -Average Days on Market 
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• At Q 1 2022, SFD properties in the 
GVRD had an average of 30 days on the 
market, which represents a 23% decrease 
compared to Q 1 2021. 

• Townhouses and apartments in the 
GVRD had an average of 16 and 22 days 
on the market, which represents a 
decrease of 37% and 38% respectively, 
over the same period in 2021. 

• The Home Price Index (HPI) 14 for SFD 
prope1iies in Richmond at Q 1 2022 was 
$2,181 ,700, a 25% increase compared to 
Q 1 2021. The GVRD housing market has 
also increased with SFD prope1iies 
priced at $2,118,600, which was a 25% 
increase compared to the same quarter 
last year. 

• At Q 1 2022, the HPI for townhouse 
properties in Richmond was $1,100,600, 
an increase of 27% compared to Ql 
2021. The HPI for townhome properties 
in the GVRD was $1 ,138,300, which 
represented a 31 % increase compared to 
the same time last year. 

• The HPI for apartments in Richmond was 
$828,100, an increase of 19% compared 
to Ql 2021. GVRD' s apartment prices 
increased to $835,500, which was a 17% 
increase from Q 1 2021 . 

In accordance with the Host Financial Assistance Agreement with the Province of BC, the 
Province pays 10% of net gaming income to the City. Net gaming revenue is calculated as net 
win from casino games less (i) fees payable by BC Lottery Corporation (BCLC) to the service 
provider and (ii) BCLC's administrative and operating costs. Distributions are subject to 
volatility due to fluctuations in net win from casino games, operating costs and accounting 
adjustments. 

14 Home Price Index is a tool to measure home prices trends in Metro Vancouver and other major markets in the country. It is an alternative 
measure of real estate prices that provides the market trends over traditional tools such as mean or median average prices. 
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Gaming Revenue by Quarter 
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• The River Rock casino reopened July 1, 
2021 , after being closed since March 16, 
2020. 

• Gaming revenue for Q 1 2022 was 
$2,651,401 ; it was $nil for Ql 2021 as 
the casino remained closed. 

• The 2022 budget for Gaming revenues is 
$14,500,000 based amounts received pre­
Covid. 

On March 16, 2020, the Attorney General ordered the temporary closure of all gambling 
facilities in British Columbia in consultation with and on the advice of the Provincial Health 
Officer. This action was taken in order to protect British Columbians and ensure that the 
province was in the best position to effectively respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. The closure 
of gambling facilities has directly impacted casino revenue since March 2020. 

On June 29, 2021 , the provincial government announced that certain businesses can reopen, such 
as casinos. The Great Canadian Gaming Corporation reopened the River Rock Casino Res01i on 
Thursday, July 1, 2021. The City received $5,700,108 as payments for the third and fourth 
quaiiers in 2021. 

The City will continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19 and the allocation of gaming revenue 
according! y. 

Operating Activity 

Table 1 compares budget to unaudited actual activity up to March 31 , 2022. The net figure 
represents combined revenue and expense amounts. Actuals includes estimates for revenues 
earned and expenses incurred to date where invoices may not yet be issued or received. 
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Table 1: Net Operational Activity for the p eriod January 1, 2022 to March 31, 2022 (in $000 's) 

Qt YTD Net Qt YTD Ql YTD QI YTD 
Division/Department' Budget2 Actuals and Variance($) Variance(%) 

Commitments3 

Community Safety4 $(962) $(1,093) $131 14% 

Community Services 12,870 12,000 870 7% 

Corporate Administration 2,406 2,065 341 14% 

Engineering and Public Works 26,097 25,920 177 1% 

Finance and Corporate Services 6,682 5,842 840 13% 

Fire Rescue 12,055 11,557 498 4% 

Library 3,297 3,214 83 3% 

Plann ing and Development 2,337 2,243 94 4% 

Policing 17,495 17,035 460 3% 

Fiscal (27,118) (27,174) 56 0% 

Law and Legislative Services 1,141 1,083 58 5% 

Total $56,300 $52,692 $3,608 6% 

Water Utility 

Sanitary Sewer Utility 

Sanitation and Recycling Utility 

7,672 

5,288 

97 

7,221 

5,206 

47 

451 

82 

50 

6% 

2% 

52% 

Utilities Total $13,057 $12,474 $583 4% 
'Net Operational Activity does not include amounts related to capital such as: contributed assets, developer contributions, amortization, etc. It 
does not represent Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, but is presented on a modi fied cash basis. 
2The Net Budget is based on the budget approved by Counci l on January 24, 2022. 
31ncludes budgeted equity transactions such as transfer to reserves, transfer to provision etc. 
' Includes Communi ty Safety Administration, Business Licences, Community Bylaws and Emergency Programs. 

The following section provides an explanation on a Divisional/Departmental basis of year to date 
variances in relation to the 2022 Revised Financial Plan: 

• Co1mnunity Safety (excluding fire rescue and policing) has a favourable variance due to 
vacant positions and lower year to date operating spending offset by lower parking 
revenues due to COVID-19. 

• Community Services' favourable variance is due to a combination of vacant positions and 
timing of operating expenditures that are anticipated to be made up in the second and third 
quarters of the year. 

• Corporate Administration's favourable variance is mainly due to vacant positions. 

• Engineering and Public Works is on budget. 
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• Finance and Corporate Services' favourable variance is mainly due to vacant positions, 
which is paiily attributable to recruitment challenges and favourable general operating 
expenses. 

• Fire Rescue's favourable variance is due to lower actual salaries for Firefighters than what 
was budgeted due to the timing of pay increases, vacant positions and the timing of 
operating spending. 

• The Library's favourable variance is mainly due to vacant positions. Any surplus at year­
end will be appropriated for future use within Library operations. 

• Planning and Development is on budget. 

• Policing favourable variance is due to the timing of RCMP Contract costs and municipal 
employee vacant positions. 

• Fiscal is on budget. 

• Law and Legislative Services' favorable variance is mainly due to vacant positions. 

• Water Utility's favorable variance is due to seasonal variances. 

• Sanitary Sewer Utility is on budget. 

• Sanitation and Recycling Utility's favourable variance is mainly due to higher than 
expected revenue. 

The presentation of the figures for the Financial Statement, Statement of Operations is different 
from the Net Budget presentation above. The above presentation combines revenues and 
expenses and presents the net amount inclusive of transfers. The Statement of Operations 
presents the revenues and expenses separately and prior to any appropriations and transfer to 
reserves. The Statement of Operations for the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2022, with 
comparative figures for 2021 is included in Attachment 3. 

Cash and Investment Portfolio 

For the first time in two years since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Bank of Canada (the 
Bank) increased the overnight interest rate by 0.25% at the March 2, 2022 interest rate 
announcement. The soaring inflation that was reported at a historical high level of 6. 7% for Q 1 
2022 has prompted the Bank to further increase the overnight interest rate by 0.50% on April 13, 
2022 as a policy tool to tighten money supply. 

It is anticipated that the interest rate will continue to rise as the spike in energy and other 
commodity prices in the wake of Russia's invasion of Ukraine and supply chain disruptions are 
driving inflation higher than expected. Next interest rate announcement is scheduled to take 
place on June 1, 2022 where further interest rate hike is anticipated. 
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T bl 2 M A t 1 t tR t (fi l r l ,. ,. l ) 
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
( current quarter) (previous quarter) 

2 Year Govermnent of Canada Bonds 2.31% 0.99% 
5 Year Govermnent of Canada Bonds 2.42% 1.30% 
10 Year Govermnent of Canada Bonds 2.43% 1.47% 

Source: Bank of Canada 

The City's cash and investment balance of $1.32 billion as of March 31, 2022 was comprised of 
$700.2 million in investments and $622.7 million in high interest savings cash account, with a 
weighted average interest yield of 1.55%. The interest yield is anticipated to improve over the 
remainder of the year as the p011folio is being repositioned gradually for yield optimization in the 
projected rising interest rate enviromnent. 

The City's overall credit risk exposure remains low because the City continues to maintain a 
diversified and high credit quality investment p011folio comprising of 40% in provincial 
govermnent bonds, 46% in chartered banks, 3% in federal credit union and 11 % in local credit 
unions. As shown in the investment maturity summary in the chart below, the City has been 
strategically positioned with heavier weighting on cashable and sh011-term interest bearing 
products in order to allow for more flexible reinvestment opportunities in a rising interest rate 
enviromnent. 

Ql 2022 Investment Maturity Summary 

Under l year 

1 t02\•ears -------

2 to 3 years 

3 to4years 
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I 
OverSyears -

so S50 5100 5150 
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• Banks • BC Cledit Unions • federal Credit Union • Provinces 

Q I 2022 Investment Maturity Summary 
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Staff will continue to monitor the interest rate movement and will strategically reposition its cash 
and investments to ensure that, amongst its investment policy objectives, capital preservation and 
liquidity continue to be the most critical considerations for all municipal investment decisions. 

All investment activities have been conducted in compliance with the City's Investment Policy 
3703. Based on independent ESG rating of the City's fixed income p011folio, the City continues 
to receive high ESG Rating of "AA" as ofQl 2022. 
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Contract A wards 

In accordance with Policy 3104, this repmi provides information on new contract awards and 
aggregate contract extensions greater than $75,000. During the first quarter, 33 contracts greater 
than $75,000 were awarded totalling over $26.6 million (Attachment 4). 

Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

The March 31, 2022 financial information report provides details on the economic environment, 
financial results and other key indicator information to the Finance Committee for review. 

Cindy Gilfillan, CPA, CMA 
Manager, Financial Reporting 
(604) 276-4077 

Att. 1: 
Att. 2: 
Att. 3: 
Att. 4: 
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Attachment 1 

I Economic Indicators March 31, 2022 I 
Macroeconomic Indicators & Forecast 

1) Real GDP (% at YE) 2020 2021 Change 2022f 2023f 

Canada (5.4) 4 .6 (185.2%) 3.9 2.8 

United States (3 .5) 5.7 (262.2%) 3.7 2.3 

China 2.3 8.1 252.2% 4.4 5.1 

World (3.3) 6 .1 (284.8%) 3.6 3.6 

2) Interest Rates (at YE) 2020 2021 Change 2022f 2023f 
Bank of Canada 0.25 0.25 0.0% 2.0 2.0 

US FED 0.13 0.13 0.0% 2.38 2.63 

3) Exchange Rate (at YE) 2020 2021 Change 2022f 2023f 
CAD per $1 USO 1.27 1.26 (0 .8%) 1.27 1.34 

Regional and Local Market Indicators 

4) Unemployment(% at QE) 01 -2022 04-2021 Change 01 -2021 Change 

Canada 5.3 6.0 (11 .7%) 7.5 (29.3%) 

BC 5.1 5.4 (5.6%) 6.9 (26.1%) 

Metro Vancouver 5.4 5.8 (6.9%) 8.0 (32 .5%) 

5) CPI (2002=100) (at QE) 01-2022 04-2021 Change 01-2021 Change 
Canada 148.9 144.0 3.4% 139.6 6.7% 

BC 143.0 138.0 3.6% 134.9 6.0% 

Metro Vancouver 145.3 138.5 4.9% 137.4 5.7% 

6) Richmond Building Permits 01-2022 01-2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 

Residential - New Construction" 75 63 19.0% 75 63 19.0% 

Residential - Alterations 81 68 19.1% 81 68 19.1% 

Residential Total 156 131 19.1% 156 131 19.1% 

" Number of units from new residentia l 132 668 (80.2%) 132 668 (80 .2%) 
construction 

Residential 156 131 19.1% 156 131 19.1% 

Commercial 107 109 (1 .8%) 107 109 (1 .8%) 

Industrial 51 64 (20.3%) 51 64 (20.3%) 

Building Permits Total 314 304 3.3% 314 304 3.3% 

Construction Value ($ million) 141.0 330.0 (57.3%) 141 .0 330.0 (57.3%) 

7) Housing Starts (Units) 01 -2022 01 -2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 
Starts - Metro Vancouver 4 ,308 7,322 (41.2%) 4,308 7,322 (41 .2%) 

Starts - Richmond 482 783 (38.4%) 482 783 (38.4%) 

8) Richmond Residential Sales 
Activity 01 -2022 01 -2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 
Sales - Detached 357 444 (19.6%) 357 444 (19 .6%) 

Sales - Townhouse 244 363 (32.8%) 244 363 (32.8%) 

Sales - A~artment 691 682 1.3% 691 682 1.3% 

Sales - Total 1,292 1,489 (13.2%) 1,292 1,489 (13.2%) 
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Attachment 1 

I Economic Indicators March 31, 2022 I 

Regional and Local Market Indicators (continued) 

9) Richmond Sales to Active Listings 
Ratio (% at QE) Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 

Single Family Detached 31.4% 43.8% (28 .3) 

Townhouse 73.9% 83.3% (11 .3) 

Apartment 72 .2% 56.0% 28.9 

Total 53.8% 55.6% (3.2) 

10) Average Days on Market 

Richmond Metro Vancouver 

Property Type Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 

Single Family Detached 42 56 (25.0%) 30 39 (23.1%) 

Townhouse 18 33 (45 .5%) 16 25 (36.0%) 

Apartment 23 38 (39.5%) 22 35 (37.1%) 

11) Home Price Index ($000 at QE) 

Richmond Metro Vancouver 

Property Type Q1 -2022 Q1 -2021 Change Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 

Single Family Detached 2,182 1,748 24.8% 2,119 1,700 24.6% 

Townhouse 1,101 865 27.3% 1,138 872 30.5% 

Apartment 828 696 19.0% 836 716 16.8% 

12) Commercial Space (at QE) Richmond Metro Vancouver 

Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 

Office Vacancy(%) 9.3 9.7 (4.1%) 8.2 7.3 12.3% 

Transit Oriented Office Vacancy(%) 4.1 4.7 (12 .8%) N/A N/A N/A 

Office Inventory (000 sf) 4,903 4,863 0.8% 64,314 62,419 3.0% 

Industrial Vacancy(%) 0.3 0.7 (57.1%) 0.5 1.0 (50 .0%) 

Industrial Inventory (000 sf) 44,797 44,390 0.9% 221,419 215,520 2.7% 

13) Richmond Business Growth Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 
Total Valid Business Licences 

(at QE) 13,662 13,341 2.4% 13,662 13,341 2.4% 

New Licences - Number Issued 335 353 (5.1 %) 335 353 (5.1%) 

New Licences - Employees 1,223 1,674 (26 .9%) 1,223 1,674 (26.9%) 

New Licences - Office Added (sf) 135,437 181 ,493 (25.4%) 135,437 181,493 (25.4%) 

New Licences - Retail Added (sf) 41 ,294 92,856 (55.5%) 41 ,294 92,856 (55 .5%) 

New Licences - Industrial Added (sf) 220,571 513,963 (57 .1%) 220,571 513 ,963 (57 .1%) 

Total Space Added (sf)/Avg. Change 397,302 788,312 (49.6%) 397 ,302 788,312 (49 .6%) 
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Economic Indicators 

Regional and Local Market Indicators (continued) 

14) Goods & People Movement Q1-2022 

YVR Air Cargo (tonnes)** 66,742 
PMV Container Movement 

(TEUs) 836,143 

YVR Passengers (million)** 2.8 
Richmond Hotel Revenue 
($ million)*** 12.1 

Notes: 
a) 
b) 

QE indicates quarter end; YE indicates year end 
f - forecast to year-end 

Q1-2021 

61,005 

932,963 

0.63 

6.0 

c) 
d) 

• - Figures have been updated to reflect changes in source data. 
•• YVR data for Qt includes January to March 2022 figures. 

e) ... Hotel Room Revenue for Qt includes January 2022 data only 

Change 

9.4% 

(10.4%) 

344.4% 

101 .7% 

List of Sources: 
1) International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook (April 2022) 

YTD-2022 

66,742 

836,143 

2.8 

12.1 

2) & 3) 

4) & 5) 

6) 

US Federal Reserve, Bank of Canada and Royal Bank Economic Research Forecast (March 2022) 

Statistics Canada 

7) 

8), 9) & 10) 

11) 

12) 

13) 

6886 I 57 

City of Richmond Building Permits 

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation 

Real Estate Board of Greater Vancouver 

Cushman & Wakefield Office and Industrial Market Beat Reports 

City of Richmond Business Licences 
Port of Vancouver Monthly Cargo Statistics 
YVR monthly statistics 
City of Richmond Additional Hotel Room Tax Ledger, Destination BC 

Attachment 1 

March 31, 2022 

YTD-2021 Change 

61,005 9.4% 

932,963 (10.4%) 

0.63 344.4% 

6.0 101.7% 
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Attachment 2 

I Financial and Key Indicators March 31, 20221 
{All dollar amounts in $000's) 

1) Development Cost Charges Q1-2022 Q1 -2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 
Contributions 
Roads, Water, Sewer DCC's 

Received $2,076 $4,062 (48.9%) $2,076 $4,062 (48.9%) 

Parks DCC's Received $1 ,412 $2 ,800 {49.6%) $1 ,412 $2,800 (49.6%) 

Total DCC Fees Received $3,488 $6 ,862 (49.2%) $3,488 $6,862 (49.2%) 
DCC Reserves - Uncommitted 

balance at QE $141,384 $139 ,688 1.2% n/a n/a n/a 

2) Uncommitted Reserves (at QE) Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 

Capital Funding Reserves $122,919 $205,389 (40 .2%) 

Utility Reserves $108,091 $105,546 2.4% 

Affordable Housing Reserves $9,157 $5,448 68.1% 

Other Reserves $81 ,382 $68 ,380 19.0% 

Total Uncommitted Reserves $321 ,548 $384,762 (16.4%) 

3) Taxes to date Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 

Taxes Collected $14,134 $12 ,566 12.5% $14,134 $12,566 12.5% 

City Portion of Taxes Col lected $7,208 $6 ,157 17.1% $7,208 $6,157 17.1% 
Unpaid Taxes - Delinquent & 

Arrears (at QE) $11 ,504 $11,415 0.8% $11,504 n/a 0.8% 
No. of Participants on Pre-

authorized withdrawal (at QE) 6,271 6,382 (1.7%) 6,271 n/a (1 .7%) 
Pre-authorized withdrawals 

payments $11 ,761 $8,361 40.7% $11 ,761 $8,361 40.7% 

Interest rate % paid 0.45% 0.45% 0.0% 0.45% 0.45% 0.0% 
Sources: All data is from City of Richmond records 

4) Cash and Investments Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 

Investments $700,219 $790,449 (11.4%) 
Cash (includes high interest 
savings accounts) $622,129 $447 ,681 39.0% 

Total Cash and Investments $1 ,322,348 $1 ,238,130 6.8% 
Average City Rate of Return on 

Investments % 1.55% 1.46% 6.2% 
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Attachment 2 

I Financial and Key Indicators March 31, 20221 
(All dollar amounts in $000's) 

Financial and Key Indicators (continued) 

5) Planning and Development Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 
Building Permit Fees 

Collected $1,670 $3,403 (50.9%) $1,670 $3,403 (50.9%) 
Development Applications 

Received 27 25 8.0% 27 25 8.0% 
Development Applications 

Fees $72 $172 (58.1%) $72 $172 (58 .1%) 

6) Business Licences Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 
Revenue Received for 

Current Year Licences $1,914 $1 ,816 5.4% $1 ,914 $1 ,816 5.4% 
Revenue Received for Next 

Year (Deferred) $100 $93 7.5% $100 $93 7.5% 

Total Licence Revenue $2,014 $1,909 5.5% $2,014 $1,909 5.5% 
Year to date valid licences and revenue include current year licences issued in the prior year. 

7) Other Revenues Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 

Parking Program Revenue $348 $291 19.6% $348 $291 19.6% 

Gaming Revenue $2,651 $0 0.0% $2,651 $0 0.0% 

Traffic Fine Revenue $0 $0 0.0% $0 $0 0.0% 

8) Employees Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 

Employees (at QE) 1,520 1,398 8.7% 
(City and Library) 
FTE includes Regular Full Time, Temporary and Auxiliary status employees. The calculation is based on actual results. 

9) Operating Indicators Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change YTD-2022 YTD-2021 Change 
RCMP - Calls for Service 

Handled 12,612 14,452 (12.7%) 12,612 14,452 (12 .7%) 

Community Bylaws 1,081 895 20.8% 1,081 895 20.8% 

Fire Incidents 2,381 1,920 24.0% 2,381 1,920 24.0% 

Public Works calls for Service 3,314 3,416 (3.0%) 3,314 3,416 (3.0%) 
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I Financial and Key Indicators 
(All dollar amounts in $000's) 

Financial and Key Indicators (continued) 

10) Housing Un its Secured Since 2007 Q1-2022 Q1-2021 Change 
(atQE) 

Affordable Housing 

Non-Market Rental (units) 569 529 7.6% 

Affordable Rental (LEMR**) (units) 919 906 1.4% 

ARTS Rental (units) 37 37 0.0% 

Entry Level Home Ownership (units) 25 25 0.0% 

Market Housing 

Market Rental (units) 1,150 979 17.5% 
Secondary Suite / Coach House 

{units) 322 301 7.0% 

Total Housing Units 3,022 2,777* 8.8% 

* Figures have been updated to reflect changes in source data and methodology. 
** LEMR units refer to Low End Market Rental units. 

Attachment 2 

March 31, 20221 

*** The floor space secured refers to square footage negotiated through phased developments. The number 
remains unchanged, as the development applications for subsequent phases have not come forward at this 
time with the unit breakdown and mix. LEMR units are still consistently secured through standard rezoning and 
development applications. 

11) Richmond Population Estimate 
Year End 

Population figures from BC Stats 

Notes: 
a) All figures presented above are unaudited 
b) f - forecast to year-end 
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222,099 

2021 

216 ,280 
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Attachment 3 

Unaudited Statement of Operations1 

For the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2022, with comparative figures for 2021. 

(Exeressed in thousands of dollars~ 

Budget Actuals Actuals 
March 31 March 31 March 31 

2022 2022 2021 

Revenue: 

Taxes and levies $64,203 $64,203 $60,190 

Utility fees 30,657 28,757 27,605 

Sales of services 11,236 7,538 7,228 

Payments-in-lieu of taxes 3,663 3,335 3,058 

Provincial and federal grants 2,671 1,151 3,075 

Development cost charges 4,437 4,702 4,837 

Other capital funding sources 17,790 8,084 4,605 

Other revenue: 

Investment income 3,288 3,406 3,252 

Gaming revenue 3,625 2,651 

Licences and permits 2,625 4,023 3,882 

Other 4,383 10,945 2,408 

Eguitt income 173 520 451 

148,751 139,315 120,591 

Expenses: 

Community safety 33,463 31,237 28,779 

Utilities: water, sewer and sanitation 28,039 24,395 23,475 
Engineering, public works and project 

development 20,334 20,170 16,612 

Community services 17,881 13,594 12,687 

General government 20,058 19,081 16,332 

Planning and development 6,468 5,292 4,293 

Libra~ services 2,829 2,738 2,234 

129,072 116,507 104,412 

YTD Surplus (Annual Surplus)2 19,679 22,808 16,179 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 3,272,200 3,272,200 3,256,021 

Accumulated surelus, end of March 3P $3,291,879 $3,295,008 $3,272,200 

1 Statement of Operations for City and Library after intercompany eliminations, includes investment in Lulu Island Energy Company but excludes 
Oval results. 
2 Annual Surplus is the difference between revenues and expenses and reflects the change in the accumulated surplus on the Statement of 
Financial Position, Annual Surplus is prior to transfer to reserves and surplus appropriations. The revenues include capital contributions, 
development cost charges and other items that impact the investment in tangible capital assets within the accumulated surplus. The expenses 
include amortization which impacts the investment in tangible capital assets in accumulated surplus. 
3 Accumulated surplus is equivalent to the net worth of an organization and is comprised of investment in tangible capital assets, reserves, 
appropriated surplus, general surplus and other equity, 

6886157 

FIN - 129



Item 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

6886157 

Contract Awards greater than $75,000 
January 1st to March 31 st, 2022 

Description Awarded Vendor Awarded 
Amount 

Design and Contract Administration HDR Architecture 221 ,165 
Services for the Richmond Ice Centre Associates, Inc. 
Infrastructure Replacements Phase 2 

Construction Services for No. 9 Road RTR Terra Contracting 1,063,077 
South Dike Upgrade Capital Project Ltd. 

Supply and Delivery of Two (2) Hybrid Mainland Ford Ltd. 139,062 
and/or Fully Electric Low Roof Vans with 
Rear Cargo Doors 

Open Text Contract Renewal Open Text Corporation 211,129 

Arc Maintenance and Support Renewal ESRI Canada Ltd. 192,900 
Contract 

House Demolition at 4831 Steveston Renov8t.com 75,400 
Highway Construction Inc. 

Leadership Training Curriculum The Corker Collective 114,000 
Inc. 

VMware Licensing Including Support and Turning Point Technology 78,170 
Maintenance Services Services Inc. 

Construction Services for City Works Yard Boston Construction 702,232 
Improvements - Phase 2 Corp. 

Gateway Theatre - Rolling Doors Boston Construction 160,624 
Replacement Project Corp. 

Data Visualization and Analytics Solution Tibco Software Ireland 1,512,047 
Ltd. 

Richmond Ice Centre Infrastructure PCL Constructors 4,472,818 
Renewals - Phase 1 Westcoast Inc. 

Capstan Station Integration - Dialog BC Architecture 482,340 
Development of Conceptual Designs Engineering 

Preventative and Repair Maintenance of ESC Automation 278,695 
Direct Digital Control Systems 

Cisco SmartneULicensing Network Telus Communications 109,345 
Renewal Inc. 

Supply of Drainage Pumps, Parts and KSB Pumps Inc. 2,510,000 
Services Agreement 

Provision of Civil Engineering Consulting Associated Engineering 306,586 
Services for No. 2 Road Multi-Use (BC) Ltd . 
Pathway and Bus Speed and Reliability 
Programs 

Attachment 4 

Division 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services 

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Corporate 
Administration 

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Planning & 
Development 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services 

Engineering & 
Public Works 

Engineering & 
Public Works 
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18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

Contract Awards greater than $75,000 (continued) 
January 1st to March 31 st , 2022 

Description Awarded Vendor Awarded 
Amount 

PerfectMind Licensing and Support PerfectMind Inc. 995,000 
Renewal Contract 

Supply and Installation of Dehumidification Entity Mechanical Ltd. 147,313 
Coils and Associated Works at Minoru 
Centre for Active Living 

City of Richmond City Hall Infrastructure Elemental Architecture 119,750 
Replacement and Interiors Inc. 

Flood Protection Public Engagement EPI Ecoplan International 85,730 
Specialist Inc. 

Minoru Arenas System Renewal - Heatherbrae Builders Co. 671 ,597 
Construction Services Ltd. 

Supply and Delivery of LED Street Name Image Sign & Lighting 470,771 
Signs Inc. 

Operation of Restorative Justice Program Touchstone Family 100,700 
- 2022 Association 

Construction Services for Minoru Lakes Wilco Civil Inc. 8,469,553 
Renewal 

Burkeville Utility Upgrades - Phases 2&4 - PW Trenchless 491,365 
Sanitary Sewer Pipe Bursting Construction Inc. 

Oracle Database Software and Solaris Eclipsys Solutions 774,433 
Hardware Purchase 

Supply and Delivery of CO2 and Tank Linde Canada Inc. 164,353 
Rental for Minoru Centre for Active Living 
2022 - 2025 

Load Balancer Hardware Including Compugen Inc. 160,211 
Support and Maintenance Services 

Supply and DelivE;lry of SQL Servers Turning Point Technology 245,711 
Services Inc. and 
CDW Canada Corp. 

Oracle - PeopleSoft Annual Maintenance Oracle 634,564 
and Support (License Renewal for HCM 
and FSCM) 

Janitorial Services at Community Safety Nutech Facility Services 360,000 
Building Ltd. 

Amanda (Municipal Property Management CSDC Systems Inc. 116,027 
System) Software Support and 
Maintenance 

Total contracts awarded greater than $75,000 $26,636,668 

6886 157 
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Engineering & 
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Engineering & 
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Engineering & 
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Services 

Engineering & 
Public Works 
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Services 

Community 
Services 
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Services 
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Corporate 
Services 

Finance & 
Corporate 
Services 

Engineering & 
Public Works 
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Corporate 
Services 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Ivy Wong, CPA, CMA 
Acting Director, Finance 

Report to Committee 

Date: May 10, 2022 

File: 03-0975-01/2022-Vol 
01 

Re: Active Capital Projects Information -1 st Quarter March 31, 2022 

Staff Recommendation 

That the staff repo1i titled, "Active Capital Projects lnfonnation - 1st Quarter March 31, 2022", 
dated May 10, 2022 from the Acting Director, Finance, be received for information. 

Ivy Wong, CPA, CMA 
Acting Director, Finance 
( 604-2 7 6-4046) 

Att. 2 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

ROUTED TO: CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE 

Information Technology 0 Sustainability & District Energy 0 
Real Estate Services 0 Fire Rescue 0 
Arts, Culture & Heritage 0 Community Bylaws 0 
Community Social Development 0 Transportation 0 
Parks Services 0 
Recreation and Sport Services 0 CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 
Engineering 0 

211< Facility Services & Project Development 0 
Acting GM, F&CS 

Fleet & Environmental Programs 0 
Roads & Construction 0 
Sewerage & Drainage 0 

SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW INITIALS: AKr DBYC~ 1/4 '\. / - .......___ 

68493 15 

FIN - 132



May 10, 2022 - 2 -

Staff Report 

Origin 

Active Capital Project Information for the 1st Quarter ( ended March 31, 2022) is provided to the 
Finance Committee for information purposes. This report includes the approved 2022 Capital 
Budget and other previously approved capital projects. 

This report supports Council's Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #5 Sound Financial 
Management: 

Accountable, transparent, and responsible financial management that supports the needs 
of the community into the fitture. 

5.2 Clear accountability through transparent budgeting practices and effective public 
communication. 

Analysis 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVE CAPITAL PROJECTS 

Active capital projects represent construction, non-construction and acquisition ( e.g. equipment 
and land) capital projects previously approved by Council. A capital project is considered active 
for the purpose of this report if the project falls within one of the following project completion 
stages: 

Planning and Design includes projects that were previously approved and are 
undergoing design specifications, design approvals, or public consultation. 
Contract Award this includes preparing and issuing a request for proposal, evaluating 
proposals received, and finalizing contract award agreements. 
Construction - includes build out of the approved design either by City workforce or 
under executed agreements. 
Functional Completion- certain projects are completed in phases that allow for portions 
of the project to be functionally complete while the next phase is initiated. 
Project Completion - may include fully functional assets that are in their final inspection 
and acceptance stage, assets that may still require minor deficiencies to be addressed, as­
built drawings to be received, collection of external funding and fulfillment of audit 
requirements, where applicable. 

Capital projects also include amounts set aside for land acquisition, public art, child care and 
affordable housing which are dependent upon external factors such as market conditions, 
availability and external partners. Therefore, these projects are presented to Council prior to final 
approval. 

The approved 2022 Capital Budget of $103.lM (excluding internal transfers and debt 
repayments) and other previously approved active capital projects are summarized by program in 
Table 1. The current balance committed to active capital projects is $535.2M. 
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Table 1: Active Capital Projects by Program (in $'000s) 

Program Plan Year 

Infrastructure Program 2022 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 & older 

Infrastructure Program Total 

Building Program 2022 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 & older 

Building Program Total 

Parks Program 2022 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 & olde r 

Parks Program Total 

Construction Related Programs 

68493 15 

Number 
of Active 
Projects 

47 

49 

53 

25 

19 

193 

9 

13 

8 

13 

13 

56 

10 

11 

8 

11 

25 

65 

314 

Budget 

$47,606 

48,304 

66,970 

26,777 

101,684 

$291,341 

21,424 

109,686 

17,317 

18,443 

155,135 

$322,005 

7,492 

12,450 

10,480 

12,322 

35,892 

$78,636 

$691,982 

Actuals as at 
March 31, 

2022 

$284 

10,389 

31,868 

16,080 

79,902 

$138,523 

4 

3,700 

3,412 

7,365 

115,502 

$129,983 

700 

1,448 

5,218 

23,777 

$31,143 

$299,649 

Expected 
Commitments/ Work 

In Progress 

$47,322 

37,915 

35,102 

10,697 

21,782 

$152,818 

21,420 

105,986 

13,905 

11,078 

39,633 

$192,022 

7,492 

11,750 

9,032 

7,104 

12,115 

$47,493 

$392,333 
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Table 1: Active Capital Projects by Program (in $'000s) - continued 

Program Plan Year 

Affordable Housing Program 2022 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 & older 

Affordable Housing Program Total 

Child Care Program 2022 

2021 

2018 & older 

Child Care Program Total 

Equipment Program 2022 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 & older 

Equipment Program Total 

Land Program 2022 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 & older 

Land Program Total 

Public Art Program 2022 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 & older 

Public Art Program Total 

Contingent External Contribution 2022 

Contingent External Contribution Total 

Non-construction Related Programs 

Grand Total 

6849315 

Number 
of Active 
Projects 

1 

3 

1 

2 

2 

9 

3 

1 

1 

5 

16 

11 

8 

11 

14 

60 

1 

2 

1 

1 

4 

9 

1 

1 

1 

1 

3 

7 

1 

1 

91 

405 

Budget 

400 

3,999 

400 

425 

3,000 

$8,224 

260 

112 

100 

$472 

10,686 

8,444 

5,577 

13,941 

13,087 

$51,735 

5,000 

30,000 

10,000 

10,000 

52,044 

$107,044 

201 

185 

745 

563 

5,434 

$7,128 

9,693 

$9,693 

$184,296 

$876,278 

Actuals as 
at 

March 31, 
2022 

172 

31 

114 

$317 

57 

66 

11 

$134 

20 

2,445 

2,730 

7,189 

8,295 

$20,679 

1,759 

13,124 

$14,883 

7 

168 

496 

144 

4,569 

$5,384 

$-
$41,397 

$341,046 

Expected 
Commitments / Work 

In Progress 

400 

3,827 

369 

425 

2,886 

$7,907 

203 

46 

89 

$338 

10,666 

5,999 

2,847 

6,752 

4,792 

$31,056 

5,000 

30,000 

8,241 

10,000 

38,920 

$92,161 

194 

17 

249 

419 

865 

$1,744 

9,693 

$9,693 

$142,899 

$535,232 
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An estimate of $1 OM was included in the 2022 Capital Plan (2022-2026 Financial Plan Bylaw) 
for external grants or contributions that may be received throughout the year. Funding is 
transferred to the approved applicable projects only when funding is confirmed. As of March 31, 
2022, $307,000 was received and the budget for Contingent External Contribution was adjusted 
to $9,693,000. 

YEAR TO DATE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

The following is an overview of the actual capital expenditures on a cash-basis for the quaiier 
ended March 31. 

Figure 1- Capital Expenditures for the Quarter Ended March 31 

12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

Capita l Expenditures for the Quarter Ended March 31 

(in $000's) 

-Infrastructure Program Building Pro_gram Pa rks Program 

• Ql 2021 • Ql 2022 

Infrastructure Program: 

Non-Construction Related 

Programs 

The $4.SM year-over-year decrease in QI capital expenditure is mainly driven by $3.0M in 
funding for the Canada Line Capstan Station and $I.OM for Eckersley B Sanitary Pump Station 
incurred in 2021. 

Building Program: 

The $2.SM year-over-year increase is mainly driven by $ l .2M for Animal Shelter Replacement 
and $0.9M for Richmond Curling Club. 

Parks Program: 

The $3.3M year-over-year increase is mainly driven by $2.3M of parkland acquisition at 8528 
Ash Street and $0.7M of work for Aberdeen Park. 
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Non-Construction Related Programs: 

The $0.3M increase is mainly driven by $2.6M spent on fire vehicle purchases in QI 2022 offset 
against $2.3M in spending for other vehicle purchases and equipment in QI 2021. 

The following are capital projects with the highest current year-to-date capital expenditures 
(actuals on a cash-basis) as at March 31 , 2022. 

Table 2: Capital projects with the highest current year-to-date capital expenditures (in $'000s) 

Project Name 
Current Vear-to-Date 

Actuals 

Parkland Acquisition (2017) $2,320 

Fire Vehicle Replacement Reserve Purchases {2019) 1,509 

Animal Shelter Replacement (2018) 1,252 

Fire Vehicle (2019) 1,120 

Richmond Curling Club Ice Plant Replacement & Other Systems (2021) 955 

Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation Fund Infrastructure Upgrades (2020) 785 

Watermain Replacement Upgrades Program (2021) 737 

Thompson Community Centre & Hall Infrastructure Renewals (2021) 490 

Burkeville Utility Improvements Drainage (2021) 474 

Minor Building Capital Improvement (2020) 444 

INFLATION AND COST ESCALATION 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there are material supply sh011ages and pressure on the tight 
labour market. This in tum has resulted in price volatility of constmction materials. According to 
Statistics Canada, the non-residential construction price index in Vancouver has increased by 8.8% 
from Q 1 2021 to Q 1 2022, which exceeded the Vancouver Consumer Price Index increase of 5. 7% 
from March 2021 to March 2022. This trend will continue in the sh011 te1m due to continued high 
inflation and extreme energy prices brought on by the war in Ukraine, and could impact the 
construction cost of existing capital projects. Staff will continue to evaluate its impact and attempt 
to contain costs within the approved capital program by reallocating budget between existing 
approved capital projects. All budget reallocations will be reported to Council through the active 
capital projects quaiierly infonnation rep011 and the budget amendment rep011. Should staff no 
longer be able to contain costs within the existing approved project budget, staff will bring forward 
a sepai·ate report to Council to discuss potential funding options. 

CAPITAL BUDGET REALLOCATIONS 

Council Policy 3001 requires changes to the Capital Budget be repo11ed to the Finance 
Committee. The following reallocations were recorded in the first quarter of 2022: 
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Table 3: Budget Reallocations (in $'000s) 

Contingent External Contingent External Contribution Public Works Infrastructure $250 
Contribution & (2022) Advanced Design (2021) 
Infrastructure 

Contingent External Contingent External Contribution Arteria l Roadway Improvement 56 
Contribution & (2022) Program (2019) 
Infrastructure 

Equipment Workforce Management (2016) PeopleSoft HCM 9.2 Update (2020) 10 

Contingent External Contingent External Contribution Public Art Program (2022) 1 
Contribution & (2022) 
Public Art 

, Total Budget Reallocations $317 

During the first quarter, the City also received the following grant payments from various 
funding partners: 

$151,377 from Government of Canada under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure 
Program- COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream for Thompson Community 
Centre and Hall Infrastructure Renewals 
$139,040 from BC Hydro under the CleanBC grant for the replacement of equipment in 
existing buildings to reduce Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions 
$88,750 from Coast Mountain Bus Company to fund the Transit-Related Roadway 
Improvement Program under the 2021 Transit Related Road Infrastructure Program 
$77,275 from Canadian Heritage to fund the renovation of Steveston Museum Main 
Room 
$75,318 from Transp01t Canada for the implementation of road and rail safety measures 
at Williams Road and Shell Road 

These external grants have already been considered in the approved capital project budgets and 
no budget reallocations are requested at this time. 

GRANT APPLICATIONS 

Council has approved the following grant applications and the City is cunently awaiting results. 
As such, the budget in Table 1 does not reflect the following amounts: 
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Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program Green Infrastructure Enviromnental Quality 
Stream grant for drainage infrastructure and capacity enhancement components in 
Minoru Park for a funding of $2,310,000 
Government of Canada Active Transportation Fund for City Centre cycling network 
expansion for a funding of $4,110,000 
Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program - Community, Culture and Recreation (CCR) 
Intake Phase 2 for the Cultural Centre Annex for a maximum available funding of 
$2,400,000 
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National Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP) for Mitigation Planning - the Steveston 
Island Preliminary Dike Design submission for a maximum available funding of 
$500,000 
ICBC 2021 Road Improvement Program - Funding will be determined at the point of 
grant approval 

IDGHLIGHTS OF KEY CAPITAL PROJECTS 

Information on key capital projects include the adjusted project budgets including transfers from 
other projects and budget amendments, actuals on a cash-basis, and remaining commitments as 
at March 31, 2022. 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

The City's Infrastructure program includes construction for roads, lanes, street systems, public 
walkways and paths, street lighting, water distribution networks, sanitary sewer systems, and 
drainage and flood protection systems. Many of the active infrastructure projects are in the 
design and permitting stages. With the current Provincial and Federal regulatory framework, the 
design and approval process for many drainage projects (including pump stations and dike 
upgrades) can take between one to two years. 

There are continued upgrades for drainage and sanitary pump stations, dikes and roads 
tlu·oughout the City along with infrastructure improvements in the Burkeville area, Steveston 
area and various other locations. Table 4 provides the highlights for the key infrastructure capital 
projects. 

Table 4: Key Infrastructure Capital Projects (in $'000s) 

Actuals as at 
Expected 

Program Project Name Budget March 31, 
Commitments 

/Work In 
2022 

Progress 

Drainage Drainage Pump Station and Diking Upgrades - $12,216 $2,903 $9,313 
Federa l Grant (2020-2022) 

Drainage Burkeville Area Drainage and Utility Improvements 2,236 2,002 234 
- Phase 3 (2020) 

Road & No. 4 Road Reconstruction and Box Culvert Repair 2,786 1,240 1,546 
Drainage {2018, 2020} 

Road Annual Aspha lt Re-Paving Program - MRN and Non 4,933 743 4,190 
MRN (2021) 

Road Annual Aspha lt Re-Paving Program - MRN and Non 5,032 - 5,032 
MRN {2022} 

Sanitary Steveston Laneway Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 7,400 824 6,576 
(2020-2022) 

Water Watermain Replacement Program (2021) 6,196 1,723 4,473 

Total Key Infrastructure Capital Projects $40,799 $9,435 $31,364 
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BUILDING 

The Building Program includes major building construction and renovation projects as well as 
minor facility upgrades. Table 5 provides the highlights for the key building capital projects. 

Table 5: Key Building Capital Projects (in $'000s) 

Actuals as at 
Expected 

Project Name Budget March 31, 
Commitments/ 

Work In 
2022 

Progress 

Animal Shelter Replacement (2018) $8,000 $5,112 $2,888 

Richmond Curling Club - Priority 1 Repairs (2022) 650 - 650 

Richmond Ice Centre Infrastructure Renewa ls - Phase 1 (2020) 6,850 1,191 5,659 

Richmond Nature Park Infrastructure Renewals (2022) 4,775 - 4,775 

Community Safety Building (2020) 1,420 84 1,336 

Richmond Courthouse (2019-2020) 1,932 143 1,789 

South Arm Community Centre Infrastructure Renewals (2022) 1,900 - 1,900 

Britannia Shipyards Envelope & Mechanical System Renewals 2,125 4 2,121 

(2022) 

Watermania Mechanical and Pool Equipment Renewals (2022) 2,200 - 2,200 

Minoru Arenas (2019, 2021) 4,580 1,880 2,700 

City Hall Infrastructure Replacement (2020-2021) 4,270 129 4,141 

Works Yard Improvements (2018-2019) 4,222 1,486 2,736 

Steveston Community Centre and Branch Library (2021) 95,000 - 95,000 

Total Key Building Capital Projects $137,924 $10,029 $127,895 

Attachment 1 includes the Q 1 2022 Construction Update on Engineering and Public Works 
Capital Projects as well as the project budget and the scheduled construction completion. 

PARKS 

The Parks program includes the development and replacement of parks, trails, community garden 
and natural areas in Richmond. Key Parks capital projects are summarized in Table 6 below with 
the project highlights outlined in Attachment 2. 
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Table 6: Key Parks Capital Projects (in $'000s) 

Expected 

Project Name Budget 
Actuals as at Commitments 

March 31, 2022 /Work In 
Progress 

Alexandra Park (formerly West Cambie Park) (2019) $1,770 $1,304 $466 

Aberdeen Park Phase 2 and 3 (2018, 2019) 2,050 1,652 398 

Garden City Lands Phase 2 and 3 (2016-2018) 6,170 3,151 3,019 

Riverport and Cook Community Gardens (2020) 180 149 31 

Minoru Lakes Renewal (2019-2021) 9,810 318 9,492 

King George Park Rugby Field Upgrades (2013) 374 202 172 

Lang Park Completion (2020) 250 145 105 

London Heritage Farm Master Plan Phase 1 (2022) 612 - 612 

Dog Park Upgrades (2021) 200 1 199 

London/Steveston Park Enhancements (2017, 2019-2020) 950 669 281 

Hollybridge Pier/Middle Arm (2010, 2012, 2015) 2,350 2,012 338 

The Gardens Agricultural Park (2015) 1,100 598 502 

South Arm Park Renewal (2021) 300 - 300 

Playground Improvement & Replacement (2018, 2020-2022) 2,050 952 1,098 

Parks Aging Infrastructure (2018-2022) 2,720 1,797 923 

Parks General Development (2020-2022) 1,350 324 1,026 

Parks Identity Signage Program (2021-2022) 200 30 170 

Total Key Parks Capital Projects $32,436 $13,304 $19,132 

TRANSPORTATION 

The Transpotiation department implements a range of capital projects each year throughout 
Richmond, including new or widening of existing arterial roads, traffic signals, sidewalks, 
walkways, bicycle lanes, upgrades to transit-related road infrastructures and traffic safety and 
traffic calming projects. Table 7 provides the highlights for the key Transp011ation capital 
projects. 

Garden City Pedestrian and Cyclist Enhancements, Westminster Highway to Lansdowne Road 
This project adds separated cycling and pedestrian facilities along a popular cycling route to 
improve public safety and contribute to the City's long-term objective of providing physical 
separation between cyclists and motor vehicles along arterial roads. The addition of an extruded 
curb and paving of a 1.8m wide cycling path have been completed. This adds an additional 350m 
of separated cycling path to the City network, while maintaining the existing number of vehicle 
travel lanes. 

Alierial Road Improvement Program 
Through the Alierial Road Improvement Program, Transp011ation has been making 
improvements to reduce collisions and improve pedestrian and cycling safety at intersections, 
such as the removal of channelized right-tum islands. At the notihwest intersection of Garden 
City Road and Lansdowne Road, the channelized right-tum lane and corresponding island were 
removed and replaced with a standard curb return and pedestrian facilities. A 40m section of the 
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southbound on-street bike lane was also upgraded to an off-street bike path including an 
additional 25m of treed landscaped boulevard. This project connects to the work on the west side 
of Garden City Road between Lansdowne Road and Westminster Highway where the paved 
shoulder was upgraded to a protected multi-use pathway. Two other channelized island removals 
within this project are slated to be completed by Q4 2022. 

Table 7: Key Transportation Capital Projects (in $'000s) 

Expected 
Actuals as at C . 

. omm,tments 
ProJect Name Budget March 31, / W k 

1 2022 or n 
Progress 

Garden City Road Pedestrian and Cyclist Enhancements, 
Westminster Highway to Lansdowne Road (2019) 

$1,000 $688 $312 

Arterial Roadway Improvement Program (2020) 800 255 545 

Total Key Transportation Capital Projects . . , ·. $1,800 .. , '$943 · · $857_ 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

The affordable housing program supports the creation of affordable housing in paiinership with 
senior levels of government, non-profit organizations and the private sector. The key affordable 
housing capital projects are highlighted below and summarized in Table 8. 

Bridgep01i Supportive Housing 
The City has partnered with BC Housing to develop 40 units of supp01iive housing on City­
owned land on Smith Street. The Bridgeport Supportive Housing will provide housing and on­
site supp01i to help Richmond residents experiencing homelessness transition to housing 
stability. Building occupancy is targeted for summer 2022. 

Pathways Affordable Housing 
The City is partnering with BC Housing and Pathways Clubhouse to build new affordable 
housing on City-owned land at 5491 No. 2 Road. The six-storey building will provide 80 new 
homes for single people, families and seniors. Rental rates will accommodate both low-income 
and moderate-income households. Construction is scheduled to staii in 2022. 

Table 8: Key Affordable Housing Capital Projects (in $'000s) 

Expected 
Actuals as at C . 

. ommrtmenh 
ProJect Name Budget March 31, / W k 

1 2022 or n 
Progress 
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CHILD CARE 

The Child Care program supports the creation of child care spaces by accepting voluntary 
contributions from developers in the form of built child care facilities or cash-in-lieu contribution 
to the Child Care Statutory Reserves. The key Child Care projects are highlighted below and 
summarized in Table 9. 

Child Care Projects - City-wide (Capital Grants) 
A total of $50,000 in Child Care Capital Grants was approved and distributed to eight child care 
programs in Richmond. These funds will supp01i the non-profit child care providers with the 
purchase of essential items including furniture, play equipment, couches, furnaces, etc. These 
items will enhance the quality of programs for children and will ensure compliance with child 
care regulations. 

Child Care Projects - City-wide Non-Capital Grants 
A Child Care Professional and Program Development Grant totalling $7,400 was approved and 
distributed to a non-profit organization. These funds will be used to purchase resources for the 
Suppo1ied Child Development Program's resource lending library. Materials in this library are 
available to families and child care providers to supp01i the development and inclusion of 
children who require extra suppo1i in order to participate in child care in Richmond. 

Table 9: Key Child Care Capital Projects (in $'000s) 

Expected 
Actuals as at C . 

. ~m~e~ 
ProJect Name Budget March 31, / W k 

1 2022 or n 
Progress 

EQUIPMENT 

The equipment program includes machinery and vehicles for Public Works (PW), Fire Rescue 
Services, City Hall computer hardware, software and other miscellaneous equipment. Table 10 
provides the highlight for the key equipment capital projects. 

Energy Management Projects (2017) 
The mechanical update at Richmond Library Cultural Centre (LCC) involved implementing a 
deep greenhouse gas emission and energy-efficient retrofit of heating and cooling systems. The 
replacement of LCC's mechanical system will ensure reliability and continuity of the facility's 
heating and cooling services, resulting in a 60% GHG reduction (160 tonnes CO2e) annually 
over its lifecycle. The project was funded by CleanBC (BC Hydro) and Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities. The project is almost complete. 
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Energy Management Projects - Gas Equipment Replacement and Upgrade Phase 1 (2019) 
This project involves an upgrade to the heating and cooling control system equipment at the 
Steveston Tennis Shed, two buildings within the City's Operation Works Yard, and one building 
in the Britannia Shipyard. This capital project budget also covers the heating replacement at 
Richmond City Hall and Thompson Community Centre. The project is at the early stage of the 
design. 

Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Purchases (Public Works and Corporate Fleet) 
Annual Replacement of vehicles and equipment are eligible due to age and conditions in 
accordance with Sustainable Green Fleet Policy 2020. The process for replacing aging fleet is to 
establish needs and develop specifications for vehicles and equipment replacements. Steps 
include: sending bid information out to marketplace, evaluating submissions, and awarding 
accordingly. This specific project involves the acquisition of over 40 vehicles and pieces of 
equipment identified for replacement. As of Q 1 2022, 6 units have been completed, 7 units are 
on order, 15 units are awaiting contract award sign offs, and 1 unit is in the process of obtaining 
three quotes. 

Level 2 Electric Vehicle Charging Expansion 
This project involves the installation of 20 chargers at 8 different locations throughout the city. 
As of Ql 2022, all construction have been completed. Reporting requirements are in progress as 
part of the grant funding process with Natural Resources Canada. 

Master Customer Data 
There is an increasing expectation from Richmond residents and businesses to access City online 
services at any time and from any location, and the City's Digital Strategy has provided a wide 
range of benefits to users including increased availability and access to streamlined processes. 
The latest initiative to suppo1i this objective is the plan to launch the MyBusiness module of 
MyRichmond in Q3 2022. It will offer business owners a comprehensive dashboard of 
infonnation and available services at a glance, allowing them to apply for, obtain approvals and 
pay for business licenses without leaving the comfort of their home or office. 

Business Continuity Transition to Laptops 
This project invests in the technical infrastructure required to supp01i staff to be able to work 
remotely and ensure the City has the capacity to operate business services during emergency 
events and planned site interruptions. This project was significant to continuing business 
operations during the recent COVID-19 pandemic and has mostly completed its deployment, 
with estimated completion in Q2 2022. 

Field Devices 
This initiative supp01is equipping City field workers with devices to securely interface with 
Public Works asset management systems, allowing remote access and the ability to update 
service status while away from the office. Completion is expected by Q3 2022. 

6849315 

FIN - 144



May 10, 2022 - 14 -

Oracle RAC Enterprise and Solaris SP ARC Server Upgrades 
Oracle Real Application Clusters (RAC) are mission-critical database component services used 
in the City's financial, payroll, taxation, Public Works asset management, identity access 
management and Geographic Infmmation Systems (GIS). This project will implement a cost­
effective, highly available and modernized Oracle Database RAC infrastructure. Equipment 
installation is complete, and production databases are in the process of being migrated with 
estimated completion by Q4 2022. 

Annual Hardware Refresh 
This is a planned annual replacement program for end-of-service City computer hardware, which 
includes desktops, laptops, backup printers, monitors, cellular phones and iPads. This approach 
maintains business productivity, reduces maintenance costs and ensures computer hardware is 
technically appropriate for the software applications used in City business services and practices. 
Equipment is scheduled for ongoing replacement during the year. 

Table 10: Key Equipment Capital Projects (in $'000s) 

Actuals as at 
Expected 

Project Name Budget March 31, 
Commitments/ 

Work In 
2022 

Progress 

Energy Management Projects (2017) $3,290 $2,968 $322 

Energy Management Projects - Gas Equipment Rep lacement 675 7 668 
and Upgrade Phase 1 (2019) 

Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Purchases (Public Works and 2,949 247 2,702 
Corporate Fleet) (2021) 

Public Electric Vehicle Charging Expansion (2019) 700 483 217 

Master Customer Data (2015) 900 290 610 

Business Continuity Transition to Laptops (2021) 365 262 103 

Field devices (2021) 281 204 77 

Oracle RAC Enterprise and Solaris SPARC Server Upgrades 850 772 78 
(2021) 

Annual Hardware Refresh (2021-2022) 1,041 232 809 

Total Key Equipment Capital Projects $11,051 $5,465 $5,586 

PUBLIC ART 

The Public Art Program is a self-sustaining project funded by private development contributions 
to the Public Art Reserve. The key Public Alt capital project is highlighted below in Table 11. 

West Cambie Neighbourhood Park Public Alt Project (2018) 
The functional aitwork, installed at Alexandra Park, is based on the theme of "Connectivity, 
Ecology, Infrastructure and History". Inspired by its landscape setting, the mtwork will provide 
shelter for park visitors enjoying picnics, taking part in exercises, or watching performance. The 
installation is cmTently underway with completion expected in Q2 2022. 
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Project Name Budget 
Actuals as at 

March 31, 
2022 

Expected 
Commitments 

/Work In 
Progress 

West Cambie Neighbourhood Park Public Art Project (2018) $725 $353 $372 

Total Key Public Art Capital Projects 

CAPITAL PROJECTS EXPECTED TO BE COMPLETED IN NEXT QUARTER 

The following active capital projects are expected to be completed in Q2 2022. 

Table 12: Capital projects expected to be completed in next quarter 

Program Project Name 

Infrastructure Program 

Building Program 

Equipment Program 

6849315 

Brazi lian Elodea Management (2018) 

Cambie Road Improvement, River Road to No. 3 Road (2018) 

Laneway Drainage Upgrade (2020) 

Public Works Minor Capital - Sanitation & Recycling (2019) 

River Parkway Road Extension - Gilbert Road to Cambie Road (2018) 

Sanitary Sewer Replacement - 6000 Block Buswell Street (2020) 

Street Light LED Upgrade Program (2020) 

Water Metering Program (2020) 

Welding Shop Office Relocation and Equipment Upgrades (2021) 

Thompson Community Centre & Hall Infrastructure Renewals (2021) 

Electric Vehicle DC Fast Charging Network Development (2017) 

FIN - 146



May 10, 2022 - 16 -

CAPITAL PROJECTS COMPLETED IN THE QUARTER 

The following active capital projects were closed in the first quarter. Any unspent funding will 
be returned to the original source ( e.g. Reserve Fund) for distribution toward future projects. 

Table 13: Projects Closed in the Quarter Ended March 31, 2022 (in $'000s) 
--,------------ - - - - --- ------- --- - -·~ 

' . Remaining 
. Project Name Budget 

Actuals as at 
March 31, 2022 Budget 

t 

-

City Hall Annex Renovation (2018) $5,700 $5,432 $268 

Minoru Centre for Active Living - Lap Pool 1 Reconstruction 3,000 1,694 1,306 
(2020) 

Watermania Aging Mechanical and Building Envelope 1,000 905 
Infrastructure Replacement (2018) 

East Richmond Community Hall Envelope and Mechanical 402 360 
System Renewals (2019) 

Public Works Minor Capital - Drainage (2020) 400 398 

Public Works Minor Capital - Sanitary (2020) 400 399 

London Farm House Envelope Renewals (2019) 376 362 

Fleet Minor Capital (2020) 280 278 

Works Yard Salt Shed Repairs (2019) 266 217 

Public Works Minor Capital - Traffic (2020) 250 250 

Traffic Signal Power Backup System (UPS) (2021) 200 200 

Gravity Sewer Assessment Program (2020) 150 148 

Development Coordinated Works - Sanitary (2019) * 150 -

*$ I SOK for Development Coordinated Works - Sanitary was approved by Council to leverage development that is 
no longer anticipated. 

CONTRIBUTED ASSETS 

Included in the Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2022-2026) Bylaw was an estimated 
$54.8M for assets that are transfen-ed to the City by developers and third parties. Under the 
Public Sector Accounting Standards, these are recorded as revenue at the fair market value at the 
time of contribution. Any variance between the budgeted and the actual contributed assets 
received will be included in the annual surplus reported on the financial statements. For the 
qua1ter ended March 31 , 2022, the following assets were transfen-ed to the City: 

Prope1ty at 6533 Park Road with a fair market value of $8. lM 
Stonn sewer capital works at 8395 Ruskin Place with a fair market value of $0.3M 

Financial Impact 

None. 
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Conclusion 

This report provides infonnation on active capital projects that were previously approved by 
Council. All previously approved active capital projects are currently within budget. 

Jenny Ho, CPA, CGA 
Manager, Tangible Capital Assets 
(604-276-4223) 

JH:sx 

Att. 1: Ql 2022 Construction Update on Engineering and Public Works Capital Projects 
2: Ql 2022 Construction Update on Parks Capital Projects 
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Q1 2022 Construction Update on Engineering and Public Works Capital Projects 

Flood Protection 

Drainage Pump Station and Diking Upgrades- Federal Grant 
The City secured $13.8 million from the Federal Government through the Disaster Mitigation 
and Adaptation Fund Grant to contribute towards the multi-year $34.45M Flood Protection 
Program that are budgeted from 2020 to 2025. This project includes the upgrades of various 
drainage pump station and diking upgrades. The construction of the Steveston Highway and 
Gilbert Road drainage pump station is scheduled to be completed by the end of Q2 2022 and the 
South Dike Upgrades from No. 3 Road to west of No. 4 Road is scheduled to be completed by 
Q3 2022. Construction for the South Dike Upgrade at No. 9 Road has commenced, with 
construction completion anticipated in Q4 2023. The design of the South Dike Upgrade at No. 4 
Road to No. 5 Road is currently underway and construction is planned to commence in 2023. 

Burkeville Area Drainage, Watennain and Sanitary Sewer Upgrades 
This project consists of upgrades to the City's storm sewer capacity. Aging watermain and 
sanitary sewers will also be upgraded at the same time to minimize ongoing disruption to 
residents and overall construction costs. This project will be performed in phases over 5 to 10 
years. Phase 3 construction is unde1way and is anticipated to be complete by Q3 2022. Phase 4 
will commence Q4 2022. 

Roads 

No. 4 Road Reconstruction and Box Culve1i Repair from Blundell Road to Granville Avenue 
This project involves the reconstruction of the no1ihbound lanes of No. 4 Road from Blundell 
Road to Granville A venue. This section has undergone settlement over the years resulting in road 
surface deterioration. In addition, the joints in the drainage box culve1i located on the west side 
of No. 4 Road are failing which will also be repaired through this project. Construction is 
ongoing and completion is scheduled for Q2 2022. 

Paving Program - Various Locations - City-Wide 
The annual Paving Program works have commenced and enabling concrete works are underway. 
Upcoming locations include 5000 - 6000 Block Granville Avenue, No. 5 Road/ North of 
Cambie Road, 7411 No. 1 Road, and various spot repairs. 

Sanitary Sewers 

Steveston Sanitary Sewer 
This project includes the rehabilitation and upgrades to the City's sanitary sewer in the Steveston 
catchment. This project will be performed in phases over a 5 to 10 year period. Ongoing work 
includes pipe condition assessment and preliminary field investigation. This project utilizes 
trenchless technology which will reduce disruption to nearby residents and businesses during 
construction. The next phase of construction includes sanitary works in the back laneways of 
Regent Street, west of 4th Avenue and Hunt Street, east of 4th Avenue and is scheduled to 
commence in Q3 2022. 
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Watennain Replacement Program 
This project replaces and upsizes aging watermains at the end of their service life with PVC pipe, 
in line with the City's Aging Infrastructure Replacement Strategy. This will minimize unplanned 
maintenance and improve fire protection. Construction in the Springfield area is substantially 
completed and Monteith Road has commenced. 

Thompson Gate Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) Station 
This project includes the construction of a new PRV station on Boundary Road and Thompson 
Gate to connect the neighbourhood's watennain system to Metro Vancouver's Annacis 
transmission main. Completion of the project is required to provide adequate flows to support 
upcoming development in the area. Construction is nearing completion. 

Buildings 

Richmond Animal Shelter 
The project scope includes upgrading the existing 4,580 sq. ft. facility and building a new 
1,600 sq. ft. addition. This work will support the growing population of Richmond, while 
providing improved facilities, amenities and a high quality enviromnent for animal care. 
Construction is mostly complete and an Occupancy Permit has been received. Transitioning of 
the animals to their new spaces is anticipated to be complete by Q2 2022. 

Richmond Curling Club 
The ammonia ice plant at the Richmond Curling Club was replaced with a new energy efficient, 
low ammonia system to meet current engineering code and provincial operating regulations. 
Construction of the ice plant was completed in Ql 2022. 

The Richmond Curling Club also requires significant repairs to the building envelope to stop 
current water ingress and prevent future water damage. The repair work will include roofing 
works and the replacement of various building envelope components including drains, window 
sills, and doors. Additionally, several critical pieces of mechanical equipment will be replaced 
with new higher efficiency units to ensure the health and safety of all occupants and visitors. 
Construction is anticipated for completion by Q2 2023. 

Richmond Ice Centre 
Richmond Ice Centre is a 105,000 sq. ft. facility that includes six ice rinks, change rooms, a 
restaurant and concession, as well as retail spaces. Existing aging equipment and infrastructure 
will be replaced with new and more efficient alternatives. This includes the roof, ice rink floors 
and various mechanical equipment. The equipment and infrastructure replacements will 
minimize unplanned maintenance and enhance life and safety for the users and operators. The 
construction started in QI 2022 and is anticipated for completion in Q4 2023. To enhance the 
public experience, this project is multi-phased to minimize impact on programming, operations 
and service levels. 
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Richmond Nature Park 
The Richmond Nature Park consists of 200 acres ofraised peat bog habitat that once covered 
large portions of Lulu Island. Multiple building components in the various buildings will be 
replaced with new energy efficient equipment and components. Renewals will include fire alarm 
system replacement, on-site septic system replacement, envelope repair and replacement, and 
various building interior upgrades. Construction is anticipated to begin in Q4 2022 with 
completion in Q3 2023. 

Community Safety Building 
The heat pump system has reached the end of its life expectancy. This is the last phase of the 
heat pump replacement works, which will prevent service disruption and potential closure for 
this building. The design has been completed and construction is planned to commence in Q2 
2022. 

Richmond Comthouse 

The two-storey, 64,000 sq. ft. Courthouse and Annex buildings were originally built in 1975 and 
include spaces for the Attorney General Office, Richmond Community Corrections and 
Richmond Family Justice Centre. Aging rooftop mechanical equipment and the electrical panel 
will be replaced with new and more efficient alternatives. Structural seismic upgrades will be 
done to enhance life and safety for the users and operators. The perimeter drainage system, floor 
slab repairs and releveling and minor building envelope repairs will also be completed. Staff 
have procured the design team and contractor, with design completed in Q 1 2022 and anticipated 
construction start in Q3 2022. 

Child Care Centres 
Funding was collected through both the Development Cost Charges and Community Amenities 
Charges. Design and construction for these projects are the responsibility of the developer. 

• Seedlings Early Childhood Development Hub - Keltic Canada Development Co. Ltd. (Title 
was transferred in December 2021 and construction deficiencies were completed in Q 1 
2022). 

• Hummingbird Child Care - Aspac Development Ltd. (Construction completion anticipated 
by Q3 2022). 

South Ann Community Centre 
South Arm Community Centre is located on Williams Road between Garden City and No. 3 
Road. Multiple building components within the facility will be replaced with new energy 
efficient equipment and components. The renewals will include but is not limited to fire alarm 
system replacement, flooring replacement and HV AC upgrades. Construction is scheduled to 
begin in Q4 2022 with construction completion anticipated in Q3 2023. 

Britannia Shipyards 
Within the Britannia Shipyard National Historical Site, there are many buildings that require 
exterior maintenance, roofing and cladding repairs. Additionally, a new dust extraction system 
will be installed in the Richmond Boat Builders Building, restoring the building's use as a 
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functional workshop. Construction will begin in Q3 2022 with anticipated completion in Q2 
2023. 

Watermania 
Watermania is paii of the Riverpmi Sports and Ente1iainment Complex, and offers a complete 
aquatic and fitness experience. Multiple building components in this facility will be replaced 
with new energy efficient equipment and components. Improvements will include upgrades to 
heat exchangers, pool equipment, building envelope and all washrooms and change rooms. 
Construction completion is anticipated in Q4 2023. 

Minoru Arenas 
Building infrastructure renewals and replacements include mechanical and electrical upgrades, 
life and safety equipment upgrades and architectural improvements of the mezzanine viewing 
area and change rooms. Construction has commenced and anticipated for completion in Q3 
2022. 

City Hall 
Electrical room cooling units, Council Chambers fan coil and hot water control valves at City 
Hall will be replaced with modem energy efficient systems. Most of the work will occur within 
unoccupied space such as the main mechanical and electrical rooms and will have minimal 
disruption to normal City operations. Other work includes replacement of the sewage ejector 
pump, renewal of the underground parking lines and replacement of various life-safety devices. 
Construction completion is anticipated by Q4 2022. 

In addition, the green roof membrane above Council Chambers and the fifth floor terrace roof 
has failed and is staiiing to leak. Roof replacement work will be completed from the building 
exterior and no disruption to normal Council Chamber business is anticipated. The work will be 
completed by Q4 2022. 

Public Works Yard 
Buildings in general at the Works Yard have aged beyond their expected lifespan. In advance of 
a broader rebuilding program being finalised and funded, there are many building components 
within each of the active Works Yard facilities that require replacement in order to maintain 
operability. Design is complete and construction is in progress. Construction is estimated to be 
complete by Q3 2023. 

Steveston Community Centre and Branch Library 
The Major Facility Phase 2 project is progressing with the approval of the site location, program 
totaling 60,350 sq. ft., concept design, capital budget and most recently the award of contracts 
for Architectural Services and Pre-Construction Construction Manager Services. Enabling Works 
for site preparation are anticipated to begin by Q4 2022. The current facility will be demolished 
after the three-storey replacement building is complete, which is anticipated by Ql 2026. 
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Capital Funding 
Scheduled 

Project Name Scope of Work 
(xlOOO) 

Construction 

Completion 

INFRASTRUCTURE - ENGINEERING 

ROADS 

No. 4 Road Reconstruction 
from Blundell Road to 

1 Granville Ave (2018) Granville Avenue to Blundell Road $2,786 Q2 2022 

Box Culvert Repair (2020) 

Alderbridge Way Multi-Use 
Alderbridge Way Multi-Use Pathway 

2 Pathway, No. 4 Road to Shell 
(MUP) - Shell Road to No. 4 Road 

$1,200 Q2 2022 
Road (2018) 

Arterial Roadway 
Railway Greenway - Intersection 

3 Improvement Program 
Improvements for Pedestrians and 

$450 Q3 2022 
(2019) 

Cyclists at Blundell, Francis, and 
Williams 

Active Transportation 
Charles Street M UP - Sexsmith to 

Improvement Program 
Bridgeport Canada Line Station, 

(2018) 
4 

Active Transportation 
Browngate Road, Garden City Road $2,000 Q4 2022 
(Francis Rd-Williams Rd): rebuild 

Improvement Program 
MUP on west side 

(2019) 

5 
Annual Asphalt Re-Paving 

Annual asphalt re-paving $1,589 Q4 2022 
Program - MRN (2021) 

6 
Annual Asphalt Re-Paving 

Annual asphalt re-paving $3,344 Q4 2022 
Program - Non-MRN (2021) 

Steveston Highway Multi-Use Steveston Highway Multi-Use 

7 Pathway, Shell Road to Pathway - Shell Road to Mortfield $2,000 Q4 2022 

Mortfield Gate (2019) Gate 

Arterial Roadway River Road Sidewalk - No. 6 Road to 

8 Improvement Program Burdette Street, Sidewalk Upgrades - $350 Q4 2022 
(2018) Lucas at No. 3 Road 

Cambie Road/ No. 5 Road -
Intersection safety improvement at 

9 Intersection Improvements 
Cambie Road and No. 5 Road, 

$2,760 Q4 2022 
(2020) 

including Left Turn (LT) lanes on all 4 

legs and MUPs 

Bridge Rehabilitation 
Various locations Citywide including 

10 West Dike Trail Bridge and Bird Road $300 Q4 2022 
Program (2019) 

Bridge 

11 
Annual Asphalt Re-Paving 

Annual asphalt re-paving $1,621 Q2 2023 
Program - MRN (2022) 

12 
Annual Asphalt Re-Paving 

Annual asphalt re-paving $3,411 Q2 2023 
Program - Non-MRN (2022) 
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Capital Funding 
Scheduled 

Project Name Scope of Work Construction 
(xlOOO} 

Completion 

DRAINAGE 

Steveston Highway Multi- Steveston Highway Multi-Use 
13 Use Pathway, Mortfield Pathway - Mortfield Gate to No. 2 $6,000 Q3 2023 

Gate to No. 2 Road (2020) Road 

14 
Street Light LED Upgrade City-wide Light Emitting Diode (LED) 

$490 Q3 2023 
Program (2022) street light replacement program 

Steveston Highway & No. 3 Upgrades to the existing drainage 
15 Road Pump Station Upgrade pump station at Steveston Highway $2,439 Q2 2022 

(2019) and No. 3 Road 

Storm Main Drainage 
Drainage improvements at the 

16 intersection of Gilbert Road and $950 Q3 2022 
Upgrade (2021) 

Steveston Highway 

Burkeville Utility 
Burkeville Drainage Upgrades (Third 

17 Improvements Drainage $2,026 Q3 2022 
(2021) 

phase of construction) 

18 
Laneway Drainage Upgrade Laneway drainage upgrade at 

$800 Q3 2022 
(2021) Railway Avenue East Lane 

First phase of drainage pump station 
Disaster Mitigation and upgrades and perimeter dike raising 

19 
Adaptation Fund design including pump stations at 

$4,516 Q3 2022 
Infrastructure Upgrades Steveston Highway and Gilbert Road, 
(2020) and south dike upgrades from No. 3 

Road to Finn Slough 

20 
Laneway Drainage Upgrade Ashwood Drive/Francis Road Lane 

$1,183 Q4 2022 
(2022) and Seaton Road North Lane 

Second phase of drainage pump 
Disaster Mitigation and station upgrades and perimeter dike 

21 
Adaptation Fund raising design including dike 

$5,000 Q4 2023 
Infrastructure Upgrades upgrades from No. 3 Road to Finn 
(2021) Slough, and dike upgrades from No. 

9 Road to Dyke Road 

Disaster Mitigation and 
Third phase of drainage pump 

Adaptation Fund 
station upgrades and perimeter dike 

22 
Infrastructure Upgrades 

raising design including dike $2,700 Q4 2024 

(2022) 
upgrades from No. 4 Road to No. 5 
Road 

Hamilton Area Sanitary 
Sanitary pump station located in 

23 Sewer and Pump Station $2,800 Q2 2022 
(2020) 

Hamilton VLA Park 

24 
Sanitary Sewer Tie-in and 

Sanitary sewer tie-in and restoration $150 Q2 2023 
Restoration (2021) 
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SANITARY 

Capital Funding 
Scheduled 

Project Name Scope of Work Construction 
{xlOOO) 

Completion 

Steveston Gravity Sewer 
Replacement and 
Rehabilitation (2020) 

Gravity Sewer Rehabilitation Multi-year sanitary rehabilitation and 
25 and Upgrades (2021) upgrade program in the Steveston $7,400 Q3 2023 

Steveston Sanitary Sewer area 

and Hammersmith 
Forcemain Rehabilitation 
(2022) 

WATER 

Water pressure reducing valve 
Thompson Gate Pressure station to reduce Metro Vancouver's 

26 Reducing Valve Station distribution pressure to local $1,500 Q2 2022 
(2020) pressure to provide additional water 

service to the East Richmond area 

27 
Watermain Replacement Watermain Replacement Program -

$5,793 Q2 2022 
Upgrades Program (2020) Monteith Area 

28 
Watermain Tie-in and 

Watermain tie-in and restoration $200 Q2 2023 
Restoration (2021) 

Watermain Replacement Program -

Watermain Replacement 
Nevis/Petts Area, Danube/Minier 

29 Area, Springfield Area, No. 3 Road, $6,196 Q3 2023 
Upgrades Program (2021) 

Terra Nova Park and Granville 
Avenue 

Watermain Replacement 
Watermain Replacement Program -

30 Sealord Neighbourhood 2, No. 7 $5,566 Q3 2024 
Upgrades Program (2022) 

Road, and Montego/Aztec 

BUILDINGS - PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 

Richmond Curling Club Ice 
31 Plant Replacement & Other Ice Plant Replacement $1,500 Complete 

Systems (2021) 

32 
Animal Shelter Replacement 

Replacement $8,000 Complete 
(2018) 

Thompson Community 
33 Centre & Hall Infrastructure Infrastructure Upgrades $900 Q2 2022 

Renewals (2021) 

Minoru Arenas - Mechanical 
34 & Life Safety System Mechanical and Life Safety Renewals $1,280 Q3 2022 

Renewals (2021) 

35 
Hamilton Community Centre Heating, Ventilation, and Air 

$500 Q3 2022 
- HVAC Replacement (2021) Conditioning (HVAC) Replacements 

6849315 

FIN - 155



Attachment 1 

Capital Funding 
Scheduled 

Project Name Scope of Work 
(xlOOO) 

Construction 
Completion 

36 
Works Yard Mechanical 

Mechanical Systems Replacement $1,707 Q4 2022 
Replacements {2019) 

Works Yard Aging 

37 
Mechanical and Building Site wide infrastructure 

$2,515 Q4 2022 
Envelope Infrastructure replacements 
Replacement (2018) 

38 
Minor Capital Buildings 46 projects (roof replacement, 

$4,613 Q4 2022 
Project Development flooring, mechanical equipment, etc.) 

Community Safety Building -

39 
Mechanical Component 

Components Replacement $1,420 Q4 2022 
Replacements and 
Associated Works (2020) 

City Hall - Replacement of 

40 
Mechanical, Life/Safety, and 

Replacement Components $2,630 Q4 2022 
Envelope Components and 
Associated Works {2020) 

41 
City Hall Council Chamber 

Council Chamber Roof Replacement $1,640 Q4 2022 
Roof Replacement (2021) 

Community Safety Building 
42 Emergency Power and Emergency Power Upgrades $890 Ql 2023 

Interior Upgrades (2021) 

Richmond Courthouse -
Mechanical Components 
Replacements, Envelope 
Renewals, Electrical 
Replacements, Structural 
Renewals and Associated 

43 
Works (2020) 

Infrastructure Replacements $1,932 Q2 2023 
Richmond Courthouse -

Mechanical Components 
Replacements, Envelope 
Renewals, Electrical 
Replacements, Structural 
Renewals and Associated 
Works (2019) 

Minoru Place Activity Centre 
44 Program - Implementation Repurposing $3,326 Q2 2023 

(2019) 

45 
Richmond Curling Club - Infrastructure Repairs and 

$650 Q2 2023 
Priority 1 Repairs (2022) Replacements 

Britannia Shipyards 
Infrastructure and Envelope 

46 Envelope & Mechanical $2,125 Q2 2023 
System Renewals (2022) 

Upgrades 
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Capital Funding 
Scheduled 

Project Name Scope of Work Construction 
(xlOOO) 

Completion 

Works Yard Electrical Service 
Electrical Upgrade and Electric 

47 Upgrade and EV $1,888 Q3 2023 
Infrastructure (2020) 

vehicle (EV) Infrastructure 

Richmond Nature Park 
48 Infrastructure Renewals Infrastructure Renewals $4,775 Q3 2023 

(2022) 
South Arm Community Infrastructure Renewals $1,900 Q3 2023 

49 Centre Infrastructure 
Renewals (2022) 
Richmond Ice Centre 
Infrastructure Renewals -
Phase 1 (2020) 
Richmond Ice Centre 

50 
Renewals - Phase 2 Design 

Infrastructure Renewals $13,700 Q4 2023 
and associated works (2021) 
Richmond Ice Centre 
Renewals - Phase 2 
Construction and associated 
works (2022) 
Watermania Aging 

51 
Mechanical and Building Mechanical and Envelope 

$1,341 Q4 2023 
Envelope Infrastructure Replacement 
Replacement Phase 2 (2019) 
Watermania Mechanical and 

52 Pool Equipment Renewals Infrastructure Renewals $2,200 Q4 2023 
(2022) 
West Richmond Community 

53 Centre - HVAC and HVAC Renewals $1,330 Q4 2023 
Mechanical renewals (2021) 
Steveston Community 
Centre and Branch Library 

54 
(2021) 

Replacement of Existing Facility $95,000 Ql 2026 
Steveston Community 
Centre and Branch Library 
Contingency (2021) 

6849315 

FIN - 157



Q1 2022 Construction Update on Parks Capital Projects 

Alexandra Neighbourhood Park 

Attachment 2 

Alexandra Neighbourhood Park is located in the newly established Alexandra neighbourhood, at 
the intersection of Odlin Road and May Drive. In March 2019, Council approved the re-naming 
of this park from West Cambie Park to Alexandra Neighbourhood Park. Request for Proposals 
(RFPs) for the work was issued in Q2 2020, and the construction contract was awarded in Q2 
2021. Park construction is approximately 95% complete, and the park is expected to open to the 
public by mid-Q2 2022. 

Aberdeen Neighbourhood Park - Phase 2 
Aberdeen Neighbourhood Park is located at the intersection of Cambie Road and Hazelbridge 
Way. In July 2017, Council approved the naming of this new park from Cambie City Centre to 
Aberdeen Neighbourhood Park. The RFP for Phase 2 works was issued in Q3 2020. Purchasing 
staff identified a lead proponent, and cost savings oppo1iunities were finalized with the 
prospective contractor and consultant team. The construction contract was awarded in Q2 2021. 
Park construction is now underway. Some pandemic-related supply chain issues were 
encountered, which delayed progress slightly. Park construction is approximately 90% complete, 
with an opening to the public anticipated in Q2 2022. 

Garden City Lands (GCL) 
The construction of the community gardens is complete and is now officially open to gardeners. 
An extensive contaminated sites testing program commenced in Q4 2021 with a Qualified 
Environmental Professional (QEP) engaged. The QEP will take soil samples for testing and 
fmther analysis. Staff have installed benches along the Perimeter Recreational Trail, and 
additional native tree and shrub plantings will be installed in Q2 2022 along the same trail, in the 
vicinity of No. 4 Road and a po1tion of Alderbridge Way. The scale and extent of this planting 
effort will be similar to what was successfully completed in 2018. Planting along Westminster 
Highway and Garden City Road is expected to proceed in Q4 2022. Soil from the Polygon 
Talisman site will be imported and placed on site beginning in Q2 2022, and again in Q3 2022; 
soil will be placed on the KPU fann site. Soil screening will also proceed to ensure the highest 
quality of soil is placed on site. The Perimeter Recreational Trail will remain open to residents to 
enjoy the site during this time. 

City-wide Commm1ity Gardens 
Several new community gardens are being planned for construction throughout the City in 2022. 
As per Council direction, three new community gardens will be built along the Railway 
Greenway. Prior to construction, public consultation and engagement by staff with the immediate 
neighbouring residents will take place in Q2 2022, with construction proceeding on all three 
Council approved sites in the same period. An expansion of the Cook Community Gardens will 
also proceed in Q2 2022 with all projects expected to complete in Q3 2022. Staff will continue 
to update Council as the project proceeds. 
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Minoru Lakes Renewal 
The Minoru Lakes Renewal construction services contract was awarded and the contractor 
staiied site preparations in late Ql 2022 as planned. The site will be closed during construction 
and a communications strategy has been deployed by staff to inform park visitors and residents 
of closures. The project and key deliverables remain on schedule with project completion 
expected in Ql 2023. 

King George Park - Artificial Turf Field Replacement 
Synthetic sports fields generally last 8 to 12 years depending on the usage and the maintenance 
of the fields. Installed in 2008, the King George field is at the end of its expected lifespan and is 
failing to meet minimum operating safety standards for shock attenuation, but remains safe for 
play in the sh01i term. The RFP process has been completed and the contract has been awarded. 
This project is anticipated to start in late Q2 2022 as a result of scheduling demands from the 
user groups and delays with the availability of materials. 

Lang Park Redevelopment Plan - Phase 3 Completion 
The cmTent construction phase of the Lang Park Redevelopment Plan includes an overhead 
shelter, table tennis tables and a community book exchange kiosk as part of the approved park 
program to address the needs of the community. The table tennis table installations and book 
exchange kiosk were completed in Ql 2021. Fabrication of the overhead shelter steel frame was 
completed in Q3 2021. Installation of the roof assembly will begin in late Q2 2022. 

London Heritage Farm-Master Plan Phase 1 
Council approved the Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP) in Ql 2022, and components of the 
project are unde1way including an apiary expansion, chicken run renovations, and signage 
improvements. Construction activities such as earthworks and pathway improvements are 
planned for Q3 2022 to minimize impacts to site operations, such as the allotment gardens and 
heritage programs. 

Dog Park Upgrades 
The existing Steveston Dogs Off-Leash Area is slated to be upgraded in 2022. Upgrades are 
expected to include improved surfacing, play features, tree planting, site furnishings, and a 
drinking fountain. Detailed design has staiied in Ql 2022. Prior to construction, public 
consultation and engagement by staff with the Steveston Community will take place. The 
construction is anticipated to start in Q3 2022. 

London/Steveston Neighbourhood Park 
London/Steveston Neighbourhood Park enhancements are being implemented in phases. The 
first phase was completed in 2018 and included greenway connections to No. 2 Road. The 
second phase, completed in 2019, included a pathway loop, trees, landforms, and stonnwater 
detention ponds. The third phase of the project includes a playground, half-comi basketball plaza 
and park shelter. Construction of the playground and the half-court basketball plaza was 
completed in 2020. The park shelter was installed in Ql 2021. The fomih and final phase of 
enhancements include an off-leash dog park. The off-leash area will include a variety of surface 
treatments, fencing, play elements, tree planting and site furnishings. Preliminary planning and 
design work is expected to commence in Q3 2022. 
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Hollybridge Pier/Middle Ann 
This project is the continuation of the Oval West waterfront development as part of the Middle 
Ann waterfront with a new public pier at the end of Hollybridge Way. The project has been 
halted as the City has received a final decision letter from the Ministry of Forest, Lands, Natural 
Resources Operations and Rural Development (FLNRORD), stating that the City's application to 
construct a public pier has been rejected. Further consultation is required for the potential 
next steps to move the project forward. 

The Gardens Agricultural Park 
Rehabilitation of the existing park features has been completed, including pathways, a bridge, 
planting and site furnishings. The northern section of the park was previously closed off to the 
public for safety reasons, and has now been reopened following completion of pathway and 
landscape improvements. As the Province has recently announced the approval of the George 
Massey Crossing Project, staff will study its impact to the implementation of the approved park 
concept. 

South Ann Community Park Renewal 
South Ann Community Park Renewal includes enhanced trail connections, a plaza with park 
shelter, expanded picnic areas, new furnishings and shade trees. Detailed design is currently 
underway with the playground improvement project, with construction anticipated to start after 
playground construction is complete in 2022. 

Playground Improvement and Replacement 

• 

• 

• 
• 

South Arm Community Park Playground - The RFP was issued to market in Q4 2021. 
Construction is expected to start in Q3 2022. 
Steveston Community Park Playground Renewal - A staff report on the Steveston 
Community Park Playground Next Steps received Council support in Ql 2021. The RFP 
was issued to market in Ql 2022. Bid evaluation has completed and contract award is 
expected in Q2 2022. The project is on schedule for detailed design to start in Q2 2022. 
Odlin Park Playground Construction was completed in Q4 2021. 
Burkeville Park Playground - The existing zip line was removed and replaced with a new 
product to meet current safety standards and guidelines. Existing park swings have also 
been removed due to stability concerns. Installation of new swings was completed in Q4 
2021. 

Parks Aging Infrastructure 
• Gibbons Park - Installation of a new stonn drainage system on the baseball diamond field 

was completed in Q4 2021. 
• No. 3 Road Pier -A conditional assessment of the pier was completed in 2021. Minor 

repairs to the piled foundation is underway and more damage has been identified due to 
the storms experienced this past fall & winter season. Further repairs to the sheer boom 
and piled dolphins are scheduled for completion by Q3 2022. 

• No. 2 Road Pier - A Structural Conditional Assessment was completed in August 2018. 
Phase 1 repairs for the pile foundation repairs were completed in Q3 2020. Replacement 
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of the perimeter rail fence was completed in Q4 2020. Planning for Phase 2 of the pile 
foundation replacement is now anticipated for 2023. A capital submission will be 
submitted for consideration in the future year's budget process. 

• Terra Nova/Spul'u'Kwuks Park Tennis Courts - Minor crack repairs are scheduled for 
Q2 2022 (weather dependent). 

• King George Park caretaker's house and public washrooms drainage upgrades are 
underway and are expected to be completed in Q2 2022. 

Parks General Development 
• McDonald Beach Park-As a result of the ongoing erosion along the beach waterfront, a 

new pathway will be constructed from the parking lot to the east end of the beach as part 
of an alternate trail system. The construction of this new path is expected to be completed 
in Q2 2022. 

• Terra Nova Park- New fencing around the community gardens to be constructed in Q2-3 
2022. 

Parks Identity Signage Program 

This project consists of the design and fabrication of various Park and Open Space signage 
including wayfinding and identity signs. Completed sites for the signage include various 
neighbourhood park locations in the Thompson area, e.g., Brighouse, Dover, Gibbons, 
Thompson, McCallan, Tena Nova School, Terra Nova South and Quilchena. 

Fabrication and installation of new bases and signs are cunently underway for Birch, Blundell, 
General Currie, Gilmore, Grauer, Katsura, McKay, Morris, Palmer, and Paulik parks. An 
additional 12 park identification signage locations are currently being reviewed, and site plans 
are being developed for parks west of No. 2 Road, between Francis Road and Williams Road. 
Additional works are also in progress for the Garden City Park Arboretum interpretation signage 
upgrade. 
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General Manager, Engineering and Public Works 
Chief Executive Officer, Lulu Island Energy 
Company 

Jerry Chong, CPA, CA 
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Company 
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Re: 2022 Q1 Financial Information for the Lulu Island Energy Company 

Staff Recommendation 

That the Lulu Island Energy Company report titled "2022 Q 1 Financial Information for the Lulu 
Island Energy Company", dated May 12, 2022, from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, be received for information. 

Jolm Irving, P.Eng., MPA 
General Manager, Engineering 
and Public Works 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Lulu Island Energy Company 
(604-276-4140) 
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Report 

To: 

From: 

Board of Directors 

Jerry Chong, CPA, CA, 
Chief Financial Officer 

A Lululsland V ENERGY COMPANY 

Date: April 27, 2022 

6911 NO. 3 ROAD 
RICHMOND, BC V6Y 2C1 

Re: Lulu Island Energy Company - 2022 1st Quarter Financial Information 

Staff Recommendation 

That the 1st Quaiier Financial Information as presented in the repo1i titled "Lulu Island Energy 
Company - 2022 1st Quarter Financial Information", dated April 27, 2022, be approved. 

Background 

Lulu Island Energy Company (LIEC), a corporation wholly-owned by the City of Richmond, 
was established to provide district energy services on behalf of the City. This report is prepared 
with the objective to provide pre-audited financial information to the Board of Directors and 
LIEC's shareholder, represented by Richmond City Council. 

Analysis 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Rep01iing Standards (IFRS). LIEC's pre-audited Ql financial information consists of the interim 
statement of the financial position as of March 31 , 2022 (Attachment 1) and the interim income 
statement for the period ended March 31, 2022 (Attachment 2). 

Financial Position 

The interim statement of the financial position provides a summary of assets, liabilities and 
shareholder' s equity. Total assets are comprised of current assets ( cash, investments and 
receivables) $16,834,598 and non-cmTent assets (plant and equipment) $42,433,133. The total 
assets are $59,267,731. The total liabilities of $25,100,580 include outstanding invoices, deferred 
contributions and concession liabilities. Included in the accrued liabilities is an amount totalling 
$ 563,384, which pertains to the unplanned enviromnental remediation work related to pipe 
construction defect, which resulted in a leak and subsequent clean up of the released heat transfer 
fluid in the Alexandra DEU service area. The prompt response and excellent spill management 
procedures resulted in the quick leak repair and expedient remediation of the spill. The expenses 
were accrued in the prior year and there are no additional accruals in the first quaiier. The 
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investigation is ongoing and LIEC staff are assessing cost recovery options. The shareholder's 
equity represents the net w01ih of the company. It is equal to the total assets minus its total 
liabilities and measures the company's financial health. As of March 31, 2022, LIEC's 
shareholder equity is $34,167,151, showing good financial health of the company. Year-to-date 
budget to actual numbers are shown in Attachment 3. 

Revenues 

The metered billing revenue is the total energy sales of Alexandra District Energy Utility 
(ADEU), Oval Village District Energy Utility (OVDEU) and Interim City Center District Energy 
Utility (ICCDEU) service areas. The year to date metered billings revenue is $684,732 from the 
ADEU, $857,671 from the OVDEU and $61,000 from the ICCDEU. Overall, the first three 
months of metered billing revenue of $1,603,403 increased by 15% over 2021. This reflects the 
addition of one new building connection, increased energy use from customers due to increased 
occupancy, and the approved 2022 rates. The year-to-date metered billings revenue is slightly 
above budget due to increased energy use as a result of increased occupancy. 

Cost of Sales 

The cost of sales is the accumulated total of expenses attributable to the metered billing revenue, 
which includes contract services, utilities ( electricity and natural gas), and am01iization 
expenses. The contract expense increased by 5% over 2021 due to the additional operations and 
maintenance work as a result of more buildings being serviced. The growth in energy demand, 
due to the addition of more buildings, resulted in an increased use of electricity and natural gas to 
run distribution pumps, geo-exchange heat pumps, auxiliary equipment and boilers, which are 
used to deliver energy to customers' buildings. This increased demand paired with electricity and 
gas rate increases caused the utility expense to increase 9% compared to 2021. The am01iization 
expense increased due to capital asset additions. The year-over-year cost of sales has increased 
by 16%. The gross margin as a percentage of revenue is 48%, which is in line with last year. 

General and Administration Expenses 

General and administration (G&A) expenses are expenditures that LIEC incurs with respect to 
supporting operations which includes salaries and benefits, administration expenses, professional 
fees, etc .. Salaries and benefits are in line with last year, but below budget due to three vacant 
positions which are in the process of being filled. The administration expense includes the 
overhead allocation paid to the City of Richmond for the day-to-day support that LIEC receives 
from City staff. Insurance expense increased due to the general insurance rate increase and 
additional DEU assets being insured. Professional fees increased in comparison to Ql 2021 due 
to the timing of invoicing and the additional audit work required due to the increase in LIEC's 
financial position. Overall, the G&A expenses as a percentage of revenues is 16%, which is in 
line with last year. 
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Contributions and Financing Expenses 

The contributions and financing expense section represents other sources of income and costs for 
the business. The developer contributions are higher than 2021 due to additional onsite assets 
placed into service. The developers' contributions are below budget due to the difference 
between estimated and actual value of the equipment contributed by the developers. 

Other income is made up of energy model review fees. The energy modeling review fee revenues 
are lower than 2021 's due to less than anticipated building pennit reviews. The net finance cost 
is the result of year-to-date finance costs on concession liabilities, offset by interest income, 
which is higher than 2021 mainly due to the increase in the concession liability. The additional 
capital expenditure for OVDEU infrastructure has resulted in a higher balance of concession 
liability compared to the prior year, which also resulted in the additional assets. 

LIEC's EBITA (earnings before interest, tax, and amo1iization), used as a proxy to measure the 
company's financial perfonnance, increased by 18% compared to the first three months of 2021. 
EBITA as a percentage ofrevenue increased to 58% for 2022 compared to 56% in 2021. 

The year-to-date net income of $519,609 has exceeded budget, while as a percentage ofrevenue 
is 28% which is line with 2021. Consistent with the company's financial plan objectives, any net 
income will be maintained in LIEC's equity in order to fund future capital projects and 
infrastructure replacements. 

Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

The pre-audited financial information shows that LIEC's financial position is positive. This 
report will be presented to Council for information. 

Helen Zhao 
Controller 
(604-276-4053) 

Att. 1: Interim Statement of Financial Position as of March 31, 2022 ( unaudited) 
2: Interim Income Statement for the period ending March 31, 2022 (unaudited) 
3: Year-To-Date Budget vs. Actual Comparison (unaudited) 
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Attachment 1 

Interim Statement of Financial Position (Unaudited) 

As of As of 
March 31 December 31 

2022 2021 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,695,963 $11,707,794 
Accounts receivable 2,076,217 1,676,423 
Other investments 4,062,418 4,047,518 

16,834,598 17,431,735 

Non-current assets: 
Plant and equipment 42,433,133 38,905,146 

$ 59,267,731 $ 56,336,881 

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 

Current and non-current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,599,822 $ 2,671,416 
Deferred developer contributions 11,268,898 7,753,538 
Concession liability 12,231,860 12,264,387 

25,100,580 22,689,341 

Shareholder's equity: 
Share capital and contributed surplus 27,397,115 27,397,115 
Retained earnings 6,770,036 6,250,425 

34,167,151 33,647,540 

$ 59,267,731 $ 56,336,881 
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Interim Income Statement (Unaudited) 

March 31 March 31 
2022 2021 $ Changes % Change 

Revenues 

Metered Billings (Quarterly) $ 1,603,403 $ 1,391,323 $212,080 15% 

Service fee 245,375 245,250 125 0% 

1,848,778 1,636,573 212,205 13% 

Cost of Sales 

Contracts 177,277 168,080 9,197 5% 

Utilities 394,165 361,011 33,154 9% 

Amortization 394,502 307,062 87,440 28% 

965,944 836,153 129,791 16% 

Gross margin 882,834 800,420 82,414 10% 

General and Administration Expenses 

Salaries and benefits 208,573 208,346 227 0% 

Administration expenses 21,093 20,523 570 3% 

Insurance 28,750 28,750 -% 

Professional Fees 33,750 18,730 15,020 80% 

292,166 276,349 15,817 6% 

Net income before other items 590,668 524,071 66,597 13% 

Contributions and Financing expense 
Developer contributions 85,539 53,683 31,856 59% 

Other income 1,944 25,104 (23,160) (92%) 

Net financing cost (158,542) (151,624) (6,918) 5% 

(71,059) (72,837) 1,778 (2%) 

Net Income $519,609 $451,234 68,325 15% 

Earnings before interest, taxes and amortization (EBITA) 
Net income per above $519,609 $451,234 68,375 15% 

Net Financing cost 158,542 151,624 6,918 5% 

Amortization expense 394,502 307,062 87,440 28% 

EBITA $1,072,653 $909,920 $ 162,733 18% 
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Notes: 

Percentage of Revenue 
Gross margin percentage 
General and administration percentage 
Net income percentage 
EBIT A percentage 

6900046 

Ending 
March 31 

2022 

48% 
16% 
28% 
58% 

Ending 
March 31 

2021 

49% 
17% 
28% 
56% 

FIN - 168



Attachment 3 

Year-To-Date Budget vs. Actual Comparison (Unaudited) 

2022 Ql 2022 Ql $ Variance ¾Variance 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Metered Billings (Quarterly) $ 1,575,765 $ 1,603,403 27,638 2% 
Service fee 245,375 245,375 -% 

1,821,140 1,848,778 27,638 2% 

Cost of Sales 
Contracts 350,137 177,277 (172,860) (49%) 
Utilities 383,553 394,165 10,612 3% 
Amortization 447,762 394,502 (53,260) (12%) 

1,181,452 965,944 (215,508) (18%) 

Gross margin 639,688 882,834 243,146 38% 

General and Administration Expenses 

Salaries and benefits 240,782 208,573 (32,209) (13%) 
Administration expenses 36,501 21,093 (15,408) (42%) 
Insurance 30,000 28,750 (1,250) (4%) 
Professional Fees 40,000 33,750 (6,250) (16%) 

347,283 292,166 (55,117) (16%) 

Net income before other items 292,405 590,668 298,263 102% 

Contributions and Financing expense 
Developer contributions 129,993 85,539 (44,454) (34%) 

Other income 12,000 1,944 (10,056) (84%) 

Other expenses (104,500) 104,500 (100%) 

Net financing cost (156,992) (158,542) (1,550) 1% 
(119,499) (71,059) 48,440 (41%) 

Net Income $172,906 $519,609 $346,703 201% 

Earnings before interest, taxes and amortization (EBIT A) 
Net income per above $172,906 $ 519,609 $346,703 201% 

Net Financing cost 156,992 158,542 1,550 1% 
Amortization expense 447,762 394,502 (53,260) (12%) 

EBITA $777,660 $1,072,653 $294,993 38% 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

George Duncan 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Report to Committee 

Date: May 19, 2022 

File: 03-1200-09/2022-Vol 
01 

Re: Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation - 1st Quarter 2022 Financial 
Information 

Staff Recommendation 

That the rep011 on Financial Info1mation for the Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation for the 
first quaiter ending March 31, 2022 from the Director, Finance, Innovation & Technology, 
Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation be received for information. 

George Duncan 
Chief Administrative Officer 

(604-276-4338) 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL Report 

DATE: May 18, 2022 

TO: George Duncan 

Chief Administrative Officer, City of Richmond 

FROM: Rick Dusanj, CPA, CA 

Director of Finance, Innovation & Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

Re: Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation -1st Quarter 2022 Financial information 

Origin 

This staff report addresses the first quarter financial results for the 3 months ended March 31, 2022 ("Ql") 

which was endorsed by the Corporation's Board of Directors. 

During Ql the Corporation continued its gradual restoration of services approach to the COVID-19 

pandemic. With safety and community health as our guiding principles, the Corporation remained agile and 
continued to make operational adjustments to adhere to evolving provincial health orders and province 

wide restrictions. Below are some of the highlights of the activities undertaken by the Corporation during 
Ql. 

Q1 Highlights 

Community Use 
In Ql 2022, changes to the Public Health Order restrictions on fitness activities and event hosting occurred, 

which allowed these activities to resume and take place within the facility in a limited capacity. 

The Oval's youth sport programs continued to prove popular in the community. In Ql 2022, the Oval Learn 

to Skate programs registered 553 participants. Oval Camps saw high demand over the Spring Break period 
with 446 registrations over two weeks in climbing, skating, and multi-sport camps. 

Numerous community groups utilized the Oval to operate their programs and services for ages ranging 

from tots to seniors. These programs and services include the following sports : aikido, basketball, figure 
skating, gymnastics, hockey, karate, volleyball, climbing, speed skating, wheelchair basketball and soccer. 

In accordance with the Richmond Oval Agreement between the City of Richmond ("City") and the 

Corporation, the funding that is received from the City on an annual basis is required for the Corporation to 

fulfill the operating objectives which include the Corporation providing facilities, programs and services for 
quality sport, fitness, recreational uses and wellness services for the Richmond community, neighbouring 

communities and the general public. Without the Oval and the annual contribution from the City, these 

facilities, programs and services would have to be provided elsewhere. 
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Sport Development and Events 

In Q1, events that took place in compliance with health orders included: Lead and Speed Climbing 

Nationals, Wheelchair Rugby Provincial Team Camp, Speed Skating Canada Junior Cup Final, Rhythmic 

Gymnastics BC Elite Event, and BC Short Track Speed Skating Championships. Some of the future new 

events secured in Q1 by Events and Sport Hosting included: Cars and Hoops Charity Festival, 2022 Canadian 

Championships in Men's and Women's Artistic Gymnastics, 2022 Climbing Provincial Championships, and 

the 2022 North American Climbing Series. 

National and Provincial Team training that occurred in Q1 included: BC Wheelchair Sports Association, Field 

Hockey Canada Next Generation and Targeted Athlete Program, BC Swimming, Para-Curling Team Canada, 

BC Wheelchair Rugby Training Camp, Team China Hockey, Team BC Volleyball, and Team Ontario 

Volleyball. 

Governance 

Meetings of the Corporation's Business Planning Committee and the Board of Directors took place during 

Q1. 

Financial 

Although the Oval's operations are trending in a positive direction, the Corporation's gross revenues from 

memberships, admissions, programs and services for 2021 were approximately $3.8M less than they were 

compared to 2019 during pre-pandemic times. For Q1, the Corporation continued to exceed cautious budget 

targets that were established during the pandemic. The results for the 3 months ended March 31, 2022 show 

income of $42,000 after amortization compared to a budgeted loss of $294,000, indicating a favorable 

variance of $336,000 {please see page 4 for the Corporation's balance sheet as of March 31, 2022 and page 

5 for the statement of operations). In Q1, $229,000 was allocated to the reserves/equity. 

Comments on the Financial Results for Ql 

Revenues 

The Q1 portion of the estimated 2022 Games Operating Trust Fund {"GOT") distribution of $931,000 was 

recognized as revenue. Memberships, admissions and programs revenue was $1,729,000 in Q1 and other 

revenue of $293,000 primarily pertained to sponsorship, space leasing, parking, and interest revenue. 

Overall, revenue was $335,000 favorable to budget. 

Expenses 

Memberships, admissions and program services costs for Q1 2022 were $1,424,000, facility operations costs 

were $1,104,000, marketing expenses were $137,000, and administration and finance expenses were 

$743,000. Overall, expenditures were $2,000 favorable to budget. 

Rick Dusanj, CPA, CA 

Director of Finance, Innovation & Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Balance sheet 
As at Mar 31, 2022 
Unaudited, prepared by management 

ASSETS 

Financial Assets 
Cash 

Investments 
Inventory 

Accounts receivable 

Financial Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Deferred revenue 

Rental deposits 

Net financial assets 

Non-Financial Assets 
Tangible capital assets 

Prepaid expenses and other deposits 

Accumulated Surplus (Note 1) 

$ 

$ 

Note 1 - Breakdown of accumulated surplus account is as follows: 
Investment in capital assets 

Reserves/Provisions 

Common Shares 

Surplus 

Mar 31, 2022 

990,955 

15,608,144 
163,534 

493,722 

18,187,606 

1,546,739 

10,342,618 

7,373 

11,896,730 

6,290,876 

11,908,464 
610,575 

12,519,039 

18,809,915 

8,299,921 

9,648,673 

1 

861,320 

18,809,915 

The Accumulated Surplus shown above represents the Corporation's Shareholder's Equity. The 
investment in capital assets represents funding that has already been spent on existing capital 
assets currently being depreciated. The reserves/provisions balance primarily includes committed 
funding for approved capital projects as well as funding required for future minor capital 
expenditures. In addition, at the end of each year, the majority of the surplus balance is 
transferred to the capital reserves to primarily fund the Oval's future minor capital program, which 
has averaged $2.00M annually over the past 5 years. The amount transferred each quarter varies 
and the final amount is determined by the Capital Works Committee in accordance with the 
operating agreement. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement of Operations 
For the quarter ended March 31, 2022 
Unaudited, prepared by management 

REVENUES 
2010 Games Operating Trust Fund 

Contribution from City of Richmond 

Memberships, admissions and programs 

Other 

EXPENSES 
Memberships, admissions and program services 

Facil ity Operations 

Marketing 

Admin/Finance 

Amortization 

Net Income/(Loss) ( Note 1) 

QTR1 
2022 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

931,250 931,250 
938,573 938,573 

1,400,727 1,729,043 
287,179 293,404 

3,557,729 3,892,270 

1,337,283 1,423,514 

1,110,732 1,103,899 
141,167 137,106 

776,707 742,888 
485,910 442,572 

3,851,799 3,849,979 

(294,070) 42,291 

$ Variance % Variance 
Fav/(Unfav) Fav/(Unfav) 

- 0% 
- 0% 

328,316 23% 

6,225 2% 

334,541 9% 

(86,231) -6% 

6,833 1% 

4,061 3% 

33,819 4% 

43,338 9% 
1,820 0% 

336,361 114% 

QTR1 
2021 $ Variance % Variance 

BUDGET ACTUAL Fav/(Unfav) Fav/(Unfav) 

931,250 931,250 - 0% 

917,471 917,471 - 0% 

972,452 1,125,546 153,094 16% 

287,643 297,226 9,583 3% 

3,108,816 3,271,493 162,677 5% 

1,126,750 1,103,757 22,993 2% 

958,451 952,951 5,500 1% 

107,008 95,499 11,509 11% 

714,161 633,986 80,175 11% 

442,016 431,252 10,764 2% 

3,348,386 3,217,445 130,941 4% 

(239,570) 54,048 293,618 123% 

Note 1 - In Ql, $0.23M was tra nsferred into reserves/equity mainly for future minor capital programs. The total transfers vary from quarter to quarter and will be fina lized by the 

Capit al Works Committee in accordance with the operating agreement. The Oval Corporation's minor capital program, which is primarily funded from the Capit al Reserves, has 

averaged $2.00M annually over the past 5 years. 

Numbers may be off due to rounding. 

2022 
BUDGET 

3,725,000 
3,754,292 

5,854,079 

1,174,859 

14,508,230 

5,544,075 

4,608,583 

545,155 
3,391,864 

2,200,000 
16,289,677 

(1,781,447) 
-
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